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UNITED STATES
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WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
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ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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Commission File Number 000-49602
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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) die Act: None
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O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes[d No
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Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (orsiach shorter period that the registrant was reduodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastfgs. YesX No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lhsmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥eb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted auntsto Rule 405 of Regulation5¢8232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@grbnths
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorKS8229.405 of this chapter) is not contail
herein, and will not be contained, to the beskgistrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or infoation statements incorporated by reference
in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendmenthastForm 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlearge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, aaccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller reportirmpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):



Large accelerated file Accelerated filel O

Non-accelerated file O (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar [
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Actyes [ No

The aggregate market value of Common Stock heldomaffiliates of the registrant (24,385,533 sharea$ed on the closing price of the
registrant's Common Stock as reported on the Na&laljal Select Market on December 28, 2012 of $29&s $721,324,066. For purposes
of this computation, all officers, directors, ar@bd beneficial owners of the registrant are deerndabtaffiliates. Such determination should
be deemed to be an admission that such officerstdrs, or 10% beneficial owners are, in faci|iatés of the registrant.

As of August 5, 2013, there were outstanding 338@B shares of the registrant's Common Stock, parev$.001 per share.
Documents Incorporated by Reference
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Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The statements contained in this report on FornKit@at are not purely historical are forward-lookjrstatements within the
meaning of applicable securities laws. Forward-limgkstatements include statements regarding oupéetations,” “anticipation,”
“intentions,” “beliefs,” or “strategies” regarding the future, whether or not those words are usedwBod-looking statements also include
statements regarding revenue, margins, expensdsamings analysis for fiscal 2014 and thereaftair positioning in our target markets;
our ability to continue to enhance our market gositand increase our business through introduciragkat leading interface solutions; the
strength of our intellectual property portfolio, gineering know-how, systems engineering experiergtechnological expertise; the success
of our product development strategies; the attrgiess of our product solutions, including theirfpenance, cost, customer satisfaction,
market position, and potential; continued succdssup virtual manufacturing platform; the strengtfiour customer relationships; the amot
of revenue generated as a result of sales to stgmif customers; our competitive position and catitige factors; acquisitions or strategic
alliances; the success of particular product or keting programs; and liquidity and anticipated casdeds and availability. All forward-
looking statements included in this report are lihse information available to us as of the filingté of this report, and we assume no
obligation to update any such forward-looking staémts. Our actual results could differ materialigr the forward-looking statements.
Among the factors that could cause actual resoldiffer materially are the factors discussed init 1A. Risk Factor:



Table of Contents

PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are a leading worldwide developer and suppli@ustomedesigned human interface solutions that enablelp¢opnteract mor
easily and intuitively with a wide variety of mobitomputing, communications, entertainment, andraglectronic devices. We currently tar
the markets for mobile product applications, inahgdsmartphones and feature phones; tablets; tisep& computer, or PC, product
applications market, primarily notebook computers] other select electronic device markets, withcoistomized human interface solutions.
Every solution we deliver either contains or cotssef our touch-based semiconductor solution, wincludes our capacitive sensing ASIC,
customer-specific firmware, and software.

We are a market leader in providing human interfaations to our target markets. Our original equént manufacturer, or OEM,
customers include most of the world’s largest OEMsmartphones and feature phones and tier on@E@s. We generally supply our
human interface solutions to our OEM customersuthatheir contract manufacturers, which take dejive our products and pay us directly
for them.

Our website is located at www.synaptics.coiirough our website, we make available free afrgh all of our Securities and
Exchange Commission, or SEC, filings, including aonual reports on Form 10-K, our proxy statememisguarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
and our current reports on Form 8-K, as well agr8r Form 4, and Form 5 Reports for our directofficers, and principal stockholders,
together with amendments to those reports filefdiarished pursuant to Sections 13(a), 15(d), ourdder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
as amended, or the Exchange Act. These reportsvaikable immediately after their electronic filimgth the SEC. Our website also includes
corporate governance information, including our €ofiConduct, our Code of Ethics for the CEO andi@d~inancial Officers, and our Bos
Committee Charters.

Our fiscal year is the 52- or 53-week period endinghe last Saturday in June. The fiscal yearseorted in this report were a 53-
week period ended June 30, 2012, and 52-week meeioded June 29, 2013 and June 25, 2011.

Mobile Product Applications Marke

We believe our intellectual property portfolio, @megering know-how, systems engineering experietemnological expertise, and
experience in providing human interface solutianenajor OEMs of electronic devices position usealkey technological enabler for multi
consumer electronic devices targeted to meet thwigg mobile product applications markets, whictlinle all touchscreen and video display
products. Based on these strengths, we are adulyebs opportunities created by the growth of m@bdmputing communications and
entertainment devices. Mobile product applicatimtude smartphones and feature phones, tableg® tauchscreen applications, global
positioning devices, as well as a variety of mgliendheld, wireless, and entertainment devicesa@ay of human interface solutions for
mobile product applications are designed to erttiehinterface on mobile smartphones and featuregs)dablets, and peripherals, allowing
user to more easily use or navigate complex mesies)s on their devices. We believe our existingrietogies, our range of product
solutions, and our emphasis on ease of use, sima)llsw power consumption, advanced functionaliyrability, and reliability enable us to
serve multiple aspects of the markets for mobitedpct applications and other electronic devices.

Our human interface solutions for mobile produgileations constitutes an important percentageuofnet revenue. Net revenue
for our human interface solutions for mobile prodagplications accounted for approximately 64% 4% of our net revenue in fiscal 2013
and 2012, respectively. Our ongoing success inrsgthese markets will depend upon the continueavtir of the mobile smartphone and
feature phone portion of the overall mobile phorakat; our continued growth in the tablet and lamehscreen applications markets; our
ability to demonstrate to mobile product applicai®EMSs the advantages of our human interfaceisnbiin terms of performance, usability,
size, durability, power consumption, integrationgd andustrial design possibilities; and the sucaggwoducts utilizing our human interface
solutions. In addition, our success will dependanability to demonstrate to mobile product apgticns OEMs the advantages of our flexible
touchscreen fulfillment model and systems engimgeexpertise.
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Industry projections for the mobile smartphone reafkr the period 2013 through 2017 show a compamuial growth rate of
13.4%, reflecting the trend towards greater fumalidy in mobile smartphone products to meet ardtess the expanded needs and
expectations of the consumeriented market. These products require a simpighde, and intuitive human interface solutiontalge the use
to navigate efficiently through menus and scraibtlgh information contained in the host device. bgbeve we are well positioned to take
advantage of this growing market based on our tolgy, engineering know-how, systems engineerimmpernce, and the acceptance of our
human interface solutions by OEMs in this market.

The tablet and large touchscreen markets alsosepran opportunity for our touchscreen intellelgmaperty portfolio,
engineering know-how, and technological experfisgichscreen solutions required for the tablet ntarkege from basic e-book vendor
solutions to multi-function solutions designed fioore complex operating systems. Tablet-based dagatiuch interface devices are now
offered by several leading PC and mobile phone ORMSEutilize various operating systems, includimgd®oid and Windows 8. Industry
projections for the tablet market for the period 2@hrough 2017 show a compound annual growthafat®.7%.

PC Product Applications Mark

We provide custom human interface solutions forigetion, cursor control, and multimedia controls fi;any of the world’s
premier PC OEMs. In addition to notebook applicagioother PC product applications for our technplioglude peripherals, such as
keyboards, mice, and monitors, as well as rematéralodevices for desktops, PCs, and digital hop@ieations. Our solutions for the PC
product applications market include the TouchPad®uch-sensitive pad that senses the positiomeov@ément of a person’s finger on its
surface; the ClickPad™, a TouchPad applicationghatinates the need for physical buttons; the hi&igk™, a self-contained, easily
integrated pointing stick module; and dual pointsafutions that combine both a TouchPad and aipgistick into a single notebook
computer, enabling users to use the interfaceeif toice; the ForcePad™, a ClickPad that is #irthan conventional touchpads and
provides for force sensitivity; and ThinTough ,eykoard that is thinner than the conventional kaytho

The latest industry projections for notebook umdvgth for the period 2013 through 2017 show a cammgioannual growth rate of
4% compared with a decrease of 0.2% for desktogpatens, reflecting the continued migration fromideps to notebooks fueled by users’
desire for mobile computing and on-the-go accesgications, information, and digital contentsBd on the strength of our technology and
engineering know-how, we believe we are well posiid to take advantage of the growth opportunithénotebook computer market. We
believe we are well positioned within the notebaoknputer market as our product lines of touch ppdisiting sticks and keyboards allow us
to address 100% of the notebook computer market.

Our Strategy

Our objective is to continue to enhance our pasiéie a leading supplier of human interface solstfon the mobile product
applications markets, including smartphones antlifegphones, for the tablet and large touchscresmkets, and for the PC product
applications market. Key aspects of our strategactueve this objective include those set fortlobel

Extend Our Technological Leaderst

We plan to utilize our extensive intellectual prapeportfolio, engineering know-how, and technolmjiexpertise to extend the
functionality of our product solutions and offenovative product solutions to customers acrossipl@lmarkets. We intend to continue
utilizing our technological expertise to reduce tiverall size, weight, cost, and power consumptibour human interface solutions while
increasing their applications, capabilities, andgrenance. We plan to continue enhancing the ehaseand functionality of our solutions. \
also plan to expand our research and developmimtsethrough increased investment in our engimggaictivities, the hiring of additional
engineering personnel, and strategic acquisitioisadliances. We believe that these efforts willlele us to meet customer expectations and t
achieve our goal of supplying on a timely and afftctive basis the most advanced, easy-to-usetifural human interface solutions to our
target markets.
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Enhance Our Position in the Mobile Smartphone, BEeaPhone, Tablet, and PC Product Application Mas!

We intend to continue introducing market-leadingnlan interface solutions in terms of performancacfionality, size, and ease of
use for the smartphone, feature phone, tabletPahgroduct applications markets. We plan to coetiaohancing our customers’ industrial
design alternatives and device functionality thtougnovative product development based on our iegistapabilities and technological
advances.

Capitalize on Growth of New and Evolving Markets

We intend to capitalize on the growth of new andiemng markets, such as the tablet market and lth@bwok portion of the PC
product applications market, brought about by thevergence of computing, communications, and aitertent devices. We plan to offer
innovative, intuitive human interface solutionstthddress the evolving portability, connectivitpdegfunctionality requirements of these new
markets. We plan to offer these solutions to exgstind potential OEM customers to enable increhsgetdionality, reduced size, lower cost,
and enhanced industrial design features and toneefthe user experience of their products. We jgailize our existing technologies as well
as aggressively pursue new technologies as newetsagkolve that demand new solutions.

Emphasize and Expand Customer Relations

We plan to emphasize and expand our strong andléstipg customer relationships and to establisitesssful relationships with
new customers. In each market we serve, we planotdde the most advanced human interface solufensur customers’ products. We
believe that our human interface solutions enabtecastomers to deliver a positive user experiemzeto differentiate their products from
those of their competitors. We continually striseehhance the competitive position of our custorbgrgroviding them with innovative,
distinctive, and high-quality human interface siln$ in a timely and cost-effective basis. To dpvg® work continually to improve our
productivity, to reduce costs, and to speed thivelsl of our human interface solutions. We endedoatreamline the entire design and
delivery process through our ongoing design, ergging, and production improvement efforts. We dtsmus on providing timely support to
our customers after the purchase of our humanfagersolutions.

We plan to increase our business with existingarusts and attract new customers by offering bositorn designed solutions, as
well as design tools, documentation, a family gfaztive sensing ASICs, and technical support sisathe development of human interface
designs in products for smartphones and featuragsdablets, notebooks, PC peripherals, and dipial entertainment devices. We offer
smartphone and feature phone customers a chobetefmining the most optimal way to meet their egimgy and growing needs: our
traditional custom module solutions or our chifal solutions, which enable customers to utilize proprietary solutions together with third-
party components and assembly. Our chip solutiosists of our proprietary controller ASIC, custorspecific firmware, and software. Our
tail solution consists of our proprietary controlleSIC, associated electronics, customer-spedifioviare, software, and flexible circuit
material. Touchscreen solutions for mobile photedslets, and notebooks are primarily a chip sofutio

Pursue Strategic Relationships and Acquisiti

We intend to develop and expand strategic relatipssto enhance our ability to offer value-addethhn interface solutions to our
customers, penetrate new markets, and strengtbaechnological leadership of our product solutidie also intend to consider the potential
acquisition of companies in order to expand ouhtetogical expertise and to establish or strengthempresence in selected target markets.

Continue Virtual Manufacturing

We plan to expand and diversify our production cétgahrough third-party relationships, therebyesiythening our virtual
manufacturing platform. This strategy results stalable business model; enables us to concewptraiar core competencies of research and
development, technological advances, and prodsigidend engineering; and reduces our capital elipgaes and working capital
requirements. Our virtual manufacturing stratedgved us to maintain a variable cost model, in whighdo not incur most of our
manufacturing costs until our product solutionsenbeen shipped and billed to our customers.

3
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Product Solutions

We develop and enhance interface technologiestirath the user’s experience in interacting with tiser's mobile computing,
communications, and entertainment devices. We engéf) our customers in the design of their cusproducts and offer product solutions
ranging from ASICs, which may include customer-sfieéirmware, to full module solutions. Our innaze and intuitive human interface
solutions can be engineered to accommodate maeysaiyplatforms and our expertise in human factedsusability can be utilized to improve
the features and functionality of our solutionsr ®xtensive array of technologies includes ASI@gs)Ware, software, mechanical and
electrical designs, and pattern recognition andhesensing technologies.

Our custom-designed human interface solutions @s®m engineered, total solutions for our custoneerd include sensor design,
module layout, ASICs, firmware, and software feasufior which we provide manufacturing and desigvpsut, and device testing. This allows
us to be a one-stop supplier for complete humasrfaate design from the early design stage, to naatwifing, to testing and support. Through
our engineering know-how and technological expertige seek to provide our customers with soluttbas address their individual design
issues and result in high-performance, feature-aai reliable interface solutions. We believeiaterface solutions offer the following
characteristics:

. Ease of Us. Our interface solutions offer the ease of useiandtive interaction that users dema

. Small Size The small, thin size of our interface solutionalgles our customers to reduce the overall sizenaight of their
products in order to satisfy consumer demand fotapdity.

. Low Power Consumptic. The low power consumption of our interface salnsi enables our customers to offer products
with longer battery life or smaller battery si.

. Advanced Functionalit. Our interface solutions offer advanced featusash as virtual scrolling, customizable tap zones,
edge motion, and tapping and dragging icons, taecd the user experient

. Reliability . The reliability of our interface solutions saigsf consumer requirements for dependability, wisc major

component of consumer satisfacti

. Durability . Our interface solutions withstand repeated uaesthphysical treatment, and temperature fluctnatiehile
providing a superior level of performan

We believe these characteristics will enable usttinue to enhance our position as a technologicabler within the markets for
mobile product applications, including smartphorieature phones, and tablets, and the PC prodptitapons markets.

Our human interface solutions are intended tofyadisr customers’ specification needs, includingtéees and functionality,
industrial design, mechanical, and electrical reguients. Our products also offer unique integradiptions, including allowing our capacitive
sensors to be placed underneath the plastic afdhiee, which allows for streamlined and stylizesidns, and LED integration to indicate
status or enhance industrial design.

Our emphasis on technological leadership and desigabilities positions us to provide unique hurmd@rface solutions that
address specific customer requirements. Our long-teorking relationships with large, global OEM®yide us with experience in satisfying

their demanding design specifications and othewirements. Our custom product solutions provide GEdith numerous benefits, including
the following:

. system integratior

. reduced product development co:

. shorter product time to marke

. compact and efficient platform

. improved product functionality and utility; ai
. product differentiation
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We work with our customers in order to meet thedtinical and functional specifications, their intias design requirements, and
their desire to differentiate their products frdmde of their competitors. This collaborative effeduces the duplication and overlap of
investment and resources, enabling our OEM cust®ioeievote more time and resources to the magkagldpment of their products.

We utilize capacitive technology rather than résésbr mechanical technology in our product soluioUnlike resistive and
mechanical technology, our solid-state capaci@ahhology has no moving parts and does not requtreation force, thereby providing a
durable, more reliable solution that can be integrénto both curved and flat surfaces. Capacitebdnologies also allow for much thinner
sensors than resistive or mechanical technologyiging for slimmer, more compact and unique indaktlesigns.

Products

Our family of product solutions allows our custom&r solve their interface needs and differentiagér products from those of th
competitors.

ClearPad

ClearPad enables the user to interact directly thighdisplay on electronic devices, such as mailartphones and feature phones
and tablets. Our ClearPad has distinct advantamgseding low-profile form factor; high reliabilitydurability, and accuracy; and low power
consumption. We typically sell our ClearPad soluigs a chip or tail, together with customer-spedifimware, to sensor manufacturers to use
in the production of discrete touchscreen produediscrete touchscreen product typically congidta transparent, thin capacitive sensor that
can be placed over any display, such as a Liqugt@kDisplay, or LCD, or an Organic Light Emittiljode, or OLED, and combined with a
flexible circuit material and a touch controlleighEach ClearPad solution is custom designedtemgmate customer-specific input preferences
such as pen input, gloved finger recognition, proty, finger hover, and air swipe functionality.

Our ClearPad Series 3 product family can providletfme tracking of ten or more fingers simultaneowstyl features stylus supg
and support for various sensor configurations udicig traditional discrete sensors, sensor-on-Mhsgh includes sensor electrodes patterned
on the bottom of the glass cover lens; on-cellcwhincludes sensor electrodes patterned on théagligfass; and in-cell, which includes sensol
electrodes patterned inside the LCD glass.

Our ClearPad Series 4 product family combines ooprietary capacitive multi-touch technology withlevice’s display driver in a
single-chip solution delivering advanced displayseananagement and improved capacitive sensingnpeaihce. Our display integration on-
cell and in-cell solutions provide cost-effectigapacitive, multi-touch interfaces for mobile desand enables thinner form factors.

Our ClearPad Series 7 product family is designedéet the requirements of the large touchscreekenéor products more close
related to clamshell notebooks, slates, tablet$ samilar devices. Our ClearPad Series 7 produdiside low-cost, single-chip touchscreen
solutions and multi-chip touchscreen solutions giesil for devices that have more demanding uset nepuirements, such as gaming
applications.

TouchPad

Our TouchPad, which takes the place and exceedsrsgonality of a mouse, is a small, touch-sewsipad that senses the
position and movement of one or more fingers osur$ace through the measurement of capacitanaeT@ichPad provides an accurate,
comfortable, and reliable method for screen naiogatursor movement, and gestures and providédstimpn for interactive input for both the
consumer and corporate markets. Our TouchPad a@otutillow our customers to provide stylish, simpker-friendly, and intuitive human
interface solutions. Our TouchPad solutions offmious advanced features, including scrolling, @mstable tap zones, tapping and dragging
of icons, and device interaction.

Our TouchPad solutions are available in a variésizes, electrical interfaces, and thicknesses.TouchPad solutions are
designed to meet the electrical and mechanicaifsgmns of our customers. Customized firmware dniver software ensure the availability
of specialized features. As a result of their setite characteristics, our TouchPad solutions havaoving parts that wear out, resulting in a
robust and reliable input solution that also alldarsunique industrial designs.

5
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ClickPad

Our ClickPad introduces a clickable mechanicalgtesd the TouchPad application that eliminatesised for physical buttons.
The buttonless design of our ClickPad allows fagua, intuitive industrial design and makes it anedlent alternative to conventional input
and navigation devices. Our ClickPad is activategiessing down on the internal tact switch to genfa left-button or right-button clicks and
provides tactile feedback similar to pressing agitgl button. The latest version of ClickPad feasu€lickEQ, a mechanical solution that
provides uniform click depth to maximize the sudarea available for gestures and improve clickoperance over hinged designs.

ForcePad

Our ForcePad is a thinner version of our ClickRaltich introduces a new dimension in control throtlgh addition of variable
force sensitivity. ForcePad is designed to prowidiesistent performance across OEM models throsgtheisign intelligence and selélibration
features. By varying the amount of force applieakcEPad is engineered to enable more intuitivepeadise user interactions in operating
system controls and applications. Designed with &mid light notebooks in mind, ForcePad is 40%rthirthan a conventional touch pad.

ThinTouch™

ThinTouch is a design technology employing an iraiiwe ramp capability that delivers a full keyboaddution that is 40% thinner
than traditional keyboard solutions. ThinTouch pdes an innovative design architecture that fat#is improved backlighting, reliability, and
improved manufacturability when compared to conieral mechanical keyboards. By combining our TowthEchnology with ThinTouch
technology, we expect to deliver keyboard solutimgeted for the next generation of thin and lighttebook PC form factors, including
ultrabooks.

Other Products

Other product solutions we offer include Dual PioigtSolutions, TouchStyk, FlexPad, ClearButtons] @auchButtons. Our dual
pointing solutions offer a TouchPad with a pointsiigk in a single notebook computer, enabling siseiselect their interface of choice.
TouchStyk is a self-contained pointing stick modilat uses capacitive technology similar to thatwf TouchPad. FlexPad is a capacitive
sensing interface which is mounted beneath a mécdideypad and allows the keypad source to be fmegtrolling and navigation, character
entry, and gesture input. A ClearButton is a ckmarsor that can be mounted under plastic, providiBlyls with easy integration and attractive
design options for scrolling and buttons. TouchB8ugtprovide capacitive buttons and scrolling cdstfor an easy-to-use and stylish interface
solution designed to replace mechanical buttons.

Capabilities

Our products are supported by a variety of featapabilities allowing for further product differémtion and easy customer
integration.

Proximity Sensin

Our proximity sensing technology enables userstiract with consumer electronics without toucHuding our latest 3D-touch
capability. With this technology, sensors in a deyisuch as a notebook PC, mobile phone, periplwrdigital photo frame, sense the press
of a user’s finger or hand to activate a functibhese sensors can illuminate LEDs for discoverabtéons, immediately wake devices from
power-saving mode, or activate other functionality.

Design Studio™

Design Studio provides customers an advanced amgrefensive touch system tool set, designed tolettad customer to evalui
touch system performance and efficiently implenien€learPad touchscreen solution.

6
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SignalClarity Technology

SignalClarity technology provides an improved slgwanoise ratio for enhanced touch detection abidenimmunity and enables
smartphone and feature phone OEMSs to support imsiype chargers and work with multiple display typ@gnalClarity technology works
with multidisplay configurations, including disceegensors, sensor-on-lens, on-cell, and in-calkamsolutions.

Synaptics Gesture Suite

Our Synaptics Gesture Suite, or SB®'S provides users with an intuitive way to interactductively with their notebook compute
SGS was developed by analyzing the most commonfleark from entertainment activities, such as vieywphotos and listening to music, to
productivity activities, such as accessing email$ presentations. The result is an intelligent ilisalnodel that makes it intuitive for
consumers to understand and discover featurey g@sililting in a better user experience. SGS sgmts a growing portfolio of gestures
available on our interface solutions. These gestare compatible with a wide range of Microsoft Wéws and Linux applications to enhance
the value and productivity of notebook PCs andpterial devices that use our TouchPads. Gesturesntiyrin the market include Pinch,
Rotate, ChiralMotion Scrolling, Two-Finger ScroliinThree-Finger Flick, Three-Finger Down, and FBurger Flick.

ChiralMotion Gesture

With our ChiralMotion Gesture technology, the usan apply one continuous circular motion to inéiptecise and fine-tuned
scrolling on any two-dimensional input surface,tsas our TouchPad and ClearPad solutions.

ChiralMotion Gesture technology is well suited $onall handheld products, such as feature-rich radtahdsets, personal
navigation systems, and personal media playerséelaire easy access for entertainment, musico#ret digital files. Scrolling through long
documents or pages on a notebook PC becomes sivhple using a TouchPad enhanced with ChiralMotiahranersing the direction of
scrolling simply requires the user to reverse fheutar motion of their finger.

Enhanced Gesture Recognitior

Our Enhanced Gesture Recognition is a suite ofrekdhgestures included in our firmware. Customarseasily enable
SingleTouch gestures, such as Tap, Double TapsPRard Flick; DualTouch gestures, such as PinchParat Rotate; and mulfinger gesture
for ClearPad directly from our touch module firme&aNo additional recognition software is requiredtioe host processor to implement these
gestures. This approach lowers host processornesoequirements and ensures that gestures arerirepted using our proven pattern-
recognition technology.

Technologies

We have developed and own an extensive array bhtdagies, encompassing ASICs, firmware, softwarechanical and electric
designs, display systems, pattern recognition,tanch-sensing technologies. With 260 U.S. patenferce and 157 U.S. patents pending, as
well as many non-U.S. counterparts, we continugeteelop technology in these areas. We believe tteebmologies and the related intellectua
property rights create barriers for competitors athalwv us to provide human interface solutions iragety of high-growth markets.

Our broad line of human interface solutions cuigeistbased upon the following key technologies:

. capacitive position sensing technolo

. capacitive force sensing technoloi

. transparent capacitive position sensing technol
. pattern recognition technolog

. mixec-signal integrated circuit technolog

. display systems and circuit technolo

. multi-touch technology

. proprietary microcontroller technology; a

. ThinTouch technology
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In addition to these technologies, we develop fiarevand device driver software that we incorpoirgteour products, which
provide unique features, such as virtual scrolllgtomizable tap zones, PalmCheck, EdgeMotiontamuing and dragging of icons. In
addition, our ability to integrate all of our pras to interface with major operating systems pfesius with a competitive advantage.

Capacitive Position Sensing Technologhis technology provides a method for sensingotiesence, position, and contact area of
one or more fingers or a stylus on a flat or cursedace. Our technology works with very light thusupports full multi-touch capabilities,
and provides highly responsive cursor navigatiomling, and selection. It uses no moving parés) be implemented under plastic, and is
extremely durable.

Capacitive Force Sensing Technologhhis technology senses the direction and magaitich force applied to an object. The
object can either move when force is applied, éikgpical joystick used for gaming applicationsjtaran be isometric, with no perceptible
motion during use, like our TouchStyk. The primagmpetition for this technology is resistive strgauge technology. Resistive strain gauge
technology requires electronics that can sensesmall changes in resistance, presenting challetogih& design of that circuitry, including
sensitivity to electrical noise and interferencer ®lectronic circuitry determines the magnitudd direction of an applied force, permits very
accurate sensing of tiny changes in capacitanckpamimizes electrical interference from other s

Transparent Capacitive Position Sensing Technoldbyis technology allows us to build transparemtsses for use with our
capacitive position sensing technology, such asimClearPad. It has all the advantages of ourdatya position sensing technology and
allows for visual feedback when incorporated witthisplay device, such as an LCD. Our technologystts full multi-touch, does not require
calibration, does not produce undesirable intemefééctions, and has reduced power requiremertsyialg for longer battery life.

Pattern Recognition Technologifhis technology is a set of software algorithmd gechniques for converting reabrld data, suc
as gestures and handwriting, into a digital forat tan be recognized and manipulated within a ceenp@ur technology provides reliable
gesture decoding and handwriting recognition, ardle used in other applications such as signaarification for a richer user experience.

Mixed-Signal Integrated Circuit Technologhhis hybrid analog-digital integrated circuit teckwmgy combines the power of digital
computation with the ability to interface with ndigital, real-world signals, such as the positidadinger or stylus on a surface. Our patentec
design techniques permit us to utilize this techgglto optimize our core ASIC engine for all ouogucts. Our mixed-signal technology
consists of a broad portfolio of circuit expertisareas such as the following:

. precision capacitance measurerr

. power management (switching converters, charge puam Lov-dropout regulators*LDO<"))
. analo¢-to-digital and digite-to-analog converter

. LCD source and Vcom drive

. high-speed serial interfact

. display timing controllers* TCON¢")

. SRAM, DRAM, and no-volatile memorie:

. VLSI digital circuits with multiple clock and powe&lomains
. communications and signal processing circ
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Display Systems and Circuit Technologhhis technology enables us to develop optimiagtdn interface solutions with improved
compatibility with their application environmeni&his technology consists of mobile and large fordigplay semiconductor expertise,
including the following functional blocks:

. TCONSs

. TFT gamma reference

. Vcom drivers

. source driver:

. high-speed serial interfaces such as MIPI DSI and Quatcd/1DDI

. display power circuits such as inductive switchehgrge pumps, and LD(

This technology also enables us to develop advapiaatiicts that combine the functions of the displagt touch sensing systems
enable highly integrated display and touch fundlity with improved performance, thinner form fastoand lower system cost.

Proprietary Microcontroller TechnologyOne example of this technology is our proprietiybit microcontroller core that is
embedded in the digital portion of our mixed sigA8IC, which allows us to optimize our ASIC for [t sensing tasks. Our embedded
microcontroller provides great flexibility in custdzing our products via firmware, which eliminatbe need to design new circuitry for each
new application.

Competing Technology

Many human interface solutions currently utilizeistive sensing technology. Resistive sensing t@olgy consists of a flexible
membrane above a flat, rigid, electrically conduesurface. When finger or stylus pressure is adph the membrane, it deforms until it
makes contact with the rigid layer below, at whpdhint attached electronics can determine the posdf the finger or stylus. Since the flexible
membrane is a moving part, it is susceptible tohanical wear and will eventually suffer degradedfqgrenance. Due to the way that such
resistive position sensors work, it is not possiblethem to detect more than a single finger giustat any given time. The positional accuracy
of a resistive sensor is limited by the unifornofithe resistive coating as well as by the meclsaoidhe flexible membrane. Finally, using
resistive technology over displays, like LCDs, fesin reduced display brightness, requiring the afhigher power backlighting and thereby
reducing the battery life of the device.

Research and Development

We conduct ongoing research and development pragtaat focus on advancing our technologies, dewaopew products,
improving design and manufacturing processes, ahdrecing the quality and performance of our prodoaitions. Our goal is to provide our
customers with innovative solutions that addres# tieeds and improve their competitive positidsr research and development focuses or
advancing our existing interface technologies, irprg our current product solutions, and expandingtechnologies to serve new markets.
Our longterm vision is to offer human interface solutiosisch as touch, handwriting, vision, voice capabsitand other biometrics that car
readily incorporated into varied electronic devices

Our research and development programs focus ogebelopment of accurate, easy to use, reliablejrandive human interfaces
for electronic devices. We believe our innovativeiface technologies can be applied to many diversducts. We believe the interface is a
key factor in the differentiation of these produstée believe that our interface technologies enabl® provide customers with product
solutions that have significant advantages overméditive technologies in terms of functionalitgesipower consumption, durability, and
reliability. We also intend to pursue strategi@tiginships and acquisitions to enhance our researdtidevelopment capabilities, leverage our
technology, and shorten our time to market with teshnological applications.
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Our research, design, and engineering teams frédgueork directly with our customers to design @amtsolutions for specific
applications. We focus on enabling our customersseycome technical barriers and enhance the pesgfioce of their products. We believe our
engineering know-how and electronic systems exgeprovide significant benefits to our customergbgbling them to concentrate on their
core competencies of production and marketing.

As of the end of fiscal 2013, we employed 573 peaplour technology, engineering, and product deiigctions in the United
States, Taiwan, Hong Kong, Korea, Japan, and Chioaresearch and development expenses were apmatety $144.7 million, $118.0
million, and $105.0 million in fiscal 2013, 20112011, respectively.

Intellectual Property Rights

Our success and ability to compete depend in paduo ability to maintain the proprietary aspedtsur technologies and products.
We rely on a combination of patents, copyrightsgér secrets, trademarks, confidentiality agreemantsother contractual provisions to
protect our intellectual property, but these measunay provide only limited protection. Our resbadesign, and engineering teams freque
work directly with our OEM customers to design custsolutions for specific applications.

We hold 260 U.S. patents in force and have 157 pagnts pending, as well as many non-U.S. couatsrpo the U.S. patents and
U.S. patents pending. Collectively, these patemispatents pending cover various aspects of outd@hnologies, including touch sensing,
sensing, handwriting recognition, customizablezapes, edge motion, and virtual scrolling techn@egOur proprietary software is protected
by copyright laws and the source code for our pedary software is protected under applicable tisetzet laws.

Our extensive array of technologies includes ASfldsware, software, and pattern recognition anslifian sensing technologies.
Our products rely on a combination of these teabgiek, making it difficult to use any single teclogy as the basis for replicating our
products. Furthermore, the length and customizaifdahe customer design cycle serve to proteciretiectual property rights.

Patent applications that we have filed or mayifiléhe future may not result in a patent beingessuur issued patents may be
challenged, invalidated, or circumvented, and ctaihour patents may not be of sufficient scopstmmgth, or issued in the proper geographi
regions, to provide meaningful protection or anynoatercial advantage. We have not applied for, andaddave, any copyright registration on
our technologies or products. We have applieddister certain of our trademarks in the United étatnd other countries. There can be no
assurance that we will obtain registrations oféradrks in key markets. Failure to obtain registregicould compromise our ability to protect
fully our trademarks and brands and could incréfaseisk of challenge from third parties to our eéeur trademarks and brands. In addition,
our failure to enforce and protect our intellectpidperty rights or obtain from third parties tlight to use necessary technology could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargabition, and operating results.

We do not consistently rely on written agreemerith wur customers, suppliers, manufacturers, ahdraecipients of our
technologies and products, and therefore some sactet protection may be lost and our abilityritbece our intellectual property rights may
be limited. Furthermore, our customers, suppliex@nufacturers, and other recipients of our techgie®and products may seek to use our
technologies and products without appropriate &tiohs. In the past, we did not consistently regoir employees and consultants to enter
into confidentiality, employment, or proprietaryfonmation and invention agreements. Therefore foumer employees and consultants may
try to claim some ownership interest in our tecbhgas and products and may use our technologiepranilicts competitively and without
appropriate limitations.

Other companies, including our competitors, mayettgy technologies that are similar or superioruotechnologies, duplicate our
technologies, or design around our patents andhaag or obtain patents or other proprietary rigihés would prevent, limit, or interfere with
our ability to make, use, or sell our productsekfive intellectual property protection may be wibable or limited in some foreign countries
which we operate, such as China and Taiwan. Unaattbparties may attempt to copy or otherwiseasggcts of our technologies and
products that we regard as proprietary. There eamobassurance that our means of protecting owrigtary rights in the United States or
abroad will be adequate or that competitors witlindependently develop similar technologies. If mtellectual property protection is
insufficient to protect our intellectual propertghits, we could face increased competition in tlaek®t for our technologies and products.
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We may receive notices from third parties thatrolaur products infringe their rights. From timetitne, we receive notice from
third parties of the intellectual property rightsh parties have obtained. We cannot be certatrotivaechnologies and products do not and
will not infringe issued patents or other propngtaghts of third parties. Any infringement claimgith or without merit, could result in
significant litigation costs and diversion of resms, including the payment of damages, which cbalte a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, and operating result

Customers

Our customers include many of the world’s largesbite smartphone, feature phone, tablet, and PC §bslsed on unit
shipments, as well as a variety of consumer elesananufacturers. Our demonstrated track recbrelcbnological leadership, design
innovation, product performance, cost effectivenass ontime deliveries have resulted in our leadershiptjgosin providing human interfac
solutions. We believe our strong relationship vaitt OEM customers, many of which are also curresiélyeloping tablets, ultrabooks, and
mobile application products, will continue to pamit us as a source of supply for their productrirffsgs.

Our industry-leading OEM customers in fiscal 20d8uded the following:

» BlackBerry ¢ Nokia

» Hewlet-Packarc e Samsung

e HTC e Sharp

* Huawei e Sony Mobile
* Lenovo * Toshiba

* LG Electronics « ZTE

We generally supply custom-designed products tad#M customers through their contract manufactusesupply chain. We sell
our custom-designed products directly to theserachtmanufacturers, some of which include Compadehtec, Kuroda, Techmosa, Tomen,
TPK, and Wistron. Sales to Samsung accounted foroxpnately 14% of our net revenue for fiscal 20%ales to TPK accounted for
approximately 12% of our net revenue for fiscal 2040 customer accounted for more than 10% of etirevenue for fiscal 2011.

We consider both the OEMs and their contract mantufars or supply chain partners to be our custenBwth the OEMs and their
partners may determine the design and pricing reménts and make the overall decision regardingisleeof our human interface solutions in
their products. The contract manufacturers pladersrwith us for the purchase of our products, tileeto the products purchased upon
shipment by us, and pay us directly for those pageb. These customers have no return privilegepefar warranty provisions.

Strategic Relationships

We have used strategic relationships to enhancalility to offer value-added customer solutionshia past. We intend to enter
into additional strategic relationships with comiegrthat may help us serve our target markets.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our product solutions for incorporatioritiie products of our OEM customers. We generd#s srough direct sales
employees as well as outside sales representatigedistributors. Our sales personnel receive anbat technical assistance and support fron
our internal engineering resources because ofitidyhtechnical nature of our product solutionsleSdrequently result from multi-level sales
efforts that involve senior management, designreegyis, and our sales personnel interacting witlcostomers’ decision makers throughout
the product development and order process.

As of the end of fiscal 2013, we employed 174 sates marketing professionals. We maintain nineaust support offices
domestically and internationally, which are locaitethe United States, Taiwan, China, Korea, Japad,Switzerland. In addition, we utilize
sales representatives/sales distributors in Cleggan, and Taiwan.

International sales constituted over 95% of ouerese for each of fiscal 2013, 2012, and 2011. Axiprately 70% of our sales
were made to companies located in China and Taitatprovide design and manufacturing servicesrfajor notebook computer and mobile
product applications OEMs. All of our sales weraealainated in U.S. dollars. This information shobt&lread in conjunction with Note 13 to
the financial statements contained elsewhere sréport.
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Manufacturing

We employ a virtual manufacturing platform throughd-party relationships. We currently utilize ¢élersemiconductor wafer
manufacturers to supply us with silicon wafersgné&ting our proprietary design specifications. Thepleted silicon wafers are forwarded to
third-party package and test processors for fupphecessing into die and packaged ASICs, as afgidicevhich are then utilized in our custom
interface products or processed as our ASIC-basietian.

After processing and testing, the die and ASICsaresigned to various contract manufacturers feemmbly or are shipped directly
to our customers. During the assembly processgieunr ASIC is either combined with other composantcomplete the module for our
custom human interface solution or the ASIC is kepa standalone ASIC finished good. The finislesgmbled product is subsequently
shipped directly to our customers or by our contragnufacturers directly to our customers for ingign into their products.

We believe our virtual manufacturing strategy pded a scalable business model; enables us to dosteeon our core
competencies of research and development, technal@gvances, and product design and engineeaimjreduces our capital expenditures.
In addition, this strategy significantly reduces aworking capital requirements for inventory be@uge do not incur most of our
manufacturing costs until we have actually shippedinterface products to our customers and bilede customers for those products.

Our third-party contract manufacturers and semiocotat fabricators are Asian-based organizationspydgide our contract
manufacturers with six-month rolling forecasts af production requirements. We do not, howevergHaug-term agreements with any of our
contract manufacturers that guarantee productipaaity, prices, lead times, or delivery schedulag. reliance on those parties exposes us to
vulnerability owing to our dependence on few sosireesupply. We believe, however, that other saiafesupply are available. In addition,
may establish relationships with other contract mfacturers in order to reduce our dependence omaeysource of supply.

Periodically, we purchase inventory from our cocttraanufacturers when a customer delays its dgliseledule or cancels its
order. In those circumstances in which our custdmasrcancelled its order and we purchase inveffitony our contract manufacturers, we
consider a write-down to reduce the carrying valiighe inventory purchased to its net realizable@awe charge write-downs to reduce the
carrying value of obsolete, slow moving, and noabls inventory to net realizable value to costesenue. We also record a liability and
charge to cost of revenue for estimated lossesaniory we are obligated to purchase from ourre@bimanufacturers when such losses
become probable from customer delays or order datioes.

Backlog

As of the end of fiscal 2013, we had a backlogrdios of $96.0 million, an increase of $46.5 millicompared with a backlog of
orders as of the end of fiscal 2012 of $49.5 millibhe mix of products ordered by customers aetitbof fiscal 2013 had a slightly lower
average selling price than those ordered at theo&fisical 2012, however, the quantity on backlagsvsignificantly higher due to improved
demand for both mobile product applications andpRigluct applications as of the end of fiscal 2048 pared with the end of fiscal 2012,
resulting in the increase in backlog. Our backlogsists of product orders for which purchase ortlax® been received and which are
scheduled for shipment in the subsequent quartest Brders are subject to rescheduling or canamilatith limited penalties. Because of the
possibility of customer changes in product shipreeotir backlog as of a particular date may nondeative of net sales for any succeeding
period.

Competition

Our touch-based semiconductor products are saddirairkets for mobile applications products, PC pobvépplications and other
electronic devices. The markets for touchscreedymts are characterized by rapidly changing teagybénd intense competition. Our
principal competition in the sale of touchscreeodpicts includes Atmel, Cypress, Elan Micro, FoadteGoodix, Maxim, Melfas, MStar
Semiconductor, STMicroelectronics, and various ottenpanies involved in human interface solutidbgr principal competitors in the sale
notebook touch pads are Alps Electric and Elan déitactronics. In certain cases, large OEMs mayldp\edternative human interface
solutions for their own products or provide key gaments for use in designing human interface smisti

12



Table of Contents

We believe our solutions-based systems engineexpgrience coupled with our technologies offer fiesxan terms of size, power
consumption, durability, ease of use, cost effectdass, and reliability when compared to our congrstand other technologies. While our
markets continue to evolve, we believe we are p@ditioned to compete aggressively for this busiiesed on our proven track record, our
technological expertise, our design innovation, teshnology roadmap, our marquee global customse,lmnd our reputation for design
innovation. Our competitive position could be adety affected if one or more of our current OEMduee their orders or if we are unable to
develop new customers for our human interface solst

Employees

As of the end of fiscal 2013, we employed a tofa8%? persons, including 105 in operations, finaraeel administration; 174 in
sales and marketing; and 573 in research and dawelat. Of these employees, 487 were located innNamerica, 360 in Asia/Pacific, and
five in Europe. We consider our relationship witlir employees to be good, and none of our emplogeesepresented by a union in collective
bargaining with us.

Competition for qualified personnel in our indusisyextremely intense, particularly for engineerarg other technical personnel.
Our success depends on our continued ability tacifthire, and retain qualified personnel.

Executive Officers of the Registrant
The following table sets forth certain informatim@garding our executive officers as of August 1812

Name Age Position

Richard A. Bergma 49 President and Chief Executive Officer, and Dire:

Kathleen A. Bayless 57 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, &¢ary, and
Treasure

Kevin D. Barber 53 Senior Vice President and General Manager, Smagl&y
Division

Scott Deutscl 48 Senior Vice President, World Wide Sa

Bret C. Sewel 52 Senior Vice President of Corporate Developn

Stanley A. Swearinge 53 Senior Vice President of Strategic Technoli

Alex Wong 58 Senior Vice President of World Wide Operati

Richard A. Bergmahas been President and Chief Executive Officemofcompany since September 2011. Prior to joiniag o
company, Mr. Bergman was Senior Vice President@aderal Manager of Advanced Micro Device’'s (“AMDPyoduct Group from May 20(
to September 2011. From October 2006 to May 2009Bdrgman served as Senior Vice President andi@eianager of AMD’s Graphics
Product Group. Mr. Bergman'’s career at AMD bega®atober 2006 when AMD acquired ATI Technologie&AT!"), where he served as
Senior Vice President and General Manager of PQig&rBrior to ATI, Mr. Bergman served as Chief OgiagpOfficer at S3 Graphics, a
division of SonicBlue Inc. Mr. Bergman has heldisetevel management positions in the technologidfsince his early roles at Texas
Instruments, Inc. and IBM. Mr. Bergman holds a Bdohof Science degree in electrical engineeringifthe University of Michigan and a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from theversity of Colorado.

13



Table of Contents

Kathleen A. Bayledsas been Senior Vice President, Chief Financiac®ff Secretary, and Treasurer of our company since
September 2009. Ms. Bayless served as the SergerRfiesident — Finance of our company from Mard920 September 2009. Ms. Bayless
spent 13 years at Komag, a leading supplier offilimdisks to the disk drive industry, where skeev&d most recently as Executive Vice
President, Secretary, and Chief Financial Offi@gibning in September 2002. Prior to joining Komislg, Bayless held the position of Senior
Audit Manager at the public accounting firm of Br&sYoung. Ms. Bayless holds a Bachelor of Sciedegree from California State
University Fresno and is a certified public accaumnt

Kevin D. Barbethas been Senior Vice President and General Mamd@mart Display Division of our company since Jayu
2011. Prior to joining our company, Mr. Barber vtsef Executive Officer of ACCO Semiconductor sirg98. From 2007 to 2008,
Mr. Barber served as a principal consultant at PR@ddised on the electronics industry. Mr. Barbes Banior Vice President, General
Manager of the Mobile Solutions business at Skyw@klutions from 2003 to 2006 where he was resptfir delivering innovative RF
products to the mobile industry. Mr. Barber wasiSeXice President of Operations at Skyworks Solusi from 2002 to 2003 and Conexant
Systems from 2001 to 2002. Previously, Mr. Barleddvarious senior operations positions at Cone®gatems and Rockwell Semiconductor.
Mr. Barber holds a Bachelor of Science in Electri©agineering from San Diego State University anasiérs of Business Administration frc
Pepperdine University.

Scott Deutschas been Senior Vice President of World Wide Saflesir company since January 2013. Prior to joirong
company, Mr. Deutsch served as Vice President afldMade Sales for AuthenTec from 2010 to 2012. Meutsch held positions of Vice
President of World Wide Sales at Alereon from 2G92009 and Vice President of Sales and MarketinganDisk's OEM Consumer
Products Division from 2004 to 2008. Earlier in bageer, Mr. Deutsch was the Director of SalegtferWestern U.S. with MMC Networks.
Before joining MMC Networks, Mr. Deutsch spent dighars at Cypress Semiconductor in various saldsrenagement roles. Mr. Deutsch
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in electricgirexering from Fresno State University.

Bret C. Sewelhas been Senior Vice President of Corporate Dewadop of our company since May 2012. Prior to jaindur
company, Mr. Sewell served as Executive Vice Pezdidt Coulomb Technologies from 2010 to 2011, serded as Chief Executive Officer
Venturi Wireless from 2005 to 2007 and Kiwi Netwsifikom 2003 to 2004. After SnapTraskdcquisition by Qualcomm, he served as pres
of Qualcomm’s SnapTrack subsidiary and Senior Wioesident in Qualcomm’semiconductor division. Earlier in his career, Bewell serve
as general manager for the Asia Pacific divisidn®@ael Communications and Aspect Telecommunicatidir. Sewell holds a Master of
Business Administration from the Wharton Schoathaf University of Pennsylvania, a Master of Artdriternational Studies from the
University of Pennsylvania, and a Bachelor of Ant8iological Anthropology from Harvard University.

Stanley A. Swearingdras been Senior Vice President of Strategic Tedgyabf our company since July 2010. Mr. Swearinges
also responsible for corporate development from 200 through May 2012. Prior to joining our compaMr. Swearingen served as a
member of the Office of the President at MiniCitsidfrom March 2009 to October 2009 where he wasamesible for strategy and corporate
development. From August 2004 to November 2008,3vrearingen was the Vice President and General §tardd the Linear Product
business unit at Skyworks Solutions, Inc., whickigles, manufactures, sells, and supports a diyeEntélio of RF products and licensing of
intellectual property. Mr. Swearingen was Vice Rtest and General Manager of Agere Systems Congp@onnectivity division, where he
was responsible for the design and manufacturingirefd and wireless connectivity solutions from awer 2000 to August 2004. From July
1999 to November 2000, Mr. Swearingen served asfEhiecutive Officer of Quantex Microsystems, adirprovider of personal computers,
servers, and Internet infrastructure products. $ivearingen has also held senior management pasatddational Semiconductor, Cyrix, and
Digital Equipment Corp.

Alex Wonghas been Senior Vice President of World Wide Oparatof our company since July 2010. Mr. Wong serag Vice
President of World Wide Operations of our compaoyf September 2006 to July 2010. From 2003 to 2PB6Wong served our company as
Managing Director of Hong Kong and Director of Qgitéwns. Prior to joining our company, Mr. Wong helitious management positions with
National Semiconductor Corporation, including Gahétanager for National Joint Ventures in China alwhg Kong and Director ¢
Corporate Business Development. Mr. Wong holds éhBlar of Science degree in Computer Science fraiifaZnia State University at
Northridge and a Masters in Business Administrafiom the University of East Asia, Mace

There are no arrangements, understandings, onfaetdtionships pursuant to which our executivéceffls were selected. There are
no related party transactions between us and agutive officers. We have entered into indemnif@matgreements with our officers and
directors.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following factatsgether with all the other information includadhis report, in evaluating our
company and our business.

We currently depend on our human interface solutios for the mobile product applications market, incluing tablets, and the PC
product applications market for substantially all of our revenue, and any downturn in sales of theserpducts would adversely affect oul
business, revenue, operating results, and financigbsition.

We currently depend on our human interface solstfonthe mobile product applications market arelRIC product applications
market for substantially all of our revenue. Anynahdurn in sales of these products would adverségctour business, revenue, operating
results, and financial position. Weakness in thepR&luct applications market in fiscal 2013 advigraéfected our business although this
weakness was overcome by strength in the mobiléysteapplications market. Any weakness in the ntari@@ mobile product applications or
PC product applications, particularly in the higidgortions of such markets, could adversely afdectbusiness, revenues, operating results,
and financial condition. Net revenue for our hunma@arface solutions for our mobile product applicas and PC product applications
accounted for approximately 64% and 36%, respdgtioé our net revenue for fiscal 2013, 49% and 51éspectively, of our net revenue for
fiscal 2012, and 52% and 48%, respectively, ofrmirrevenue for fiscal 2011.

The lack of market acceptance of our product smhsticompared with competitive products in the neobihartphone and feature
phone market, the tablet market, or the PC prodpplications markets, or our inability to be a iegdsupplier of human interface solutions for
mobile smartphone, feature phone, tablet prodacis,PC products would have a negative effect orbosiness, operating results, and
financial position. Similarly, a softening of dentkin the mobile smartphone and feature phone matketablet market, or the notebook
portion of the PC product applications market,duced level of our participation in the notebooktjpm of the PC product applications mar
or a slowdown of growth in the notebook portiortted PC product applications market because of ecoaspreferences, the emergence of
ultrabooks not including our product solutionsptiter factors would cause our business, operagigglts, and financial position to suffer.

Net revenue from our human interface solutions fomobile product applications has been volatile in th past, and may not increase or
be less volatile in the future.

Net revenue from our human interface solutionsriobile product applications, particularly mobileatphones and feature
phones, has been volatile in the past. Our nethtevérom our human interface solutions for mobiledoct applications may not increase or be
less volatile in the future. Net revenue from oumtan interface solutions for mobile product appiass was $424.1 million in fiscal 2013,
$270.1 million in fiscal 2012, and $309.1 milliamfiscal 2011. Our interface business for mobiledpict applications faces many uncertain
including our success in enhancing our market simaggolving markets dominated by a limited numbeOEMs and market acceptance of oul
product solutions over competitive product solusio@ur inability to address these uncertaintiessssfully and to be a leading supplier of
human interfaces for mobile product applicationsildamegatively affect our business.

We have transitioned a significant portion of our poduct solutions for the mobile smartphone and featre phone market in fiscal 2012
from full module solutions to chip or tail solutions, which has resulted in lower revenue per unit.

We have transitioned a significant portion of otwduct solutions for the mobile smartphone anduieaphone market from full
module solutions to chip or tail solutions, whidkshresulted in lower revenue per unit. Historigallg provided a significant portion of our
mobile smartphone and feature phone customersandgtimplete touchscreen module, including our ped@ry controller ASIC, associated
electronics, firmware, software, and systems eraging and design as well as a third-party capacgensor and module assembly. As a resul
of industry factors, many of our customers are mg\o either a chip solution in which we offer quioprietary controller ASIC, firmware,
software, and systems engineering and design tétlctistomer utilizing third-parties for the asstazicelectronics, sensor, and module
assembly or a tail solution in which we offer ouogrietary controller ASIC, associated electronfecsyware, software, and systems
engineering and design with the customer utilizimigd-parties for the sensor and module assemhlying fiscal 2012, our full module
solutions for the mobile smartphone and featurephroarket declined from approximately 50% of quérteobile product revenue in the
prior year to approximately 1% of quarterly molpl@duct revenue. During fiscal 2013, our full maglablutions for the mobile smartphone
and feature phone market declined to less thanfl§aarterly mobile product revenue. Our chip saos for mobile smartphones and feature
phones typically generate lower revenue per uait thur full module solutions.
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Our historical financial performance is based on ouhuman interface solutions for mobile product appications and net revenue
generated from our human interface solutions for tle notebook computer market, and may not be indicatie of our future performance.

Our historical financial performance is based onfaiman interface solutions for mobile product &gtlons, particularly mobile
smartphones and feature phones, and tablets, haswstt revenue generated from our human intedalkgions for the notebook computer
market. As recently as fiscal 2008, we derivedrgdanajority of our net revenue from the sale af bouchPad products for notebook
computers. In fiscal 2011, net revenue from our &mimmterface solutions for mobile product appliocas exceeded net revenue from our PC
product solutions for the first time in our histoty fiscal 2012, net revenue from our human istegf solutions for mobile product applications
decreased and was less than our net revenue froRproduct applications. In fiscal 2013, net e from our human interface touchscreel
solutions for mobile product applications againeeded net revenue from our PC product solutionthdriuture, we expect a larger
concentration of revenue from our human interfaatat®ns for mobile smartphones and feature phaiadxets and large touchscreen
applications than from our human interface touchgzldtions for notebook computers. However, we teaweore limited operating history in
the markets for mobile product applications, inahgdmobile smartphones and feature phones, antelihoiperating history for other products,
such as tablets and ultrabooks. In addition, icafi2012 we transitioned our product solutionstifigr mobile smartphone and feature phone
market from full module solutions to chip or taillgtions; this trend continued in fiscal 2013 anel anticipate that chip solutions will be the
primary solution during fiscal 2014.

We cannot assure you that our human interface busass for new markets will be successful or that weilhbe able to continue to
generate significant revenue from these markets.

Our product solutions may not be successful in mawkets despite the fact that these product soisittme capable of enabling
people to interact more easily and intuitively wathvide variety of mobile computing, communicatientertainment, and electronic devices in
addition to notebook computers and mobile smartph@nd feature phones. We are currently targetimgapidly developing tablet market &
the ultrabook portion of the PC product applicasiomarket. Our success in these markets will depéenthrily on the success in these markets
of the products of our OEM customers who utilize solutions for their products. As a result, wendd know whether our product solutions
the tablet market and the ultrabook portion ofBiproduct applications market will result in astalntial portion of our revenue on a
consistent basis. Our inability to become a leadimgplier in the tablet market and the ultrabookipo of the PC product applications market
would result in a slower growth rate than we cutlieanticipate. The failure to succeed in the tablarket and the ultrabook portion of the PC
product applications market would result in no netan the substantial investments we have madatmahd plan to make in the future to
penetrate such markets.

Various target markets for our interface solutiasgh as tablets, large touchscreen applicatiatsdimg automotive touchscreens,
may develop slower than anticipated or could wikpmpeting technologies. The markets for cerththese products depend in part upon the
continued development and deployment of wirelessaher technologies, which may or may not addiiessieeds of users of these products.

Our ability to generate significant revenue fromvrmaarkets will depend on various factors, includihg following:

. the development and growth of these mark

. the ability of our technologies and product solnsido address the needs of these markets, thegmitperformance
requirements of OEMs, and the preferences of easuanc

. our ability to provide OEMs with human interfacdwgmns that provide advantages in terms of sib&gr consumption,
reliability, durability, performance, and va-added features compared with alternative soluti
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Many manufacturers of these products have wellbéisteed relationships with competitive suppliersir@ngoing success in these
markets will require us to offer better performaatternatives to other solutions at competitivet€oghe failure of any of these target markets
to develop as we expect, or our failure to serese¢hmarkets to a significant extent, will impede sales growth and could result in
substantially reduced earnings. We cannot preldéesize or growth rate of these markets or the etatkare we will achieve in these marke
the future.

Market acceptance of our customers’ existing or neyproducts that utilize our human interface solutionmay decline or may not develop
and, as a result, our revenue may decline or may hincrease.

We do not sell any products to end users. Inst@ad]esign various human interface solutions that3fM customers incorporate
into their products. As a result, our success deépammost entirely upon the widespread market d@acep of our OEM customers’ products.
We do not control or influence the manufacture ppoton, distribution, or pricing of the productsthincorporate our human interface
solutions. Instead, we depend on our customersatwfacture and distribute products incorporatinghauman interface solutions and to
generate consumer demand through marketing andgpieomal activities. Even if our technologies sucfally meet our customers’ price and
performance goals, our sales would decline ortdailevelop if our customers do not achieve comnaésticcess in selling their products that
incorporate our human interface solutions.

Competitive advances by OEMs in the mobile pro@ydlications or PC product applications markets doanot utilize our human
interface solutions broadly in their product offeys at the expense of our OEM customers couldtresldst sales opportunities. Within the
mobile product application markets, the mobile gpteone market has become an important factor iroparating results. Any failure to
expand our presence in this market, a significemtdown in the use of our human interface solutiop®ur customers in this market, the
reduced demand for our customers’ products inrttaigket, or a slowdown of growth in this market wbatversely affect our revenue.

If we fail to maintain and build relationships with our customers and do not continue to satisfy ourustomers, we may lose future sales
and our revenue may stagnate or decline.

Because our success depends on the widespreadtmeckptance of our OEM customers’ products, wet mogtinue to maintain
our relationships with the leading notebook comp@EMSs and expand our relationships with mobile iiptene and feature phone and tablet
OEMs. In addition, we must identify areas of sigraht growth potential in other markets, estabtidationships with OEMs in those markets,
and assist those OEMs in developing products thaxour interface product solutions. Our failurédientify potential growth opportunities,
particularly in the mobile smartphone and featurere market, the tablet market, and the ultrabaskign of the PC product applications
market, or establish and maintain relationship WEMSs in those markets, would prevent our busifress growing in those markets.

Our ability to meet the expectations of our custmmequires us to provide innovative human interfaalutions for customers on a
timely and cost-effective basis and to maintain@uer satisfaction with our human interface sohsid/Ne must match our design and
production capacity with customer demand, mainsainsfactory delivery schedules, and meet perfoomguoals. If we are unable to achieve
these goals for any reason, our customers coultteetheir purchases from us and our sales woulkhéear fail to develop.

Our customer relationships also can be affecteftiprs affecting our customers that are unreltdeslir performance. These
factors can include a myriad of situations, inchgdbusiness reversals of customers, determinatiprsistomers to change their product mi;
abandon business segments, or mergers, consafidatipacquisitions involving our customers.

The loss of revenue from one or more large customecould harm our business, financial condition, an@perating results.

In fiscal 2013, one customer, Samsung, accountetiféh of our net revenue. In fiscal 2012, one amstig TPK, accounted for 12
of our net revenue. In fiscal 2011, no customepanted for more than 10% of our net revenue. Addilly, receivables from Samsung
consisted of 27% of accounts receivable at theoéffidcal 2013 and receivables from Compal and Wistonsisted of 14% and 12% of
accounts receivable, respectively, at the endschfi2012. There were no other customers who repres more than 10% of our accounts
receivable at the end of fiscal 2013 or 2012.
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Compal, Inventec, Kuroda, Techmosa, Tomen, TPK \&igiron are some of the contract manufacturerssyae our OEM
customers. Any material delay, cancellation, ountidn of orders from any one or more of these remttmanufacturers or the OEMs they
serve could harm our business, financial conditzorg operating results. The adverse effect woulchbee substantial if our other customers di
not increase their orders or if we are unsuccessfgénerating orders for human interface solutimos new customers. Many of these cont
manufacturers sell to the same OEMSs, and therefareoncentration with certain OEMs may be highantwith any individual contract
manufacturer. Concentration in our customer basenmeake fluctuations in revenue and earnings morerseand make business planning n
difficult.

We rely on others for our production and any interruptions of these arrangements could disrupt our altity to fill our customers’
orders.

We utilize contract manufacturers for all of ouoguction requirements. The majority of our manuféiog is conducted in China,
Taiwan, and Thailand by contract manufacturersahsd perform services for numerous other compakieessdo not have a guaranteed level o
production capacity with any of our contract mawtiieers. Qualifying new contract manufacturers, spekifically semiconductor foundries
time consuming and might result in unforeseen mastufing and operations problems. The loss of elatipnships with our contract
manufacturers or assemblers or their inabilitydnduct their manufacturing and assembly serviceasas anticipated in terms of capacity,
cost, quality, and timeliness could adversely aféer ability to fill customer orders in accordaneith required delivery, quality, and
performance requirements. If this were to occug,résulting decline in revenue would harm our bessn

We depend on third parties to maintain satisfactorymanufacturing yields and delivery schedules, ancheir inability to do so could
increase our costs, disrupt our supply chain, andasult in our inability to deliver our products, which would adversely affect our
operating results.

We depend on our contract manufacturers and sehicbor fabricators to maintain high levels of protiity and satisfactory
delivery schedules at manufacturing and assembliitfes located primarily in China, Taiwan, anddiland. We provide our contract
manufacturers with six-month rolling forecasts af production requirements. We do not, howevergHaug-term agreements with any of our
contract manufacturers that guarantee productipaaity, prices, lead times, or delivery schedulas. contract manufacturers serve other
customers, a number of which have greater producéquirements than we do. As a result, our contramufacturers could determine to
prioritize production capacity for other customerseduce or eliminate deliveries to us on shoticeo At times, we have experienced lower
than anticipated manufacturing yields and lengthgof delivery schedules. Lower than expected magtufing yields could increase our costs
or disrupt our supplies. We may encounter lower ufecturing yields and longer delivery schedulesammencing volume production of new
products that we introduce. Any of these problemddresult in our inability to deliver our prodwstlutions in a timely manner and adversely
affect our operating results.

Shortages of components and materials may delay oeduce our sales and increase our costs, therebyrh@ng our operating results.

The inability to obtain sufficient quantities ofraponents and other materials necessary for theuptioth of our products could
result in reduced or delayed sales or lost orderg.delay in or loss of sales could adversely intag operating results. Many of the mater
used in the production of our products are avaslainily from a limited number of foreign suppligosrticularly suppliers located in Asia. In
most cases, neither we nor our contract manufastiig/e long-term supply contracts with these sepplAs a result, we are subject to
economic instability in these Asian countries all a®to increased costs, supply interruptions, diffcculties in obtaining materials. Our
customers also may encounter difficulties or insegbcosts in obtaining the materials necessaryouge their products into which our
product solutions are incorporated.

From time to time, materials and components usediirproduct solutions or in other aspects of ast@mers’ products have been
subject to allocation because of shortages of thregerials and components. Future shortages ofriaiatand components, including potential
supply constraints of silicon, could cause delasieigments, customer dissatisfaction, and lowermege
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We are subject to lengthy development periods andrpduct acceptance cycles, which can result in dexgiment and engineering costs
without any future revenue.

We provide human interface solutions that are ipomated by OEMSs into the products they sell. OEM&ethe determination
during their product development programs whethénd¢orporate our human interface solutions or peicther alternatives. This process
requires us to make significant investments of tand resources in the design of human interfaadisok well before our customers introduce
their products incorporating these interfaces aafdie we can be sure that we will generate anyifgignt sales to our customers or even
recover our investment. During a customer’s emgigduct development process, we face the riskahainterfaces will fail to meet our
customer’s technical, performance, or cost requar@nor that our products will be replaced by catitipe products or alternative
technological solutions. Even if we complete ousige process in a manner satisfactory to our custpthe customer may delay or terminate
its product development efforts. The occurrencanyf of these events could cause sales to not m@ilierito be deferred, or to be cancelled,
which would adversely affect our operating results.

We do not have long-term purchase commitments frorour customers, and their ability to cancel, reducegr delay orders could reduce
our revenue and increase our costs.

Our customers do not provide us with firm, longrterolume purchase commitments, but instead isstehpse orders. As a result,
customers can cancel purchase orders or reducday drders at any time. The cancellation, delayeduction of customer purchase orders
could result in reduced revenue, excess inventng,unabsorbed overhead. We have an establisheehpgeein the notebook computer market
and have only recently established a presenceeimtibile product applications markets. Our suctefse mobile product application marke
including those for mobile smartphones and fegpli@nes, the tablet market, the PC product applicatiarket, particularly the ultrabook
portion of the PC product applications market, iegjus to establish the value added by our prodoocBEMSs, including those that have
traditionally used other solutions. All of the matk we serve are subject to severe competitivesprres, rapid technological change, and
product obsolescence, which increase our inverandyoverhead risks, resulting in increased costs.

We face intense competition that could result in auosing or failing to gain market share and suffeing reduced revenue.

We serve intensely competitive markets that areactterized by price erosion, rapid technologicarae, and competition from
major domestic and international companies. Thianise competition could result in pricing pressui@ser sales, reduced margins, and lowel
market share. Depressed economic conditions, adshaw in the PC product applications market, thergemece of new products, such as table
or slate devices and ultrabooks not including agodpct solutions, rapid changes in the mobile sphemie and feature phone market, and
competitive pressures may result in lower demanddo product solutions, pricing pressures, andiced unit margins.

Any movement away from high-quality, custom desiyjrfeature-rich human interface solutions to lopeced alternatives would
adversely affect our business. Some of our congustiparticularly in the markets for mobile prodapplications and other electronic devices,
have greater market recognition, larger customse$aand substantially greater financial, technioarketing, distribution, and other resour
than we possess and that afford them competitivardgdges. As a result, they may be able to devetey resources to the promotion and sa
of products, to negotiate lower prices for raw mate and components, to deliver competitive praslat lower prices, and to introduce new
product solutions and respond to customer requingsmaore quickly than we can. Our competitive positould suffer if one or more of our
customers determine not to utilize our custom esmgyied, total solutions approach and instead dégidesign and manufacture their own
interfaces, to contract with our competitors, ouse alternative technologies.
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Our ability to compete successfully depends onralrer of factors, both within and outside our confftiese factors include the

following:

. our success in designing and introducing new huimnface solutions, including those implementirgvrtechnologies

. our ability to predict the evolving needs of oustmmers and to assist them in incorporating ourrtelogies into their new
products;

. our ability to meet our customengquirements for low power consumption, ease of tedbility, durability, and small for
factor;

. our ability to meet our custom? price and performance requiremet

. the quality of our customer service and supy

. the rate at which customers incorporate our humgarface solutions into their own produc

. product or technology introductions by our compest anc

. foreign currency fluctuations, which may causeraiffn competitor’s products to be priced signifitatower than our

product solutions

If we do not keep pace with technological innovatiws, our products may not be competitive and our reenue and operating results may
suffer.

We operate in rapidly changing highly competitivarkets. Technological advances, the introductionesy products, and new
design techniques could adversely affect our bssinaless we are able to adapt to the changingtmmnsd Technological advances could
render our solutions less competitive or obsokte, we may not be able to respond effectively éstéithnological requirements of evolving
markets. As a result, we will be required to expsubstantial funds for and commit significant reses to:

. continue research and development activities ostiegi and potential human interface solutic
. hire additional engineering and other technicatpenel, ant
. purchase advanced design tools and test equip

Our business could be harmed if we are unablewsldp and utilize new technologies that address#ezls of our customers, or
our competitors or customers do so more effectitiedy we do.

Our efforts to develop new technologies may not ra#t in commercial success, which could cause a dixd in our revenue and could
harm our business.

Our research and development efforts with respeaetv technologies may not result in customer aketaacceptance. Some or all
of those technologies may not successfully makértresition from the research and development dtagest-effective production as a result
of technology problems, competitive cost issuesidyproblems, and other factors. Even when we sisfely complete a research and
development effort with respect to a particulahteadogy, our customers may decide not to introdaramay terminate products utilizing the
technology for a variety of reasons, including fibleowing:

. difficulties with other suppliers of components the products

. superior technologies developed by our competaadsunfavorable comparisons of our solutions witse technologie
. price considerations, ar

. lack of anticipated or actual market demand forgtalucts

The nature of our business requires us to makentong investments for new technologies. Significaxpenses relating to one or
more new technologies that ultimately prove to beuccessful for any reason could have a materiadrad effect on us. In addition, any
investments or acquisitions made to enhance obntdogies may prove to be unsuccessful. If ourreffare unsuccessful, our business could
be harmed.
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We may not be able to enhance our existing produsblutions and develop new product solutions in artiely manner.

Our future operating results will depend to a digant extent on our ability to continue to providew human interface solutions
that compare favorably with alternative solutiomstioe basis of time to introduction, cost, perfoneg and end user preferences. Our succes
in maintaining existing and attracting new custcsraard developing new business depends on variotedaincluding the following:

. innovative development of new solutions for custopreducts

. utilization of advances in technolog

. maintenance of quality standar

. performance advantage

. efficient and co«-effective solutions, an

. timely completion of the design and introductiomefv human interface solutior

Our inability to enhance our existing product siolus and develop new product solutions on a tirbelsis could harm our operati
results and impede our growth.

A technologically new human interface solution thatichieves significant market share could harm our bsiness.

Our human interface solutions are designed to iategouch, handwriting, and vision capabilitieewNcomputing and
communications devices could be developed thafaal different interface solution. Existing desscalso could be modified to allow for a
different interface solution. Our business coulcheemed if our products become noncompetitive i@salt of a technological breakthrough
that allows a new interface solution to displacesmlutions and achieve significant market accepgan

International sales and manufacturing risks could aversely affect our operating results.

Our manufacturing and assembly operations are pityteonducted in China, Taiwan, and Thailand bytcact manufacturers and
semiconductor fabricators. We have sales and logisperations in Hong Kong, and sales and engimgéiesign support operations in China,
Japan, Korea, Switzerland, and Taiwan. These iatemmal operations expose us to various economiijqal, and other risks that could
adversely affect our operations and operating tesmicluding the following:

. difficulties and costs of staffing and managing @tr-national organizatior
. unexpected changes in regulatory requiremt

. differing labor regulations

. potentially adverse tax consequent

. tariffs and duties and other trade barrier restnic,

. possible employee turnover or labor unr

. greater difficulty in collecting accounts receiva}

. the burdens and costs of compliance with a vanéfgreign laws
. the volatility of currency exchange rat

. potentially reduced protection for intellectual peaty rights, ant
. political or economic instability in certain padbsthe world.
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The risks associated with international operatmmsd negatively affect our operating results.

Our business may suffer if international trade is lindered, disrupted, or economically disadvantaged.

Political and economic conditions abroad may adagraffect the foreign production and sale of orgducts. Protectionist trade
legislation in either the United States or foregmintries, such as a change in the current tdrif€aires, export or import compliance laws, or
other trade policies, could adversely affect olilitglio sell human interface solutions in foreigrarkets and to obtain materials or equipment
from foreign suppliers.

Changes in policies by the U.S. or foreign govemmsmieesulting in, among other things, higher tatturrency conversion
limitations, restrictions on the transfer of fundsthe expropriation of private enterprises alsold have a material adverse effect on us. Any
actions by countries in which we conduct busineseverse policies that encourage foreign investrmeforeign trade also could adversely
affect our operating results. In addition, U.Sd&aolicies, such as “most favored nation” statgteade preferences for certain Asian nations
could affect the attractiveness of our servicesuoU.S. customers and adversely impact our opgragsults.

Our operating results could be adversely affectedybfluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar agaist foreign currencies.

We transact business predominantly in U.S. doHarsbill and collect our sales in U.S. dollars. dakening of the dollar could
cause our overseas vendors to require renegotiatieither the prices or currency we pay for tlggiods and services. In the future, customers
may negotiate pricing and make payments in non-tluBencies. For fiscal 2013, approximately 8% wf costs were denominated in nors.
currencies, including Canadian dollars, Hong Koabliads, British pounds, Taiwan dollars, Japanese K@rean won, Chinese yuan, and Sy
francs.

If our overseas vendors or customers require trsisact business in n@hS. currencies, fluctuations in foreign currenggheange
rates could affect our cost of goods, operatingeagps, and operating margins and could resultdhange losses. In addition, currency
devaluation can result in a loss to us if we hagasits of that currency. Hedging foreign currescian be difficult, especially if the currenc
not freely traded. We cannot predict the impadutidre exchange rate fluctuations on our operatasglts. We currently do not hedge any
foreign currencies.

A majority of our semiconductor fabricators and cortract manufacturers are located in China, Taiwan, ad Thailand, and most of our
customers are located in Asia, increasing the risthat a natural disaster, labor strike, war, or political unrest in those countries or that
region would disrupt our operations.

A majority of our semiconductor fabricators and ttaot manufacturers and are located in China, Tajwad Thailand, and most of
our customers are located in Asia. Events outsideiocontrol, such as earthquakes, fires, floodsither natural disasters, or political unrest,
war, labor strikes, or work stoppages in these tr@s) would disrupt our operations, which wouldgaat our business. The risk of earthquake
and tsunamis in the Pacific Rim, including Japartiisas the March 2011 earthquake and tsunamis)aimén is significant because of the
proximity to major earthquake fault lines. An egpihke or tsunami could cause significant delayghipments of our product solutions until
are able to shift our outsourced operations. Furthgariety of political factors, such as politicarest in Thailand or political tension between
North Korea and South Korea, could disrupt our apens and our ability to meet our custon’ production schedules. If any of these events
occur, we may not be able to obtain alternativeacay. Failure to secure alternative capacity caadse a delay in the shipment of our pro:
solutions, which would cause our revenue to fluigtwa decline.

Variability of customer requirements resulting in cancellations, reductions, or delays may adverselyffact our operating results.

We must provide increasingly rapid product turnaband respond to ever-shorter lead times. A wadktonditions, both specific
to individual customers and generally affecting deenand for OEMs’ products, may cause customecarigel, reduce, or delay orders.
Cancellations, reductions, or delays by a significaistomer or by a group of customers may adweedédct our revenue and could require us
to repurchase inventory from our contract manufaety which could adversely affect our costs. Ozasion, customers require rapid increase
in production, which can strain our resources aulice our margins. Although we have been able tmincreased production capacity from
our third-party manufacturers, we may be unabléago at any given time to meet our customers’ deln# their demands exceed anticipatec
levels.
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Our operating results may experience significant fictuations that could result in a decline in the pice of our stock.

In addition to the variability resulting from thbat-term nature of our customers’ commitmentseofactors contribute to
significant periodic and seasonal quarterly fluttuss in our operating results. These factors itelthe following:

. the cyclicality of the markets we sen

. the timing and size of order

. order pus-outs or cancellation:

. the volume of orders relative to our ability toidet;

. product introductions and market acceptance of m@ducts or new generations of produ
. the timing of product transition

. evolution in the life cycles of our custom’ products;

. timing of expenses in anticipation of future ordk

. changes in product mi:

. availability of manufacturing and assembly servij

. availability of necessary components and matet

. changes in cost and availability of labor and conguus;

. the expanded use of hi-cost, thir-party components in the products we ¢
. timely delivery of product solutions to custome

. pricing, performance, and availability of competitiproducts

. introduction of new technologies into the marketsserve

. emergence of new competito

. pressures on selling price

. the absolute and relative levels of corporate eniter and consumer notebook purcha
. our success in serving new markets;

. changes in economic conditiot

Accordingly, period-to-period comparisons are notradicator of our future performance. Negativainanticipated fluctuations in
our operating results may result in a decline enghice of our stock.
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If we fail to manage our growth effectively, our irfrastructure, management, and resources could berstined, our ability to effectively
manage our business could be diminished, and our emating results could suffer.

The failure to manage our planned growth effecyiweuld strain our resources, which would impedeatility to increase revent
We have increased the number of our human intedakegions and plan to expand further the numbdrdiversity of our solutions and their
use in the future. Our ability to manage our plahdeersification and growth effectively will reqeius to:

. successfully hire, train, retain, and motivate ddal employees, including employees outside thigdd States
. efficiently plan and expand our facilities to meetreased headcount requireme

. enhance our global operational, financial, and rganmeent infrastructure; ar

. expand our development and production capa

In connection with the expansion and diversificatid our product and customer base, we are ingrgamsir personnel and making
other expenditures to meet demand for our exparglioduct offerings, including offerings in the migbproduct applications market and the
notebook computer market. Increases in the denmamabf products will require further expansion af ¢raditional notebook computer
business as well as an increasing presence inab@aproduct applications markets, including melsimartphones and feature phones, the
tablet market, and the ultrabook portion of the@?@luct applications market. To date, our saldsuofian interface solutions for mobile
smartphones and feature phones have varied sigmniljcfrom quarter to quarter. Risks are furtheréased because customers do not commi
to firm production schedules for more than a stioré in advance. Any increase in expenses or invests in infrastructure and facilities in
anticipation of future orders that do not mateziahlvould adversely affect our profitability. Ourstomers also may require rapid increases in
design and production services that place an exeeskort-term burden on our resources and thairese of our third-party manufacturers. If
we cannot manage our growth effectively, our bussrend operating results could suffer.

We depend on key personnel who would be difficuliotreplace, and our business will likely be harmed e lose their services or cannot
hire additional qualified personnel.

Our success depends substantially on the effodshitities of our senior management and othergergonnel. The competition 1
qualified management and key personnel, espe@alijneers, is intense. Although we maintain nonagitipn and nondisclosure covenants
with most of our key personnel and our key exe@gtivave change of control severance agreemently wet have employment agreements
with any of them. The loss of services of one oremaf our key employees or the inability to himajt, and retain key personnel, especially
engineers and technical support personnel, andt@pales and customer-support employees outstddnited States, could delay the
development and sale of our products, disrupt asimess, and interfere with our ability to execute business plan.

In the future, if we are unable to obtain stockhol@r approval of additional shares for our share-basg compensation award programs
we could be at a competitive disadvantage in the mietplace for qualified personnel or may be requirel to increase the cash element of
our compensation program.

Our compensation program, which includes cash hatksbased compensation award components, hasnstemental in
attracting, hiring, motivating, and retaining qfielil personnel. As a Northern California-based kggbwth technology company, competition
for qualified personnel in our industry is extregngltense, particularly for engineering and otlemhiical personnel. Our success depends on
our continued ability to attract, hire, motivatedaetain qualified personnel and our share-basethbensation award programs provide us witt
a competitive compensatory tool for this purpodee €ontinued use of our share-based compensatigngon is necessary for us to compete
for engineering and other technical personnel antepsional talent without significantly increasicgsh compensation costs. In the future, if
we are unable to obtain stockholder approval oftaatthl shares for our share-based compensationdagragrams we could be at a
competitive disadvantage in the marketplace folifige personnel or may be required to increasectish elements of our compensation
program.
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Our inability to protect our intellectual property could impair our competitive advantage, reduce ourevenue, and increase our costs.

Our success and ability to compete depend in paduo ability to maintain the proprietary aspedtsuar technologies and products.
We rely on a combination of patents, copyrightsdér secrets, trademarks, confidentiality agreemantsother contractual provisions to
protect our intellectual property, but these measunay provide only limited protection. We liceffigem third parties certain technology used
in and for our products. These third-party licersesgranted with restrictions, and there can bassorances that such third-party technology
will remain available to us on terms beneficial® Failure to enforce and protect our intellecpraberty rights or obtain from third parties
right to use necessary technology could have arrabselverse effect on our business, financial @omng and operating results. In addition, the
laws of some foreign countries do not protect pedpry rights as fully as do the laws of the Unitdtes.

Patents may not issue from the patent applicativaiswe have filed or may file in the future. Ossued patents may be challenged
invalidated, or circumvented, and claims of ouepét may not be of sufficient scope or strengthissred in the proper geographic regions, to
provide meaningful protection or any commercialattage. In addition, certain of our patents wilbiesx within several years.

We have not applied for, and do not have, any dghyregistration on our technologies or produé¥e have applied to register
certain of our trademarks in the United Statesathdr countries. There can be no assurance thatil@btain registrations of principle or
other trademarks in key markets. Failure to ohtegistrations could compromise our ability to pobdteilly our trademarks and brands and
could increase the risk of challenge from thirdtigarto our use of our trademarks and brands.

We do not consistently rely on written agreemerith wur customers, suppliers, manufacturers, ahdraecipients of our
technologies and products, and therefore some sactet protection may be lost and our abilityritbece our intellectual property rights may
be limited. Additionally, our customers, suppliargnufacturers, and other recipients of our teadgieb and products may seek to use our
technologies and products without appropriate &tions. In the past, we did not consistently remoinr employees and consultants to enter
into confidentiality, employment, or proprietaryfonmation and invention assignment agreements.€fbez, our former employees and
consultants may try to claim some ownership intaresur technologies and products and may usé¢emiimologies and products competitively
and without appropriate limitations.

We may be required to incur substantial expenses andivert management attention and resources in defeling intellectual property
litigation against us.

We may receive notices from third parties thatrolaur products infringe their rights. From timetitne, we receive notice from
third parties of the intellectual property rightsh parties have obtained. We cannot be certatrotiraechnologies and products do not and
will not infringe issued patents or other propngtaghts of others. Any future claims, with or hvitut merit, could result in significant litigatis
costs and diversion of resources, including thensittn of management, and could require us to émtieroyalty and licensing agreements, any
of which could have a material adverse effect onbmusiness. There can be no assurance that secisdis could be obtained on commercially
reasonable terms, if at all, or that the termsngf @ffered licenses would be acceptable to usorkdd to cease using such technology, there ce
be no assurance that we would be able to developtain alternate technology. Accordingly, an adeatetermination in a judicial or
administrative proceeding or failure to obtain reseey licenses could prevent us from manufacturisng, or selling certain of our products,
which could have a material adverse effect on asirtess, financial condition, and operating results

Furthermore, parties making such claims could seajudgment awarding substantial damages, asawéljunctive or other
equitable relief that could effectively block ounility to make, use, or sell our products in thetea States or abroad. Such a judgment could
have a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition, and operating results. In additive are obligated under certain agreement:
to indemnify the other party in connection withrinfement by us of the proprietary rights of thiatties. In the event we are required to
indemnify parties under these agreements, it chale a material adverse effect on our businesadial condition, and operating results.
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We may incur substantial expenses and divert manageent resources in prosecuting others for their unathorized use of our intellectua
property rights.

The markets in which we compete are characterigddelguent litigation regarding patents and otinéeliectual property rights.
Other companies, including our competitors, mayettgy technologies that are similar or superioruotechnologies, duplicate our
technologies, or design around our patents andiragg or obtain patents or other proprietary rigihés would prevent, limit, or interfere with
our ability to make, use, or sell our productsekfive intellectual property protection may be wibable or limited in some foreign countries
which we operate, such as China and Taiwan. Unaattparties may attempt to copy or otherwiseasggcts of our technologies and
products that we regard as proprietary. There eamobassurance that our means of protecting owrigtary rights in the United States or
abroad will be adequate or that competitors witlindependently develop similar technologies. If mtellectual property protection is
insufficient to protect our intellectual propertghits, we could face increased competition in tlaekmts for our technologies and products.

Should any of our competitors file patent appli@as or obtain patents that claim inventions alstnwéd by us, we may choose to
participate in an interference proceeding to deiteerthe right to a patent for these inventions beeaur business would be harmed if we fail
to enforce and protect our intellectual properghts. Even if the outcome is favorable, this proasg could result in substantial cost to us and
disrupt our business.

In the future, we also may need to file lawsuitemdorce our intellectual property rights, to paiteur trade secrets, or to determine
the validity and scope of the proprietary rightotfers. This litigation, whether successful oruatessful, could result in substantial costs an
diversion of resources, which could have a matadakrse effect on our business, financial condlitamd operating results.

If we become subject to product returns and productiability claims resulting from defects in our products, we may fail to achieve
market acceptance of our products and our businesuld be harmed.

We develop complex products in an evolving marletpland generally warrant our products for a pesfdt? months from the
date of sale. Despite testing by us and our cusrdefects may be found in existing or new prosluganufacturing errors or product defects
could result in a delay in recognition or loss @fenue, loss of market share, or failure to achieagket acceptance. Additionally, defects ci
result in financial or other damages to our cust@meause us to incur significant warranty, suppamt repair costs; and divert the attention of
our engineering personnel from key product develeminefforts. In such circumstances, our customeutdcalso seek and obtain damages |
us for their losses. A product liability claim bght against us, even if unsuccessful, would likehytime-consuming and costly to defend. The
occurrence of such problems would likely harm ausibess.

Potential strategic alliances may not achieve thewbjectives, and the failure to do so could impedaur growth.

We anticipate that we will enter into strategidaaltes. Among other matters, we continually expgtrategic alliances designed to
enhance or complement our technology or to wordomjunction with our technology; to provide necegdaow-how, components, or
supplies; and to develop, introduce, and distrifpuealucts utilizing our technology. Any strategiliaaces may not achieve their intended
objectives, and parties to our strategic allianmoayg not perform as contemplated. The failure o$¢halliances may impede our ability to
introduce new products and enter new markets.

Any acquisitions that we undertake could be difficlt to integrate, disrupt our business, dilute stockolder value, and harm our
operating results.

We expect to pursue opportunities to acquire dbusinesses and technologies in order to complemerdurrent human interface
solutions, expand the breadth of our markets, ezghanr technical capabilities, or otherwise offeavgth opportunities. We cannot accurately
predict the timing, size, and success of any fuaaguisitions. We may be unable to identify sugaditquisition candidates or to complete the
acquisitions of candidates that we identify. Inseghcompetition for acquisition candidates or iasesl asking prices by acquisition candidate:
may increase purchase prices for acquisitionsvieldebeyond our financial capability or to levedattwould not result in the returns requirec
our acquisition criteria. Acquisitions also may dee more difficult in the future as we or otherguice the most attractive candidates.
Unforeseen expenses, difficulties, and delays fatjy encountered in connection with rapid expamsiwmough acquisitions could inhibit our
growth and negatively impact our operating restfitee make any future acquisitions, we could issteek that would dilute existing
stockholders’ percentage ownership, incur substbatibt, assume contingent liabilities, or experéehigher operating expenses.
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As a part of any potential acquisition, we may @ggi discussions with various companies. In cotimeavith these discussions,
we and each potential acquisition candidate exahangfidential operational and financial informaticonduct due diligence inquiries, and
consider the structure, terms, and conditions efabtential acquisition. In certain cases, the peotive acquisition candidate agrees not to
discuss a potential acquisition with any othery#ot a specific period of time and agrees to tatkeer actions designed to enhance the
possibility of the acquisition, such as preparindited financial information. Potential acquisitidiscussions frequently take place over a lonc
period of time and involve difficult business intation and other issues. As a result of these &émet factors, a number of potential
acquisitions that from time to time appear likedyoccur do not result in binding legal agreementsae not consummated, but may result in
increased legal and consulting costs.

We cannot assure you that we would be success@yarcoming problems encountered in connection ®iith acquisitions, and o
inability to do so could disrupt our operationssuk in goodwill or intangible asset impairment es, and adversely affect our business. Our
experience in acquiring other businesses and téothies is limited.

Any acquisitions that we undertake in the future cald be difficult to integrate, disrupt our business and harm our operations.

In order to pursue a successful acquisition styateg may need to integrate the operations of aeduusinesses into our
operations, including centralizing certain funcgdn achieve cost savings and pursuing programpiaugsses that leverage our revenue and
growth opportunities. The integration of the mamaget, operations, and facilities of acquired busses with our own could involve
difficulties, which could adversely affect our gritwrate and operating results.

We may be unable to complete effectively an intiégneof the management, operations, facilities, aocbunting and information
systems of acquired businesses with our own; tcageaefficiently the combined operations of the @eglbusinesses with our operations; to
achieve our operating, growth, and performancegjmalacquired businesses; to achieve additionvalmee as a result of our expanded
operations; or to achieve operating efficienciestberwise realize cost savings as a result o€atied acquisition synergies. The integration
of acquired businesses involves numerous riskkjdntg the following:

. the potential disruption of our core busine

. the potential strain on our financial and managdeoatrols and reporting systems and procedt
. potential unknown liabilities associated with tlegaired busines:

. unanticipated costs associated with the acquisi

. diversion of manageme’'s attention from our core busine

. problems assimilating the purchased operationBntdogies, or product:

. risks associated with entering markets and busésdsswhich we have little or no prior experien
. failure of acquired businesses to achieve expeesdts;

. adverse effects on existing business relationshiftssuppliers and custome!

. failure to retain key customers, suppliers, or penel of acquired business:

. the risk of impairment charges related to potemtigie-downs of acquired assets; ¢

. creating uniform standards, controls, procedurekicigs, and information systen
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Repatriation of our foreign earnings to the UnitedStates or changes in tax laws may adversely affemtir future reported tax rates and
financial results or the way we conduct our busines

Changes in tax laws may adversely affect our futepsrted tax rates and financial results or thg wa conduct our business. We
consider the undistributed operating earnings dageforeign subsidiaries of approximately $38rhilion as of the end of fiscal 2013, to be
indefinitely invested outside the United States hade not provided for U.S. federal and state inetaxes that may result from future
remittances of those undistributed operating egsiiRroposals to reform U.S. tax laws, includingpesals that could reduce or eliminate the
deferral of U.S. income tax on our foreign subsidi undistributed earnings, could require thosmimgs to be taxed at the U.S. federal
income tax rate. If we do need to access our farsigsidiaries’ undistributed earnings for our dsticeoperations, we would be required to
accrue and pay U.S. taxes to repatriate these fwtdsh would adversely impact our financial pasitiand results of operations.

Currently our investments in auction rate securities, or ARS investments, are not liquid, and we mayse some or all of our principal
invested or may be required to further reduce the arrying value if the issuers are not able to meeteir payment obligations or if we se
our ARS investments before they recover.

We ended fiscal 2013 with $24.0 million investedIRS investments for which the auctions have fadad our investments are 1
liquid. The carrying value of these investments §&8.0 million, reflecting $13.8 million of othelndn-temporary impairment, partially offset
by $6.8 million of unrealized recovery. If the isssi are not able to meet their payment obligat@riEwe sell our ARS investments before t
recover, we may lose some or all of the principaksted or may be required to further reduce theyiog value. This would adversely affect
our financial position, operating results, and cias.

Legislation affecting the markets in which we parttipate could adversely affect our ability to implenent our growth strategies.

Our ability to expand our business may be advelisghacted by future laws or regulations. Our cugitstproducts may be subje
to laws relating to environmental regulations, caminations, encryption technology, electronic comrage-signatures, governmental control
over content, and privacy. Any of these laws cdddexpensive to comply with, and the marketabditpur products could be adversely
affected.

We face risks associated with security breaches oyber attacks.

We face risks associated with security breacheyloer attacks of our computer systems or thosaioftord-party representatives,
vendors, and service providers. Although we hayalémented security procedures and controls to addhese threats, our systems may still
be vulnerable to data theft, computer viruses, rogning errors, attacks by third parties, or similizruptive problems. If we were to
experience a security breach or cyber attack, wéldme required to incur substantial costs andliiegs, including the following: expenses to
rectify the consequences of the security breaalyloer attack, liability for stolen assets or infation, costs of repairing damage to our
systems, lost revenue and income resulting fromsgetem downtime caused by such breach or attactedsed costs of cyber security
protection, costs of incentives we may be requioeaffer to our customers or business partnerstain their business, and damage to our
reputation. In addition, any compromise of securitya cyber attack could deter customers or busipagners from entering into transactions
that involve providing confidential information ts. Furthermore, if confidential customer inforroator information belonging to our busin
partners is misappropriated from our systems, widcoe sued by those who assert we did not takguade precautions to safeguard our
systems and confidential data belonging to ourazusts or business partners, which could subjett ligbility and result in significant legal
expenses of defending these claims. As a resyltcampromise of security of our systems or cyb&chktcould have a material adverse effect
on our business, reputation, financial conditiorg aperating results.

We must finance the growth of our business and théevelopment of new products, which could have an adrse effect on our operating
results.

To remain competitive, we must continue to makaifitant investments in research and developmeatketing, and business
development. Our failure to increase sufficiently aet revenue to offset these increased costsdnaalversely affect our operating results.
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From time to time, we may seek additional equitglelt financing to provide for funds required t@amd our business, including
through acquisitions. We cannot predict the timingmount of any such requirements at this timsuth financing is not available on
satisfactory terms, we may be unable to expanduosiness or to develop new business at the rateedesd our operating results may suffer.
Debt financing increases expenses and must bedreggardless of operating results. Equity finanaagld result in additional dilution to
existing stockholders.

We consider the undistributed operating earningsedfin foreign subsidiaries to be indefinitelyested outside the United States.
If we were to distribute a portion of those earsing our U.S. parent company to finance our fugrosvth, we would be required to pay U.S.
federal and state taxes on the distribution antthéurmay be required to accrue U.S. and state @xdise remaining undistributed operating
earnings, which would adversely affect our tax eatd financial results.

Our target markets are cyclical and may result in fuctuations in our operating results.

The PC and electronics industries have experiesicgificant economic downturns at various timeseSéndownturns are
characterized by diminished product demand, acateldrerosion of average selling prices, and pragluctvercapacity. In addition, the PC and
electronics industries are cyclical in nature. Weksto reduce our exposure to industry downturidscgmlicality by providing design and
production services for leading companies in rap@dpanding industry segments. We may, howevergmaice substantial period-to-period
fluctuations in future operating results becausgarferal industry conditions or events occurrinthengeneral economy.

Continuing uncertainty of the U.S. and global econmy may have serious implications for the growth andtability of our business and
may negatively affect our stock price.

The revenue growth and profitability of our busmeégpends significantly on the overall demand érttarkets for mobile product
applications and other electronic devices, inclgdimobile smartphones and feature phones, and saddewell as in the notebook computer
market, including ultrabooks. Softening demanchigse markets caused by ongoing economic uncertaiagyresult in decreased revenue or
earnings levels or growth rates. The U.S. and dlebanomy has been historically cyclical, and madanditions continue to be challenging,
which has resulted in individuals and companieayiet or reducing expenditures. Further delaysductions in spending could have a
material adverse effect on demand for our prodaetd,consequently on our business, financial cimmdibperating results, prospects, and <
price.

We expect to incur additional expenses in complyingith corporate governance and public disclosure rguirements.

Changing laws, regulations, and standards relatirgprporate governance and public disclosureuding SEC regulations and
Nasdaq Global Select Market rules, create uncéytaimd increased expenses for companies such asMNew or changed laws, regulatio
and standards are subject to varying interpretatiomany cases due to their lack of specificitgl,as a result, their application in practice |
evolve over time as new guidance is provided bylatgry and governing bodies, which could resultamtinuing uncertainty regarding
compliance matters and higher costs necessitateddping revisions to disclosure and governancetiges. We are committed to maintaining
high standards of corporate governance and putsiatogure. As a result, our efforts to comply watrolving laws, regulations, and standards
have resulted in, and are likely to continue tailteis, increased general and administrative exeersd a diversion of management time and
attention from revenue-generating activities to ptiamce activities. We expect these efforts to nexjthe continued commitment of significant
resources. In addition, it may become more diffiamid more expensive for us to obtain director @fifider liability insurance. As a result, we
may have difficulty attracting and retaining quiglf board members, which could harm our businésairlefforts to comply with new or
changed laws, regulations, and standards diffen fite activities intended by regulatory or govegniodies due to ambiguities related to
practice, our reputation may be harmed.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumerdetimn Act required the SEC to establish new dsale and reporting
requirements for those companies who use “conftittierals mined from the Democratic Republic of Gmand adjoining countries in their
products, whether or not these products are matwéatby third parties. When these new requiremargsmplemented, they could adversely
affect the sourcing and availability of mineraledsn the manufacture of our products. There élbde costs associated with complying with
the disclosure requirements, including for duegeitice in regard to the sources of any conflict nailseused in our products, in addition to the
cost of remediation and other changes to prodpot&esses, or sources of supply as a consequesaoeloferification activities.
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The accounting requirements for income taxes on ctin of our share-based awards will subject our fuire quarterly and annual
effective tax rates to greater volatility and, consquently, our ability to estimate reasonably our fture quarterly and annual effective tax
rates is greatly diminished.

We recognize tax benefit upon expensing nonquélgieck options and deferred stock units, or DS$éssied under our shabasec
compensation plans. However, under current acaogistandards, we cannot recognize tax benefit cogrmuwith expensing incentive stock
options and employee stock purchase plan sharesified stock options) issued under our share-basetbensation plans. For qualified stock
options that vested after our adoption of the @pplie accounting standards, we recognize the tagfib@nly in the period when disqualifying
dispositions of the underlying stock occur and,qoalified stock options that vested prior to odojgtion of the applicable accounting
standards, the tax benefit is recorded directigdditional paid-in capital. Accordingly, because ca@not recognize the tax benefit for share-
based compensation expense associated with qdaifsek options until the occurrence of future dadying dispositions of the underlying
stock and such disqualified dispositions may happgreriods when our stock price substantially éases, and because a portion of that tax
benefit may be directly recorded to additional paid¢apital, our future quarterly and annual effextax rates will be subject to greater
volatility and, consequently, our ability to estimaeasonably our future quarterly and annual &ffe¢ax rates is greatly diminished.

Future changes in financial accounting standards opractices may cause adverse unexpected fluctuat®and affect our reported
operating results.

A change in accounting standards or practices doaNe a significant effect on our reported opegatasults. New accounting
pronouncements and varying interpretations of agtiog pronouncements have occurred in the pastaydoccur in the future. Changes to
existing rules or the questioning of current pi@etimay adversely affect our reported financiallte®r the way we conduct our business.

Further, the U.S.-based Financial Accounting StedglBoard, or FASB, is currently working togethethwthe International
Accounting Standards Board, or IASB, on severajguts to further align accounting principles andilfsate more comparable financial
reporting between companies who are required tovfiol.S. Generally Accepted Accounting PrinciplesGAAP, under SEC regulations and
those who are required to follow International Ficial Reporting Standards, or IFRS, outside ofdhéed States. These efforts by the FASB
and IASB may result in different accounting pridegunder GAAP that may result in materially diéfet financial results for us in areas
including, but not limited to, principles for reatging revenue and lease accounting.

It is not clear if or when these potential chanigesccounting principles may become effective, wketve have the proper systems
and controls in place to accommodate such chaagesthe impact that any such changes may haveroroasolidated financial position,
operating results, and cash flows. In additionwasvolve and change our business and sales magelre currently unable to take into
account how these potential changes may impaat@urmodels, particularly in the area of revenuegadion.

Our charter documents and Delaware law could maket imore difficult for a third party to acquire us, and discourage a takeover.

Our certificate of incorporation and the Delawaren@ral Corporation Law contain provisions that rhaye the effect of making
more difficult or delaying attempts by others tdaib control of our company, even when these attemmay be in the best interests of our
stockholders. Our certificate of incorporation ashorizes our Board of Directors, without stodklleo approval, to issue one or more serie
preferred stock, which could have voting and cosieer rights that adversely affect or dilute theingtpower of the holders of common stock.
Delaware law also imposes conditions on certairngss combination transactions with “interestedldtolders.” Our certificate of
incorporation divides our Board of Directors inkwde classes, with one class to stand for eleetih year for a three-year term after the
election. The classification of directors tendsligcourage a third party from initiating a proxyisitation or otherwise attempting to obtain
control of our company and may maintain the incunayeof our Board of Directors, as this structuraeyally increases the difficulty of, or
may delay, replacing a majority of directors. Oertificate of incorporation authorizes our BoardDifectors to fill vacancies or newly created
directorships. A majority of the directors theroiifice may elect a successor to fill any vacanciesewly created directorships.
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Sales of large numbers of shares could adverselyfedt the price of our common stock.

As of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10aK of the outstanding shares of our common stoekeveligible for resale in the
public markets. Of these shares, approximatelytbird-were held by affiliates and were eligible fesale in the public markets subject to
compliance with the volume and manner of sale rofdules 144 or 701 under the Securities Act &3l%s amended, or the Securities Act,
and the balance of the shares were eligible f@leda the public markets as unrestricted sharegeheral, under Rule 144 as currently in
effect, any person (or persons whose shares aregaygd for purposes of Rule 144) who is deemeaffdimte of our company and beneficia
owns restricted securities with respect to whicleast six months has elapsed since the latereadidle the shares were acquired from us, or
from an affiliate of ours, is entitled to sell withany three-month period a number of shares thes cot exceed the greater of 1% of the then
outstanding shares of our common stock or the geenaeekly trading volume in common stock duringfthe calendar weeks preceding such
sale. Sales by affiliates under Rule 144 also abgest to certain manner-of-sale provisions andceaequirements and to the availability of
current public information about us.

Rule 701, as currently in effect, permits our ergpks, officers, directors, and consultants wholpase shares pursuant to a writter
compensatory plan or contract to resell these shaneliance upon Rule 144, but without complianith specific restrictions. Rule 701
provides that affiliates may sell their Rule 70args under Rule 144 without complying with the riddperiod requirement and non-affiliates
may sell their shares in reliance on Rule 144 witlemmplying with the holding period, public infoation, volume limitation, or notice
provisions of Rule 144. A person who is not anliat#, who has not been an affiliate within threemntis prior to sale, and who beneficially
owns restricted securities with respect to whicleast one year has elapsed since the later afateethe shares were acquired from us, or fror
an affiliate of ours, is entitled to sell such stsunder Rule 144 without regard to any of the m@uimitations or other requirements describec
above. Sales of substantial amounts of common sitoitle public market could adversely affect prémgimarket prices.

We have registered an aggregate of $100.0 millfamommon stock and preferred stock for issuan@®imection with acquisition
which shares generally will be freely tradeablefheir issuance under Rule 145 of the Securitgsunless held by an affiliate of the
acquired company, in which case such shares wilibgect to the volume and manner of sale resinistof Rule 144 discussed above. The
issuance or subsequent sale of these shares pltfie market could adversely affect prevailing kedrprices.

We have registered for offer and sale the sharesmimon stock that are reserved for issuance parso@ur outstanding share-
based compensation plans. Shares issued in commedgth our share-based compensation plans genevillbe eligible for sale in the public
market, except that affiliates will continue todgéhject to volume limitations and other requireraeftRule 144. The issuance or subsequent
sale of such shares could depress the marketqirimer common stock.

The market price of our common stock has been and ay continue to be volatile.

The trading price of our common stock has beennaaygl continue to be subject to wide fluctuationseisponse to various factors,
including the following:

. variations in our quarterly result

. the financial guidance we may provide to the pylaity changes in such guidance, or our failuredetrsuch guidanc

. changes in financial estimates by industry or s@earanalysts or our failure to meet such estis

. various market factors or perceived market factadyuding rumors, whether or not correct, involyias, our customers, our

suppliers, or our competitor
. announcements of technological innovations by usyasur competitors
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. introductions of new products or new pricing pagby us or by our competitol

. acquisitions or strategic alliances by us or by@mpetitors

. recruitment or departure of key personi

. the gain or loss of significant orde

. the gain or loss of significant custome

. market conditions in our industry, the industri€®oar customers, and the economy as a wt
. short positions held by investors; ¢

. general financial market conditions or occurren

In addition, stocks of technology companies hayeeernced extreme price and volume fluctuationsaftan have been unrelated
or disproportionate to these companies’ operatarfopmance. Public announcements by technology eoirep concerning, among other
things, their performance, accounting practicesegal problems could cause the market price ofcounmon stock to decline regardless of ou
actual operating performance.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices as well as our pifral research, development, sales, marketingadnanistrative functions are
currently located in our 161,000 square foot fdesiin San Jose. We lease approximately 34,008rsdaet in New York used for research
development; approximately 7,000 square feet iraSdgr sales and research and development; andxamately 4,000 square feet in each of
Georgia and Idaho for research and developmentAGiayPacific headquarters are located in Hong Kehgre we lease approximately 15,
square feet of space. We also maintain approximd®&000 square feet of office space in Taiwanyaxmately 19,000 square feet of office
space in China, approximately 6,000 square feeffufe space in Japan, approximately 10,000 sqfgsateof office space in Korea, and
approximately 1,100 square feet of office spacBviitzerland. We have satellite sales support offing=inland.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information on Common Stock

Our common stock has been listed on the NasdagaGR#ect Market (formerly on the Nasdaq Nationalrkét) under the symbol
“SYNA” since January 29, 2002. Prior to that tirttegere was no public market for our common stocle filowing table sets forth for the
periods indicated the high and low sales pricesunfcommon stock as quoted on the Nasdaq GlobatBelarket.

High Low

Fiscal 2013:

First quartel $31.5¢ $23.61

Second quarte $30.3¢ $22.5¢

Third quartel $41.4¢ $29.2¢

Fourth quarte $45.4( $34.7¢
Fiscal 2012:

First quartel $26.21 $21.97

Second quarte $34.9¢ $22.6¢

Third quartel $39.8¢ $30.0(

Fourth quarte $36.7: $24.7¢

Stockholders

As of August 5, 2013, there were approximately hdldlers of record of our common stock. The clogirige of our common stock
as quoted on the Nasdaq Global Select Market Asigfist 5, 2013 was $39.80.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid cash dividends oea@umon stock. We currently plan to retain anynhaeys to finance the growth
of our business, or purchase shares under our corstook repurchase program rather than to paydiagtends. Payments of any cash
dividends in the future will depend on our fina@andition, operating results, and capital requieats as well as other factors deemed
relevant by our board of directors.

Our revolving line of credit also places restriogoon the payment of any dividends.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

From April 2005 through June 2013, our Board ofebtors has cumulatively authorized $520.0 milliondur common stock
repurchase program, which expires in October 20h8.remaining amount authorized for the repurcloésair common stock is $59.8 million.
Repurchases under the stock repurchase programgdbsg three-month period ended June 29, 2013 agefellows:

Total
Number of
Shares Maximum
Purchased Dollar Value
as Part of of Shares that
Total Average Publicly May Yet Be
Number Price Announce! Purchased
of Shares Paid pe Under the
Perioc Purchaser Share Program Program
March 31, 2013 - April 27, 2013 — $ — — $74,835,00
April 28, 2013- May 25, 201: 359,40( 41.72 359,40( 59,840,00
May 26, 201%- June 29, 201 — — — 59,840,00
Total 359,40( 41.7:2
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Performance Graph

The following line graph compares cumulative tetaickholder returns for the five years ended Jihe€B813 for (i) our common
stock, (ii) the Nasdag Composite Index, (iii) Pdé#phia Semiconductor Index, and (iv) the Nasdam@ater Index. The graph assumes an
investment of $100 on June 30, 2008. The calculataf cumulative stockholder return on the Nasdamfbsite Index, the Philadelphia
Semiconductor Index, and the Nasdag Computer lirddude reinvestment of dividends. The calculatiércumulative stockholder return on
our common stock does not include reinvestmentwdiends because we did not pay any dividends dutie measurement period. The
historical performance shown is not necessarilycati/e of future performance.

COMPARISON OF 60 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Svnaptics Incorporated, The Masdag Composite Index,
[he PHLX Semiconductor Index,
and The Masdaqg Computer Index
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st PHLX Semiconductor ==<2-== Nasdaq Computer Index

The performance graph above shall not be deemiedifior purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Acttberwise subject to the liability
that section. The performance graph above willotleemed incorporated by reference into any fiihgur company under the Exchange Ac
or the Securities Act.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following presents selected financial datagfach fiscal year in the five-year period ended Bhe2013. Our fiscal year is the
52- or 53-week period ending on the last Saturdajune. Fiscal 2012 was a 53-week period and tiex fiscal years presented were 52-week
periods. Our past results of operations are nog¢ssarily indicative of our future results of oparas. You should read the selected financial
data below in conjunction with Item 7. Managememtiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &esults of Operations and our
consolidated financial statements and related ratetained elsewhere in this report.

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(in thousands, except per share amount:

Consolidated Statements of Income Datz

Net revenue $663,58¢ $548,22¢ $598,53( $514,89( $473,30:
Cost of revenu 337,78 292,66: 352,46¢ 306,18t 281,79
Gross margit 325,80 255,567 246,07( 208,70. 191,50¢
Operating expense
Research and developmt 144,69¢ 117,95 105,00: 86,55: 68,02¢
Selling, general, and administrati 79,62( 70,04 68,54¢ 60,02’ 54,01«
Acquired intangibles amortizatic 1,02t — — — —
Change in contingent considerati 1,347 — — — —
Gain on sale of property and equipm (1,579 — — — —
Total operating expens 225,110 187,99¢ 173,55. 146,57¢ 122,04
Operating incom: 100,69: 67,56¢ 72,51¢ 62,12: 69,46¢
Interest income/(expense), 1 84¢ 90t 894 (1,429 (3,83))
Non-cash interest inconr 194 — — — —
Other charges or expens — 77 59 (44%) (10,296
Income before provision for income tay 101,73 68,55( 73,47 60,25’ 55,34
Provision for income taxe 2,80( 14,40¢ 9,67¢ 7,292 7,263
Net income $ 98,93 $ 54,14« $ 63,79¢ $ 52,96 $ 48,07¢
Net income per shar
Basic(1) $ 30 ¢ 164 $ 187 $ 157 $ 141
Diluted(1) $ 28 $ 15 $ 18 $ 15 $ 1.3
Shares used in computing net income per sl
Basic(1) 32,65¢ 33,03( 34,04: 33,83¢ 33,98:
Diluted(1) 34,23¢ 34,43t 35,45¢ 35,42: 35,571
Consolidated Balance Sheets Dati
Cash, cash equivalents, and s-term investment $355,30: $305,00¢ $247,15. $209,85¢ $191,97(
Working capital 410,79: 340,57¢ 281,420 228,53« 159,69:
Total asset 691,26¢ 541,50' 456,20 414,67¢ 376,15
Current deb — — — — 63,23¢
Long-term debi 2,30¢ 2,30¢ 2,30t 2,30¢ —
Treasury shares, at c( 460,16( 413,88' 352,14: 281,93. 237,38
Total stockholder equity 521,85! 396,79( 339,99. 286,51 222,60t

(1) All share and per share amounts reflect t-for-2 stock split effected as a stock dividend and paidugust 29, 200¢

Our basic net income per share amounts for eadbdopresented have been computed using the weighverdge number of shares
of common stock outstanding. Our diluted net incqeeshare amounts for each period presented imt¢hedweighted average effect of
potentially dilutive shares. We used the “treasstock” method to determine the dilutive effect of our &toptions, DSUs, Market Stock Uni
or MSUs, and convertible notes.
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Forward-Looking Statements and Factors That May Afect Results

You should read the following discussion and analysconjunction with our financial statements aathted notes contained
elsewhere in this report. This discussion contlinsard-looking statements that involve risks, utaiaties, and assumptions. Our actual
results may differ materially from those anticighte these forward-looking statements as a res@twariety of factors, including those set
forth under Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Overview

We are a leading worldwide developer and suppli@ustomedesigned human interface solutions that enablelp¢opnteract mor
easily and intuitively with a wide variety of mobitomputing, communications, entertainment, andraglectronic devices. We believe our
results to date reflect the combination of our comr focus, the strength of our intellectual propeand our engineering know-how, which
allow us to develop or engineer products that tfeetiemanding design specifications of OEMs.

We recognize revenue from product sales when fegrersuasive evidence that an arrangement ededtsery has occurred and
title has transferred, the price is fixed or deteahle, and collection is reasonably assured. @uravenue increased from $361.1 million for
fiscal 2008 to $663.6 million for fiscal 2013, repenting a compound annual growth rate of appraeiyna3%. For fiscal 2008, we derived
76% of our net revenue from the personal computeket and 24% of our net revenue from the mobitelpct applications market. For fiscal
2013, revenue from the personal computer marketumted for 36% of our net revenue and revenue tiemobile product applications
market accounted for 64% of our net revenue.

Many of our customers have manufacturing operatioi@hina, and many of our OEM customers have éstaun design centers in
Asia. With our expanded global presence, includifiges in China, Finland, Hong Kong, Japan, Koi®ajtzerland, Taiwan, and the United
States, we are well positioned to provide locatésabperational, and engineering support servicesit existing customers, as well as potentia
new customers, on a global basis.

Our manufacturing operations are based on a var@ist model in which we outsource all of our pitun requirements and
generally drop ship our products directly to oustomers from our contract manufacturers’ facilitigléminating the need for significant capital
expenditures and allowing us to minimize our ingestt in inventories. This approach requires usddkvelosely with our contract
manufacturers and semiconductor fabricators torerstequate production capacity to meet our fotedaslume requirements. We provide
our contract manufacturers with six-month rollimgefcasts and issue purchase orders based on @ipated requirements for the next 90
days. However, we do not have any long-term supphtracts with any of our contract manufacturers. W8e three third-party wafer
manufacturers to supply wafers and one third-paatskaging manufacturer to package our propriet&8iCA. In certain cases, we rely on a
single source or a limited number of suppliersrmvfile other key components of our products. Ost cbrevenue includes all costs associ
with the production of our products, including nraks, logistics, manufacturing, assembly, and ¢ests paid to third-party manufacturers anc
related overhead costs associated with our indimectufacturing operations personnel. Additionallg, charge all warranty costs, yield losses,
and any inventory provisions or write-downs to aafstevenue.

Our gross margin generally reflects the combinatibthe added value we bring to our OEM customprstucts in meeting their
custom design requirements and the impact of ogoioig cost-improvement programs. These cost-imprard programs include reducing
materials and component costs and implementingydesid process improvements. Our newly introduecedyzcts may have lower margins
than our more mature products, which have realigedter benefits associated with our ongoing aogrrévement programs. As a result, new
product introductions may initially negatively ingiaur gross margin.

Our research and development expenses includefoostspplies and materials related to product greent, as well as the
engineering costs incurred to design human interéatutions for OEM customers prior to and aft@itibommitment to incorporate those
solutions into their products. These expenses gawerally increased, reflecting our continuing cdtnmant to the technological and design
innovation required to maintain our position in @xisting markets and to adapt our existing teabgiels or develop new technologies for new
markets.
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Selling, general, and administrative expenses dekxpenses related to sales, marketing, and astrainve personnel; internal
sales and outside sales representatives’ commsssitarket and usability research; outside lega&ipacting, and consulting costs; and other
marketing and sales activities. These expensesdenarally increased, primarily reflecting increnastaffing and related support costs
associated with our increased business levels,thrimiour existing markets, and penetration intev mearkets.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial states@ntonformity with GAAP requires us to make esties and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilitiegenue, expenses, and related disclosure ofrgmit assets and liabilities. On an ongoing
basis, we evaluate our estimates, including thelsged to revenue recognition, allowance for daul@tcounts, cost of revenue, inventories,
product warranty, share-based compensation costgspn for income taxes, deferred income tax tagakiation allowances, uncertain tax
positions, tax contingencies, goodwill, intangibksets, investments, and contingencies. We bassstiomates on historical experience,
applicable laws and regulations, and various atlssumptions that we believe to be reasonable dhed@ircumstances, the results of which
form the basis for making judgments about the ¢agryalue of assets and liabilities that are natlily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates under diffeassumptions or conditions.

The methods, estimates, interpretations, and judtgnee use in applying our most critical accounfiodicies can have a
significant impact on the results that we reporbim consolidated financial statements. The SEGidens an entity’'s most critical accounting
policies to be those policies that are both mogiorrant to the portrayal of the entity’s finanataindition and results of operations and those
that require the entity’s most difficult, subje@ivor complex judgments, often as a result of #edrto make assumptions and estimates abou
matters that are inherently uncertain. We belitesfollowing critical accounting policies affectramore significant judgments and estimates
used in the preparation of our consolidated finalmnstatements.

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue from product sales when ikgrersuasive evidence that an arrangement edidisery has occurred and
titte has transferred, the price is fixed or deteable, and collection is reasonably assured, wisigenerally upon shipment of the product.
accrue for estimated sales returns, incentiveso#mel allowances at the time we recognize reve@ue products contain embedded firmware
and software that allows for further differentiatiand customer integration, which together withcamsisting of, our ASIC chip delivers the
essential functionality of our products and, ashsgoftware revenue recognition guidance is noticgipe.

Investment:

Accounting standards require us to record avaitfdilesale securities at fair value, with unrealizgdns and losses being reported
as a component of other comprehensive income. Wenfethe accounting standards to assess whethdneestments with loss positions are
other-than-temporarily impaired. We follow the laisrhal approach established under the accountamgiatds to determine fair value of our
investments.

The accounting standards define fair value as tive that would be received to sell an asset ai fiatransfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants@imeasurement date. Our fair value estimatesdmmsmong other factors, the collateral
underlying the security investments, creditwortsmef the counterparty, timing of expected futuasicflows, and, in the case of ARS
investments, the probability of a successful aucitoa future period. We follow the guidance pr@ddo estimate fair value when the volume
and level of activity for an asset or liability fesignificantly decreased in relation to normal keaactivity for the asset or liability, and to
determine circumstances that may indicate tharessaction is not orderly.

Further, we use judgment in evaluating whetherdimkin fair value is temporary or other-than-teargry and consider the
following indicators: changes in credit ratingsasset quality; changes in the economic environniength of time and extent to which fair
value has been below cost basis; changes in meokeitions; and changes in expected cash flowsd@\eot intend to sell the investments,
and it is more likely than not that we will not tegjuired to sell the investments before recovertheir amortized cost basis. Temporary
declines in fair value are recorded as chargesdoraulated other comprehensive income in the e@eityion of our balance sheet, while othel
than-temporary declines in fair value are bifurdatetween credit losses, which are charged tomgsnand noncredit losses, which dependin
on facts and circumstances may be charged to ottmeprehensive income or earnings.
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Inventory

We state our inventories at the lower of cost orketa We base our assessment of the ultimate atiglizof inventories on our
projections of future demand and market conditi@slden declines in demand, rapid product improvesner technological changes, or any
combination of these factors can cause us to hesess or obsolete inventories. On an ongoing basiseview for estimated obsolete or
unmarketable inventories and write down our inveatoto their net realizable value based upon orgdasts of future demand and market
conditions. If actual market conditions are les@fable than our forecasts, additional inventoritavdowns may be required. The following
factors influence our estimates: changes to orakatmns of customer orders, unexpected declirdeimand, rapid product improvements and
technological advances, and termination or chabgesir OEM customers of any product offerings ipowating our product solutions.

Periodically, we purchase inventory from our cocttraanufacturers when a customer delays its dgliseiedule or cancels its
order. In those circumstances in which our custdmasrcancelled its order and we purchase inveifitony our contract manufacturers, we
record a write-down, if necessary, to reduce thieyoay value of the inventory purchased to its metlizable value. The effect of these write-
downs is to establish a new cost basis in theg@laventory, which we do not subsequently write\Wje also record a liability and charge to
cost of revenue for estimated losses on invent@ake obligated to purchase from our contract natufers when such losses become
probable from customer delays or order cancellation

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the fair value of net tangible and idenifgaintangible assets acquired.

Gooduwill is measured and tested for impairment alipauring the last quarter of our fiscal yearnoore frequently if we believe
indicators of impairment exist. Events that couigger a more frequent impairment review may ineladiverse industry or economic trends,
restructuring actions, lower projections of prdjitdy, or a sustained decline in our market cdjztdion. The impairment test involves a two-
step process where the first step requires congpénifair value of our one reporting unit to iet book value, including goodwill. We have
allocated our goodwill to a single company-widearing unit. Determining the fair value of a repiogt unit is judgmental in nature and
involves the use of significant estimates and aggiams. These estimates and assumptions includmvevgrowth rates and forecasted
operating margins used to calculate projected éutaish flows, risk-adjusted discount rates, fuao@nomic and market conditions and
determination of appropriate market comparablesb@se our fair value estimates on assumptions Vievbeo be reasonable. Actual future
results may differ from those estimates. Future petitive, market and economic conditions could tiggly impact key assumptions includi
our market capitalization or the carrying valueof net assets which could require us to realizengairment of our goodwill and intangible
assets.

A potential impairment exists if the fair valuetbg reporting unit is less than its net book valtlee second step of the process is
only performed if a potential impairment existsganinvolves determining the difference betweea filir value of the reporting unit's net
assets other than goodwill to the fair value ofréq@orting unit and if the difference is less thia@ net book value of goodwill, an impairment
exists and is recorded. No goodwill impairment weognized in fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Purchased Intangible

We review purchased intangible assets with finited for impairment whenever events or changefraumstances indicate the
carrying value of an asset may not be recover&®eoverability of these intangible assets is assklsased on the estimated undiscounted
future cash flows expected to result from the dsb@asset. If the undiscounted future cash flamsless than the carrying amount, the
purchased intangible assets with finite lives anestdered to be impaired. The amount of the impaitnis measured as the difference betweel
the carrying amount of these assets and the faieva

Our business combinations have included the puecbBm-process research and development asse¢@réhaot amortizable until
the underlying project is complete. We assessatiain-process research and development projecigplete when all material research and
development costs have been incurred and no signifrisks remain. We review the carrying valuéndgfinite-lived intangible assets for
impairment at least annually during the last quasteur fiscal year, or more frequently if we lgsle indicators of impairment exist.
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Business Combinatior

We have applied significant estimates and judgmientsder to determine the fair value of the idéad assets acquired, liabilities
assumed, goodwill recognized, and contingent cenatibn recorded in connection with our businesaliinations to ensure the value of the
assets and liabilities acquired are recognizediavélue as of the acquisition date. In measulttiegfair value, we utilize valuation techniques
consistent with the market approach, income apraarccost approach.

The valuation of the identifiable assets and libg includes assumptions made in performing tideation, such as projected
revenue, weighted average cost of capital, discraias, estimated useful lives, estimated proliggsilof achieving contingent payment
milestones, and other relevant assessments. Thesgsments can be significantly affected by oumegts, judgments, and assumptions.

We do not believe that there is a reasonable hikelil that there will be material changes to ouneges, judgments, or
assumptions. However, if actual results are nosistent with our estimates, judgments, or assumstior if additional or new information
arises in the future that affects our fair valuenestes, then adjustments to our initial fair vaistimates may have a material impact to our
purchase accounting or our results of operations.

Share-Based Compensation Costs

We account for employee share-based compensatsis icoaccordance with relevant accounting starsdaki utilize the Black-
Scholes option pricing model to estimate the gdate fair value of certain employee share-basedeosatory awards, which requires the
input of highly subjective assumptions, includingpected volatility and expected life. Historicaldamplied volatilities were used in estimat
the fair value of our share-based awards. The éggdife for our options was previously estimateddd on historical trends since our initial
public offering. In fiscal 2011, we began to graptions with a contractual life of seven yearseathan ten years, and we began using the
simplified method of establishing the expected difewe did not have any history of options witheseyear lives. In fiscal 2013, we began to
grant options that vest over a three-year perititerahan a four-year period, and we continue ®the simplified method of establishing the
expected life as we do not have any history ofamstithat vest over a three-year period. Chang#eese inputs and assumptions can materiall
affect the measure of estimated fair value of tiare-based compensation. Estimated forfeitureshfarebased awards that are not expecte
vest are estimated based on historical trends siacaitial public offering. We charge the estiea@ffair value less estimated forfeitures to
earnings on a straight-line basis over the vegigrgpd of the underlying awards, which is now gaiigithree years for our stock options and
DSUs and up to two years for our employee stocklmse plan.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was develojoe use in estimating the fair value of tradedians that have no vesting
restrictions and are fully transferable. As ourcktoption and our employee stock purchase plandsuaave characteristics that differ
significantly from traded options, and as changehé subjective assumptions can materially atfeetestimated value, our estimate of fair
value may not accurately represent the value asdigy a third party in an arms-length transactidrere currently is no market-based
mechanism to verify the reliability and accuracytld estimates derived from the Black-Scholes ogtiicing model or other allowable
valuation models, nor is there a means to compadedjust the estimates to actual values. Whileestimate of fair value and the associated
charge to earnings materially affects our resultgperations, it has no impact on our cash position

We estimate the fair value of market-based MSUkeatlate of grant using a Monte Carlo simulatiodet@nd amortize those fair
values over the requisite service period, genethiige years, adjusted for estimated forfeituregéxh separately vesting tranche of the awart
The Monte Carlo simulation model that we use tovese the fair value of market-based MSUs at the dagrant incorporates into the
valuation the possibility that the market conditioay not be satisfied. Provided that the requigt®ice is rendered, the total fair value of the
marketbased MSUs at the date of grant must be recogaiz@dmpensation expense even if the market cond#inot achieved. However, t
number of shares that ultimately vest can varyiigmtly with the performance of the specified ketrcriteria.
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There are significant variations among allowableiaon models, and there is a possibility thatmay adopt a different valuation
model or refine the inputs and assumptions undecworent valuation models in the future, resulfim@ lack of consistency in future periods.
Our current or future valuation model and the ispartd assumptions we make may also lack compayatoilother companies that use diffel
models, inputs, or assumptions, and the resultifigrednces in comparability could be material.

Income Taxe

We recognize federal, foreign, and state currenlighilities or assets based on our estimatexdgaayable or refundable in the
then current fiscal year for each tax jurisdictigve also recognize federal, foreign, and statercerddax liabilities or assets for our estimate of
future tax effects attributable to temporary diieces and carryforwards and record a valuationvahee to reduce any deferred tax assets by
the amount of any tax benefits that, based on a@viailevidence and our judgment, are not expectbd tealized. If our assumptions, and
consequently our estimates, change in the futheeyaluation allowance we have established fodeterred tax assets may be changed, whic
could impact income tax expense.

We use a two-step approach to recognizing and mieguncertain tax positions. The first step islatermine whether it is more-
likely-than-not that a tax position will be sustaihupon examination, including resolution of anterl appeals or litigation processes. The
second step is to measure the tax benefit as ihesibamount that is more than 50% likely of bewgized upon ultimate settlement with a
taxing authority. The calculation of tax liabilisiénvolves significant judgment in estimating theact of uncertainties in the application of
highly complex tax laws. Resolution of these uraiaties in a manner inconsistent with our expeateticould have a material impact on our
consolidated financial position, result of operasipor cash flows. We believe we have adequatelyiged for reasonably foreseeable outcc
in connection with the resolution of income tax emainties. However, our results have in the asd, could in the future, include favorable
and unfavorable adjustments to our estimated &doililies in the period a determination of suchneated tax liability is made or resolved, uj
the filing of an amended return, upon a changadtsf circumstances, or interpretation, or uporetperation of a statute of limitation.
Accordingly, our effective tax rate could fluctuataterially from period to period.

We consider the operating earnings of our foreigrsiliaries to be indefinitely invested outside ltheted States. Accordingly, no
provision has been made for the U.S. federal, statfreign taxes that may result from future réamces of undistributed earnings of our
foreign subsidiaries.

We recognize tax benefit upon expensing certaireshased awards associated with our share-basegec@ation plans, including
nonqualified stock options DSUs, and MSUs, but aenot recognize tax benefit concurrent with th@gedtion of share-based compensation
expenses associated with qualified stock optiamse(itive stock options and employee stock purchiseshares). For qualified stock options,
we recognize tax benefit only in the period whesgdalifying dispositions of the underlying stoclcog which historically has been up to
several years after vesting and in a period wherstmek price substantially increases. As a result future quarterly and annual effective tax
rates will be subject to greater volatility andnsequently, our ability to estimate reasonablyfature quarterly and annual effective tax rat:
greatly diminished.
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Results of Operations

The following sets forth certain of our consolidhstatements of income data for fiscal 2013, 2@h@,2011, along with
comparative information regarding the absolute perdentage changes in these amounts (in thousaxmkpt percentages):

Mobile product applications
PC product applicatior
Net revenu
Gross margir
Operating expense

Research and developmt

Selling, general, and administrati
Acquired intangibles amortizatic
Change in contingent considerati
Gain on sale of property and equipm

Operating incom:
Interest incomt
Interest expens
Non-cash interest incorr

Impairment recovery on investments,
Income before provision for income tay

Provision for income taxe
Net income

(1) not meaningfu

2013 2012 $ Change % Change 2012 2011 $ Change % Change
$424,07¢ $270,10¢ $153,97( 57.(% $270,10¢ $309,16¢ $(39,06() (12.€%)
239,51 278,12: (38,61() (13.9%) 278,12. 289,37. (11,250 (3.€%)
663,58{ 548,22{ 115,36( 21.(% 548,22¢ 598,53¢ (50,31() (8.4%)
325,80¢ 255,56° 70,23 27.5%0 255,567 246,07( 9,497 3.%%
144,69¢ 117,95: 26,74¢ 22.1% 117,95 105,00: 12,95! 12.2%
79,62( 70,04 9,57¢ 13.7% 70,04 68,54¢ 1,49¢ 2.2%
1,02t — 1,02t n/m@® — — — n/m®
1,34 — 1,34 n/m@® — — — n/m®
(1,57¢) — (1,579 n/m@® — — — n/m®
100,69: 67,56¢ 33,12 49.(% 67,56¢ 72,51¢ (4,950 (6.6%)
86t 922 (57 (6.2%) 922 911 11 1.2%
a7 a7 — 0.C% ()] a7 — 0.C%
194 — 194 n/m@ — — — n/m@
— 77 (77)  (100.(%) 77 59 18 30.5%
101,73: 68,55( 33,18: 48.4% 68,55( 73,47: (4,927 (6.7%)
2,80( 14,40¢ (11,606 (80.€%) 14,40¢ 9,67¢ 4,731 48.9%
$ 98,937 $ 54,14 $ 44,78¢ 82.7% $ 54,14+ $ 63,79¢ $ (9,657) (15.19%)

The following sets forth certain of our consolidhttatements of income data as a percentage ofvetues for fiscal 2013, 2012,

and 2011:

Mobile product applications
PC product applicatior
Net revenue¢
Gross margir
Operating expense

Research and developmt
Selling, general, and administrati

Operating incom:

Income before provision for income tay

Provision for income taxe
Net income

Fiscal 2013 Compared with Fiscal 2012

Net Revenue

Percentagt Percentagt
Point Point
Increase Increase
2013 2012 (Decrease 2012 2011 (Decrease
63.€% 49.2% 14.6% 49.2% 51.7% (2.4%)
36.1% 50.7% (14.€%) 50.7% 48.2% 2.4%
100.(% 100.(% 100.% 100.(%
49.1% 46.€% 2.5% 46.€% 41.1% 5.5%
21.8% 21.5% 0.2% 21.5% 17.5%% 4.C%
12.(% 12.8% (0.8%) 12.&8% 11.5% 1.2%
15.2% 12.2% 2.% 12.2% 12.1% 0.2%
15.5% 12.5% 2.8% 12.5% 12.2% 0.2%
0.4% 2.6% (2.2%) 2.6% 1.6% 1.0%
14.% 9.€% 5.C% 9.%% 10.7% (0.8%)

Net revenue was $663.6 million for fiscal 2013 camgal with $548.2 million for fiscal 2012, an incseaof $115.4 million, or
21.0%. Of our fiscal 2013 net revenue, $424.1 onillior 63.9%, of net revenue was from the mobitelpct applications market and $239.5
million, or 36.1%, of net revenue was from the pead computing product applications market. Theraléncrease in net revenue for fiscal
2013 was attributable to a $154.0 million, or 57,086rease in net revenue from mobile product apfitins, partially offset by a decrease of
$38.6 million, or 13.9%, in net revenue from PCdurat applications. Specific reasons for the inaeasiet revenue were primarily attributa
to an increase in the units sold in the mobile pob@pplications market, reflecting both the grayvinarket and an increase in our market s
Within the mobile product applications market, @ustomer accounted for 14% of fiscal 2013 net raeeffhe decrease in PC product
applications was primarily a result of lower uridtes reflecting the continued weakness in the wadd PC product applications market.
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Based on industry estimates of unit shipments ftafendar 2012 to 2013, the mobile smartphone méslagiticipated to increase
approximately 22%, the notebook market is antieéipgdab increase approximately 1%, and the tableketas anticipated to increase 59%.

Gross Margin.

Gross margin as a percentage of net revenue wa%49r $325.8 million, for fiscal 2013 comparedwt6.6%, or $255.6 million,
for fiscal 2012. The 250 basis point improvemengrioss margin was primarily attributable to a falde mix of higher margin mobile product
applications revenue driven largely by the contéhshift in our overall revenue mix to mobile protapplications revenue consisting
predominately of higher margin chip solutions.

We continuously introduce new product solutionspynaf which have life cycles of less than a yeanrtifer, as we sell our
capacitive sensing technology in designs that anelly unique or specific to an OEM customer’pl@gtion, gross margin varies on a
product-by-product basis, making our cumulativesgrmargin a blend of our product specific desigrisindependent of the vertical markets
that our products serve. As a virtual manufactwer,gross margin percentage is generally not inggamaterially by our shipment volume.
We charge losses on inventory purchase obligatodswrite-downs to reduce the carrying value obtdts, slow moving, and non-usable
inventory to net realizable value (including watsaoosts) to cost of revenue.

Operating Expenses.

Research and Development Expendeesearch and development expenses increasedrfiifon, to $144.7 million, in fiscal 201
compared with fiscal 2012. The increase in reseanchdevelopment expenses primarily reflected adbifilion increase in employee
compensation and employment-related costs, regutiiom a 13.9% increase in research and developstefiing and annual compensation
adjustments, and a $5.8 million increase in inftagtire costs to support the additional staff.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expens8glling, general, and administrative expensesased $9.6 million, to $79.6
million, in fiscal 2013 compared with fiscal 20Ithe increase in selling, general, and administeagixpenses primarily reflected a $7.6 mill
increase in employee compensation and employmadatied costs resulting from a 11.8% increaselimgegeneral, and administrative staff
and annual compensation adjustments.

Acquired Intangibles AmortizatioAcquired intangibles amortization reflects the atization of intangibles acquired through rec
acquisitions. See note 6 to the financial statemeantained elsewhere in this report.

Change in Contingent Consideratio€hange in contingent consideration reflects trenge in fair value of the contingent
consideration liability related to our acquisitiohPacinian. See note 5 to the financial statememr$ained elsewhere in this report.

Gain on property and equipmenthe gain on sale of property and equipment redufiom the sale of our former headquarters
building.

Operating Income.

We generated operating income of $100.7 millionfifsral 2013, an increase of $33.1 million companstth fiscal 2012. As
discussed in the preceding paragraphs, the incieageerating income was primarily the result afreased operating leverage from the 21%
increase in net revenue, the decline in operatipgreses as a percentage of net revenue, and ther lgjgpss margin percentage.
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Nor-Operating Income.
Interest Income Interest income was $865,000 for fiscal 2013 carag with $922,000 for fiscal 2012.

Interest Expensénterest expense was $17,000 for fiscal 2013 al@.20
Non-cash interest incomBon-cash interest income related to accretion tefr@st on our ARS investments.

Impairment of Investmentd-or fiscal 2013, there was no recognized gaioss on the redemption of $3.4 million of our ARS
investments. For fiscal 2012, we recognized a gaBv 7,000 on the redemption of $10.1 million of &RS investments.

Provision for Income Taxe

The provision for income taxes was $2.8 million &id.4 million for fiscal 2013 and 2012, respedtiv&he income tax provision
represented estimated U.S. federal, foreign, aatd sixes for fiscal 2013 and 2012. The effectiverate for fiscal 2013 was approximately
2.8% and diverged from the combined federal ant statutory rate, primarily as a result of ovessgafits taxed in lower tax rate
jurisdictions, the resolution of an income tax auaind the benefit of research tax credits; paytiaffset by foreign withholding taxes and 1
unrecognized tax benefits associated with qualsiedk options. The effective tax rate for fiscall2 was approximately 21.0% and diverged
from the combined federal and state statutory mtmarily as a result of overseas profits taxetbimer tax rate jurisdictions, the recognitior
previously unrecognized tax benefits, and the beokfesearch tax credits, partially offset bydign withholding taxes and net unrecognized
tax benefits associated with qualified stock option

In fiscal 2011, we were notified by the InternaM@sue Service (Service) that our fiscal 2003 thhoR@06 and fiscal 2008 through
2010 would be subject to an audit. The early pearigdre audited in connection with a mandatory rewétax refunds in excess of $2.0
million when we carried back our fiscal 2008 neei@giing loss. In March 2013, we received the Regehgent’s report resolving our
examination with the Service and paid an assesstnanhad no material impact to our condensed diagded financial statements, which
triggered the reevaluation of the measurementiof gear uncertain tax positions and resulted enxrdrognition of $15.8 million of previously
unrecognized tax benefits in fiscal 2013. Our éasrirrently under review by the Joint Committed akation, which we anticipate will
conclude in fiscal 2014. Any prospective adjustraagatour unrecognized tax benefits will be records@n increase or decrease to income ta
expense and cause a corresponding change to euatiefftax rate. Accordingly, our effective taxer@buld fluctuate materially from period to
period.

Fiscal 2012 Compared with Fiscal 2011
Net Revenue

Net revenue was $548.2 million for fiscal 2012 camgal with $598.5 million for fiscal 2011, a decrea$ $50.3 million, or 8.4%.
Of our fiscal 2012 net revenue, $278.1 million56r7%, of net revenue was from the personal comgutiarket and $270.1 million, or 49.3%,
of net revenue was from the mobile product appbest market. The overall decrease in net revenufisical 2012 was attributable to a $39.1
million, or 12.6%, decrease in net revenue from ilegtiroduct applications and a decrease of $11lBomjor 3.9%, in net revenue from PC
product applications. Specific reasons for the el@ee in net revenue were primarily attributabla kower priced product mix in the mobile
product applications market and lower revenue fRnperipherals. Net revenue from mobile productiegtons, was down due to a shift in
revenue from higher priced full sensor module sohs to lower priced chip or tail solutions, palitiaffset by an increase in mobile product
unit shipments.

Gross Margin.

Gross margin as a percentage of net revenue wé%46r $255.6 million, for fiscal 2012 comparedwitl.1%, or $246.1 million,
for fiscal 2011. The 550 basis point improvemengrioss margin was primarily attributable to a shifinobile product revenue from lower
margin full sensor module solutions to higher maughip or tail solutions.
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Operating Expenses.

Research and Development ExpendResearch and development activities increased$alion to $118.0 million in fiscal 2012
compared with fiscal 2011. The increase in reseancthdevelopment expenses primarily reflected adbtlion increase in employee
compensation and employment-related costs, regutiirm a 9.6% increase in research and developstafiing and annual compensation
adjustments.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expens8glling, general, and administrative activitiesreased $1.5 million to $70.0 millic
in fiscal 2012 compared with fiscal 2011. The ir@® in selling, general, and administrative expepsenarily reflected a $4.8 million incre:
in employee compensation and employment-relatet$ cesulting from a 5.2% increase in selling, gahend administrative staffing and
annual compensation adjustments, partially offged B2.7 million reduction in non-recurring exeegeatpfficer resignation costs.

Operating Income.

We generated operating income of $67.6 millionfimral 2012, a decrease of $4.9 million comparetth fiscal 2011. As discussed
in the preceding paragraphs, the decrease in apgiatome was primarily attributable to a decreiaseet revenue and a $14.4 million
increase in our operating expenses, partially bfigean increase in gross profit resulting from impged gross margins.

Nor-Operating Income.
Interest Income Interest income was $922,000 for fiscal 2012 carag with $911,000 for fiscal 2011.

Interest Expensénterest expense was $17,000 for fiscal 2012 add 20

Impairment of Investments-or fiscal 2012, we recognized a gain of $77,60@he redemption of $10.1 million of our ARS
investments. For fiscal 2011, we recognized a gh#b9,000 on the redemption of $3.2 million of RS investments.

Provision for Income Taxe

The provision for income taxes was $14.4 milliod &9.7 million for fiscal 2012 and 2011, respediiv&he income tax provision
represented estimated U.S. federal, foreign, aatd saxes for fiscal 2012 and 2011. The effectiverate for fiscal 2012 was approximately
21.0% and diverged from the combined federal aatk Statutory rate, primarily as a result of ovasserofits taxed in lower tax rate
jurisdictions and the benefit of research tax dsegliartially offset by foreign withholding taxesdanet unrecognized tax benefits associ
with qualified stock options. The effective taxedbr fiscal 2011 was approximately 13.2% and djeerfrom the combined federal and state
statutory rate, primarily as a result of overseadifs taxed in lower tax rate jurisdictions, trecognition of previously unrecognized tax
benefits, and the benefit of research tax crepigjally offset by foreign withholding taxes anétminrecognized tax benefits associated with
qualified stock options.
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Quarterly Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our unaudited qudytessults of operations for the eight quarterthia two-year period ended
June 30, 2013. The following table should be r@acbnjunction with the financial statements andtetl notes contained elsewhere in this
report. We have prepared this unaudited informatiothe same basis as our audited financial stattsm€his table includes all adjustments,
consisting only of normal recurring adjustmentsttive consider necessary for a fair presentatiauofinancial position and results of
operations for the quarters presented. Past resfuliserations are not necessarily indicative dfifiet operating performance; accordingly, you
should not draw any conclusions about our futuselte from the results of operations for any quastesented.

Three Months Ended

Decembe Septembe Decembe Septembe
(in thousands, except per share amounts) June March June March
(unaudited; 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011
Net revenue $230,18! $163,32: $ 143,04( $ 127,04: $137,60° $131,70! $ 14547( $ 133,44t
Cost of revenur 115,06: 82,24: 74,01( 66,47: 74,20: 69,52¢ 76,74 72,18¢
Gross margir 115,12: 81,08 69,03( 60,57( 63,40 62,18( 68,72: 61,26(
Operating expense
Research and developm 40,90( 36,74( 34,257 32,80: 30,47¢ 29,41t 29,831 28,22¢
Selling, general, and administrati 21,52: 20,18 19,00¢ 18,90¢ 17,58 18,03: 17,72: 16,70¢
Acquired intangibles amortizatic 262 262 261 24C — — — —
Change in contingent considerat 247 237 57€ 287 — — — —
Gain on sale of property and equipm (1,57¢) — — — — — — —
Total operating expens 61,352 57,42 54,10: 52,237 48,06( 47,44¢ 47 ,55¢ 44,93t
Operating incom: 53,76¢ 23,66 14,92¢ 8,33: 15,34« 14,73« 21,16¢ 16,32¢
Interest incom 22k 197 22t 21€ 24 231 251 20C
Interest expens (4) (4) (5) (4) (4) (4) 5) (4)
Non-cash interest incorr 194 — — — — — — —
Impairment (loss)/recovery of investme — — — — 18 46 () 2C
Income before income tax 54,18¢ 23,85 15,14¢ 8,547 15,59¢ 15,007 21,40« 16,54:
Provision/(benefit) for income tax 8,86¢ (12,597) 4,034 2,49¢ 3,29¢ 3,561 4,021 3,52¢
Net income $ 4532( $ 3644t $ 11,11« $ 6,05¢ ¢ 12,30( $ 11,44¢ $ 17,380 $ 13,01t
Net income per shar
Basic $ 137 $ 11 3 034 8 01t $ 037 $ 03¢ § 05 $ 0.4(C
Diluted $ 12¢ $ 107 $ 03 $ 01¢ $ 03¢ $ 032 $ 051 $ 0.3¢
Shares used in computing net income per sl
Basic 32,97¢ 32,23¢ 32,47¢ 32,94: 33,32 33,38¢ 32,56¢ 32,87¢
Diluted 35,15( 34,13t 33,31 34,01« 34,50! 35,17¢ 34,00¢ 33,77

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash and cash equivalents, which exclude ARSsiments, were $355.3 million as of the end @013 compared with
$305.0 million as of the end of fiscal 2012, arré@ase of $50.3 million. This increase primarilyleefed $102.2 million provided from
operating cash flows, $37.4 million from the isstenf shares under our employee equity compensptagrams, $12.6 million in proceeds
from the sale of our former headquarters build$8y4 million in proceeds from redemptions of AR8astments, partially offset by $48.5
million used for the purchase of property and emépt, which includes the purchase and renovatimuohew headquarters campus, $46.3
million used to repurchase shares of our commackstb6.0 million used for a business acquisitioh7dmillion used for payroll taxes for
deferred stock units, and $4.6 used for the paymiecontingent consideration. We consider earnfgsur foreign subsidiaries indefinitely
invested overseas and have made no provision ¢ome or withholding taxes that may result from tife repatriation of those earnings. A«
June 30, 2013, $304.6 million of cash and cashvedgrits was held by our foreign subsidiaries. éiséhfunds are needed for our operations in
the United States, we would be required to accraepay U.S. taxes to repatriate these funds.
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Cash Flows from Operating ActivitieBor fiscal 2013, net cash provided by operatingvaiets of $102.2 million was primarily
attributable to net income of $98.9 million plugwedments for non-cash charges, including shareébesmpensation costs of $32.2 million,
depreciation and amortization of $10.8 million,atinon-cash adjustments of $2.2 million and a hahge in operating assets and liabilities of
$37.7 million. The net change in operating assatsliabilities related primarily to the $44.3 milfi increase in accounts receivable resulting
from the substantial increase in net revenue irdthee quarter of fiscal 2013 compared with fis€dl2 Our days sales outstanding improved
from 68 to 58 days from fiscal 2012 to fiscal 200&r inventory turns remained stable at 9 for #me period. For fiscal 2012, net cash
provided by operating activities of $101.4 milliaras primarily attributable to net income of $54.ilion plus adjustments for non-cash
charges, including share-based compensation cb$&4® million, depreciation and deferred taxegragating $9.5 million, and a net change
in operating assets and liabilities of $4.6 milli@ur days sales outstanding increased from 58 we§s from fiscal 2011 to fiscal 2012 as our
net revenue was more backend loaded in fiscal 2@d2it was in fiscal 2011. Our inventory turns @ased from 11 to 9 for the same period.
For fiscal 2011, net cash provided by operating/giets of $89.7 million was primarily attributabte net income of $63.8 million plus
adjustments for non-cash charges, including shased compensation costs of $33.9 million, deprieciatnd deferred taxes aggregating $7.5
million, and a net decrease in operating assetdiaitities of $14.3 million. The net decreaseoiperating assets and liabilities related prim
to a decrease in accounts payable of $20.7 milar.days sales outstanding decreased slightly 8o 59 days from fiscal 2010 to fiscal
2011 and our inventory turns decreased from 14 tfmdthe same period.

Cash Flows from Investing ActivitigBur investing activities for fiscal 2013 includedrphases of capital assets, a business
acquisition, the sale of a building and land, agaemptions on non-current investments. Net casth imsevesting activities for fiscal 2013,
2012, and 2011 was $37.5 million, $14.9 milliond &8.4 million, respectively. Net cash used in Btirgg activities for fiscal 2013 consisted
$48.5 million used for the purchase of capital tssk5.0 million used for a business acquisitianrtiplly offset by proceeds of $12.6 million
the sale of a building and land as well as proceé¢®8.4 million from redemptions of ARS investmeriflet cash used in investing activities
for fiscal 2012 consisted of $14.6 million used édousiness acquisition, $10.4 million used forghechase of capital assets, partially offset b
proceeds of $10.1 million from redemptions of AR8dstments. Net cash used in investing activibesiscal 2011 consisted of $11.6 million
used for the purchase of capital assets, partdifet by proceeds of $3.2 million for redempti@iARS investments.

Cash Flows from Financing ActivitieNlet cash used in financing activities for fiscal 202012, and 2011 was $14.3 million, $28.7
million, and $44.0 million, respectively. Our netst used in financing activities for fiscal 2013svpaimarily attributable to $46.3 million used
to repurchase shares of our common stock in the opeket, $4.7 million used for the payment of jédiysaxes for DSUs, $4.6 million used
the payment of contingent consideration, partiaffget by $37.4 million of proceeds from commoncktssued under our share-based
compensation plans. Our net cash used in finaragtigities for fiscal 2012 was primarily attributatio $61.7 million used to repurchase
shares of our common stock in the open market &@ifillion used for the payment of payroll taxes DSUs, partially offset by $34.9
million of proceeds from common stock issued uramershare-based compensation plans. Our net cashiru§inancing activities for fiscal
2011 was primarily attributable to $70.2 millionedsto repurchase shares of our common stock ingha market and $3.1 million used for
payment of payroll taxes for DSUs, partially offegt$26.4 million of proceeds from common stockiess under share-based compensation
plans and $2.9 million excess tax benefit from shHzased compensation.

Common Stock Purchase Progrdm.July 2013, our board of directors authorizedadditional $100.0 million for our common
stock repurchase program bringing the cumulativeaization to $620.0 million, expiring in Octob2015. The program authorizes us to
purchase our common stock in the open market privtately negotiated transactions, depending uparkat conditions and other factors. The
number of shares purchased and the timing of paeshis based on the level of our cash balancesradusiness and market conditions, and
other factors, including alternative investmentappnities. Common stock purchased under this piags held as treasury stock. From April
2005 through the end of fiscal 2013, we repurchd3e883,932 shares of our common stock in the operket for an aggregate cost of $460.2
million. Treasury shares purchased prior to Au@8t2008 were not subject to the stock split on dade, if adjusted for the stock split the
average cost would be $20.99. As of July 2013, ac$159.8 million remaining under our common stpekchase program.

Bank Credit Facility We currently maintain a $50.0 million working cagpiline of credit with Wells Fargo Bank. The Welargo
Bank revolving line of credit, which expires on apber 1, 2013, provides for an interest rate etgutile prime lending rate or 250 basis
points above LIBOR, depending on whether we chaogariable or fixed rate, respectively. We did botrow any amounts under the line of
credit during and subsequent to fiscal 2013. Wecareently negotiating the renewal of this linecoédit for another year.
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$100 Million Shelf RegistratioWe have registered an aggregate of $100.0 millfa@ommon stock and preferred stock for
issuance in connection with acquisitions, whichrebaenerally will be freely tradeable after thestuance under Rule 145 of the Securities Ac
unless held by an affiliate of the acquired compamyvhich case such shares will be subject tostiieme and manner of sale restrictions of
Rule 144.

Liquidity and Capital Resource®/e believe our existing cash and cash equivalerdsaaticipated cash flows from operating
activities will be sufficient to meet our workinguital and other cash requirements over the cafraeleast the next 12 months. Our future
capital requirements will depend on many factarsluding our revenue, the timing and extent of sii@gmto support product development
efforts, costs related to protecting our intelletforoperty, the expansion of sales and marketitigifies, the timing of introductions of new
products and enhancements to existing productsabis to ensure access to adequate manufactaiegity, the timing and costs of
procuring, improving, and renovating office spazerteet our anticipated employee headcount requitesneur common stock purchase
program, and the amount and timing of our investsiam or acquisitions of, other technologies anpanies. Further equity or debt financing
may not be available to us on acceptable termsait. df sufficient funds are not available or aret available on acceptable terms, our ability
to take advantage of unexpected business oppaesioit to respond to competitive pressures coulihieed or severely constrained.

Our non-current investments consist of ARS investisievhich have failed to settle in auctions. Thesestments are not liquid,
and in the event we need to access these fundsjllwet be able to do so without a loss of priradipunless a future auction on these
investments is successful.

Based on our ability to access our cash and casliagnts, our expected operating cash flows, amdther sources of cash, we
not anticipate the lack of liquidity on these intveents will affect our ability to operate our busss as usual. Further, while we do not
anticipate the need to remit undistributed earnofgsur foreign subsidiaries to meet our workingital and other cash requirements, if we did
remit such earnings we would be required to acangepay U.S. taxes to repatriate these funds, whdakid adversely impact our financial
position and results of operations.
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Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth a summary of our eniail contractual obligations and commercial commaiits as of the end of fiscal
2013 (in millions):

Payments due by peric

Less tha 1-3 35 More thai

Contractual Obligation Total 1 year Years Years 5 Years

Convertible senior subordinated notes $3 $ — $— $— $ 3

Leases 9 3 2 2 2
Purchase obligations and other commitment: 17 6 11 — —

Total $2¢9 $ 9 $ 13 $ 2 $ 5

(1) Represents both principal and interest payableutiirahe maturity date of the underlying contracttdigation.
(2) Purchase obligations and other commitmentaidepayments due under a building constructionesgeat, contingent consideration,
long-term services agreement and inventory purchasgailidns with contract manufacture

In connection with the acquisition of Pacinian imd 2012, we entered into a contingent consideraticangement. As of the end
fiscal 2013, we owe up to $10.0 million of addi@bconsideration to the former Pacinian stockhadersed on sales of products utilizing
ThinTouch technology through June 2016, which éduded in the above table. The estimated fair vafuée contingent consideration liability
as of June 30, 2013 was $8.2 million.

The amounts in the table above exclude unrecogiiebenefits of $8.2 million. As of the end ofdéd 2013, we were unable to
make a reasonably reliable estimate of when caskmsent with a taxing authority may occur in coati@n with our gross unrecognized tax
benefits.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any transactions, arrangementgsher celationships with unconsolidated entities e reasonably likely to
materially affect our financial condition, changedinancial condition, revenues or expenses, teqafloperations, liquidity, or capital
resources. We have no special purpose or limitepgse entities that provide off-balance sheet fiirag liquidity, or market or credit risk
support; engage in leasing, hedging, or researdtdanelopment services; or have other relationghigisexpose us to liability that is not
reflected in our financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements Not Yetftective

In July 2013, the FASB issued an accounting stafsdapdate on presentation of an unrecognized tagfibevhen a net operating
loss carryforward, a similar tax loss carryforwasda tax credit carryforward exists. The new staddequires that an unrecognized tax benef
should be presented as a reduction of deferreddsats for a net operating loss carryforward, @asitax loss carryforward, or a tax credit
carryforward, if such carryforwards are requiregrpected to settle additional income taxes irethent the uncertain tax position is
disallowed. The new standard also requires in s carryforwards cannot be used or the defaar@ssets are not intended to be used for
such purpose, that the unrecognized tax benefitldhae recorded as a liability and should not lesented as a reduction of deferred tax as
We are required to adopt this standard for ourimt@nd annual periods in fiscal 2015. We are aulyeevaluating the impact of adopting this
guidance, but do not expect it to have a matamgkict on our consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK
Interest rate risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interests relates primarily to our cash and cash edgrits and ARS investments. We
do not use our investment portfolio for tradingotiner speculative purposes.

The table below presents principal amounts ande@laeighted average interest rates by year ofnityafor our cash equivalents
and investments as of the end of fiscal 2013 (@us$lands, except average interest rates):

Fiscal Year Ended June 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter Total \}:;qure
Assets
Cash equivalent- variable rate
Money marke $350,52: $— $ — $— $ — $ — $350,52:  $350,52:
Average interest ral 0.1 — — — — — 0.14&%
Total cash equivalen $350,52: $— $ — $— $ — $ — $350,52:  $350,52:
Average interest ral 0.1 — — — — — 0.14%
Non-current investment $ — $— $2,000 $— $13,50( $ 8,50C $ 24,000 $ 16,96¢
Average interest ral — — 0.6% — 2.4€% 1.4%% 2.01%

Our Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes beaxedfcoupon interest rate of 0.75% and mature ireBéer 2024. The noteholders
could require us to repurchase their notes on Dbeerhy 2014, December 1, 2019, or in the eventfohdamental change as described in the
indenture governing the notes. In addition, if agristock price conditions are met a conversiohtroguld trigger providing noteholders with
the right to convert all or a portion of their n@tdhe early repayment of the notes is not refteatehe preceding schedule.

Our non-current investments, which consist of AR&stments, have a par value of $24.0 million aaeHailed to settle in
auctions beginning in 2007. These investments aréquid, and in the event we need to access thests, we will not be able to do so
without a loss of principal, unless redeemed byighaers or a future auction on these investmergadcessful. During fiscal 2013, $3.4 mill
of our ARS investments were redeemed at par andadeno recognized gain or loss on the redemptidhesfe investments.

As there are currently no active markets for outotss failed ARS investments, we have estimateddiresalue of these
investments as of the end of fiscal 2013 usingnartnial discounted cash flow analysis. The analgeissidered, among other factors, the
following:

. the collateral underlying the security investme

. the creditworthiness of the counterpa

. the timing of expected future cash flov

. the probability of a successful auction in a futpegiod;

. the underlying structure of each investm

. the present value of future principal and intepastments discounted at rates considered to reflectnt market condition:
. a consideration of the probabilities of defaultsgiag a future auction, or redemption at par fahgzeriod; anc

. estimates of the recovery rates in the event audefor each investmer

When possible, our failed ARS investments were amexbto other observable market data or securitighssimilar characteristics.
Our estimate of the fair value of our ARS investisarould fluctuate materially from period to peridepending on future market conditions.

Contractual maturities for our ARS investmentsgererally greater than five years, with fair vadli&11.8 million maturing from
fiscal 2016 to fiscal 2018 and $3.2 million matgriinom fiscal 2044 to fiscal 2046, and $2.0 milliaith no maturity. Of our ARS investments
$5.5 million par value are investment grade; ardréimaining $18.5 million par value are below irirent grade.
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Based on our ability to access our cash and casliadgnts, our expected operating cash flows, amdther sources of cash, we
not anticipate the lack of liquidity on these inwesnts will affect our ability to operate our busss as usual.

There have been no significant changes in the ihatlates and average interest rates for our caqsivalents and debt obligations
subsequent to fiscal 2013.

Foreign currency exchange risk

All of our revenue and approximately 92% of our salidated costs are denominated in U.S. dollarsa Aesult, we have relatively
little exposure to foreign currency exchange riskd foreign exchange losses have been immaternitte We do not currently enter into
forward-exchange contracts to hedge exposure derabed in foreign currencies or any other derivatinancial instruments for trading or
speculative purposes. In the future, if our operetichange and we determine that our foreign exygharposure has increased, we may
consider entering into hedging transactions togaté such risk.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Reference is made to the financial statementseihert of our independent registered public acdagrfirm, and the notes thereto
commencing at page Fof this report, which financial statements, répand notes are incorporated herein by referdRegerence is also ma
to the quarterly results of operations on pagef48is report, which quarterly results of operatanre incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusions Regarding Disclosure Controls and Proderes

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our Chief Executive €ffiand Chief Financial
Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemtiess of the design and operation of our disclosomé&ols and procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the ExchangeBased on this evaluation, our Chief Executivéd@f and Chief Financial Officer, as of
June 29, 2013, concluded that our disclosure clsnimd procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15@)L&d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) are
effective to ensure that information required tadiselosed by us in the reports we file or submider the Exchange Act is recorded, proce:
summarized, and reported within the time perioadxgied in the SEC rules and forms and that sufdrimation is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our Chiefcutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, &gpropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

We are responsible for establishing and maintaiahgguate internal control over financial reporijag defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Under thestgion and with the participation of our managamacluding our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conductadevaluation of the effectiveness of our interraiteol over financial reporting based on the
framework in thenternal Control—Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission
which was issued in 1992. Based on our evaluatimeuthe framework imternal Control—Integrated Frameworlour management
concluded that our internal control over financegorting was effective as of June 29, 2013. Tkex@fieness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of June 29, 2013 has beéitediby KPMG LLP, an independent registered puddicounting firm, as stated in its report
included herein on page F-2.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control oveairicial reporting during our most recent fiscalrtgrathat has materially affecte
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, ontérnal control over financial reporting.
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Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, does not expect tha disclosure controls and
procedures or our internal controls over financéglorting will prevent all error and all fraud. Argrol system, no matter how well conceived
and operated, can provide only reasonable, notlsties@ssurance that the objectives of the cosyrsiem are met. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that thereraseurce constraints, and the benefits of contnaist be considered relative to their costs.
Because of the inherent limitations in all consgétems, no evaluation of controls can provide lalbs@ssurance that all control issues,
misstatements, errors, and instances of fraucdyif within our company have been or will be preeentr detected. Further, internal controls
may become inadequate as a result of changes ditioms, or through the deterioration of the degreeompliance with policies or
procedures.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION

There were no items requiring reporting on Form 8t were not reported on Form 8-K during the floguarter of the year covered by
this Form 10-K.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by this Item relating foedtors of our company and corporate governange@porated herein by
reference to the definitive Proxy Statement toileel fpursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange fAciour 2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders. The information required by this Itextating to our executive officers is includedtiem 1. Business — Executive Officers of the
Registrant.

We have adopted a code of ethics that appliesrttprincipal executive officer, principal financiafficer, and other senior
accounting personnel. The “Code of Ethics for tl@CGand Senior Financial Officers” is located on website at www.synaptics.coim the
Investor Relations section under Corporate Govergan

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirementuigm 5.05(c) of Form 8-K regarding any amendntenor waiver from, a
provision of this code of ethics by posting sudieimation on our website, at the address and lonatpecified above.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorp@éherein by reference to the definitive Proxy Stent (particularly under the
caption “Executive Compensation”) to be filed punsuto Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for 00L2 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is incorpaéherein by reference to the definitive Proxy @&tent (particularly under the
caption “Security Ownership of Principal StockhakleDirectors, and Officers'tp be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of the ExalpaAct for
our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is incorp@éherein by reference to the definitive Proxy Stent (particularly under the
caption “Certain Relationships and Related Tramsast) to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A oé thxchange Act for our 2013 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorpaéherein by reference to the definitive Proxy Stant (particularly under the
caption “Ratification of Appointment of Independéniditor”) to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14Atbe Exchange Act for our 2013 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.
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ITEM 15.

PART IV

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) Financial Statements and Financial Statement 8edules

1)

Exhibit
Number

3.1
3.1(b)
3.2
3.3
3.4

4

4(b)

4(c)

4.6
10.6(a)*
10.6(b)*
10.6(c)*
10.8*
10.17*

10.24(a)’
10.24(b)’
10.24(c)*
10.24(d)’
10.24(e)’
10.24(f)*

10.25*
10.26*
10.27*
10.28*
10.28(a)’

10.29*
10.30

10.30(a)

Financial Statements are listed in the Index t@Raial Statements on pag-1 of this report
(b) Exhibits

Exhibit

Certificate of Incorporation (1

Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Rapi@ting Preferred Stock (.

Third Amended and Restated Bylaws (amended andteeisas of July 27, 2010) (
Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorption of the registrant (¢
Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorption of the registrant (¢

Form of Common Stock Certificate (

Rights Agreement, dated as of August 15, 2002, éetvthe registrant and American Stock Transfer &fT€ompany, as
Rights Agent (2

Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement

Form of Indenture (8

Amended and Restated 2001 Incentive Compensatam(Bs amended through January 23, 2007
Form of grant agreements for Amended and Restdied lhcentive Compensation Plan (.

Form of deferred stock award agreement for AmeraaetiRestated 2001 Incentive Compensation Plan
401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (1.

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into witike following directors and executive officersaigdanuary 28, 2002
with Francis F. Lee, Russell J. Knittel, Keith Be€slin, and Richard L. Sanquini; as of June 264240th Jeffrey D.
Buchanan; as of March 28, 2006 with Hing Chung xA\éong; as of February 20, 2007 with Nelson C. Gtz of April 2,
2007 with Mark N. Vena; as of October 23, 2007 widmes L. Whims; as of January 7, 2008 with Davitdhg; as of
March 2, 2009 with Kathleen A. Bayless; as of JABe2010 with Stanley A. Swearingen; as of Jand&ry2011 with Kevin
D. Barber; as of September 28, 2011 with Richar8érgman; as of May 22, 2012 with Bret Sewell, arabf January 28,
2013 with Scott Deutsch (.

2010 Incentive Compensation Plan (

Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for 2010 Incent@empensation Plan (1
Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for 20@0dntive Compensation Plan (I
Form of Deferred Stock Award Agreement for 2010eimive Compensation Plan (1
Amended and Restated 2010 Incentive Compensatam(Pb)

Form of Deferred Stock Award Agreement for Mark&ick Units for Amended and Restated 2010 Incerfigmpensation
Plan (21)

2010 Employee Stock Purchase Plan i

Separation Agreement and Release dated Octob2018,by and among the registrant and Thomas ndie16)
Employment Offer Letter dated September 28, 20X1d/den the registrant and Richard Bergman

Change of Control Severance Agreement enterecin®ichard A. Bergman as of October 4, 2011

Amended and Restated Change of Control Severanmefgnt entered into by Richard Bergman as of Ntreerh5, 2012
(21)

Severance Policy for Principal Executive Officet8)(

Agreement of Purchase and Sale and Escrow Inginsctlated as of June 25, 2012 between McKay Heh,and the
registrant (19

First Amendment to Agreement of PurchaskeSale and Escrow Instructions dated as of JUlp22 between McKay



Henry, LLC and the registrant (1
10.31 Release and Separation Agreement dated Septem®@t2l, by and among the registrant and David B gL ¢20)
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10.32* Form of Change of Control Severance Agreement edterto with the following executive officers asbvember 15, 2012:

Kathy Bayless, Kevin Barber, Bret Sewell, Stan Sinegen, and Alex Wong, and as of January 28, 20it!3 Scott Deutsch (21

10.33 Agreement of Purchase and Sale and Escrow Insinsctlated as of October 19, 2012 between OrchatdePs, LLC and the

registrant (21

10.33(a) First Amendment to Agreement of Purchase and Saleeacrow Instructions dated as of November 1922@&tween Orchard

Partners, LLC and the registrant (.

10.33(b) Second Amendment to Agreement of Purchase anda8dl&scrow Instructions dated as of January 4, B@t8een Orchard

21

23.1
311
31.2
32.1
32.2

Partners, LLC and the registrant (.

List of Subsidiarie:

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a)/15+14(a)
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuawnt Rule 13-14(a)/15+-14(a)
Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Oéfit

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial O#fit

101.INS XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutr
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)

(9)

(10)
(11)
(12)

(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on February 21, 2C

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form A as filed with the SEC on August 16, 20!

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on August 2, 20:
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on December 7, 20
Incorporation by reference to the regist’s Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on October 22, 20
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-K as filed with the SEC on September 12, 2(

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on April 24, 20C
Incorporated by reference to the registrargtgstration statement on Form S-3 (Registration383-155582) as filed with the SEC on
November 21, 2008 and declared effective May 792

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on November 8, 20

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on February 6, 20

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-K as filed with the SEC on September 7, 2(

Incorporated by reference to the registramtgstration statement on Form S-1 (Registration383-56026) as filed with the SEC on
August 17, 2001 and declared effective Januarp@82.

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on November 2, 20

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on October 22, 20
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on May 4, 20:

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on October 13, 20
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on October 4, 20
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on October 6, 20
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-K as filed with the SEC on August 27, 20.

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on November 2, 20

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on February 1, 20

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on May 3, 20:

Indicates a contract with management or compensatan or arrangemer
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedgetien duly authorized.

SYNAPTICS INCORPORATEL

Date August 19, 2013 By: /s/ Richard A. Bergman
Richard A. Bergmau
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Richard A. Bergman President and Chief Executive Offic
Richard A. Bergmau and Directol August 19, 201.
/sl Kathleen A. Bayless Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Offic August 19, 201.
Kathleen A. Bayles Secretary and Treasurer (Princi

Financial and Accounting Office
/sl Francis F. Lee Chairman of the Boar August 19, 201:
Francis F. Le«
/sl Jeffrey D. Buchanan Director August 19, 201.
Jeffrey D. Buchana
/sl Nelson C. Chan Director August 19, 201:
Nelson C. Cha
/sl Keith B. Geeslin Director August 19, 201.
Keith B. Geeslir
/s/ Russell J. Knittel Director August 19, 201.
Russell J. Knitte
/s/ Richard L. Sanquini Director August 19, 201:
Richard L. Sanquir
/sl James L. Whims Director August 19, 201.

James L. Whim

56



Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number

3.1
3.1(b)
3.2
3.3
3.4

4

4(b)

4(c)

4.6
10.6(a)*
10.6(b)*
10.6(c)*
10.8*
10.17*

10.24(a)’
10.24(b)’
10.24(c)’
10.24(d)’
10.24(e)’
10.24(f)*

10.25*
10.26*
10.27*
10.28*
10.28(a)’

10.29*
10.30

10.30(a)

10.31
10.32*

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Certificate of Incorporation (1

Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Rapiting Preferred Stock (:

Third Amended and Restated Bylaws (amended andteelsas of July 27, 2010) (
Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorption of the registrant (¢
Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorption of the registrant (¢

Form of Common Stock Certificate (

Rights Agreement, dated as of August 15, 2002, &etvthe registrant and American Stock Transfer 8&sT€ompany, as
Rights Agent (2

Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement

Form of Indenture (8

Amended and Restated 2001 Incentive Compensatam(Bs amended through January 23, 2007
Form of grant agreements for Amended and Restdied lhcentive Compensation Plan (.

Form of deferred stock award agreement for AmeraaetiRestated 2001 Incentive Compensation Plan
401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (1.

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into witie following directors and executive officersadiganuary 28, 2002
with Francis F. Lee, Russell J. Knittel, Keith Be&slin, and Richard L. Sanquini; as of June 264240th Jeffrey D.
Buchanan; as of March 28, 2006 with Hing Chung xA\éong; as of February 20, 2007 with Nelson C. Gtz of April 2,
2007 with Mark N. Vena; as of October 23, 2007 widmes L. Whims; as of January 7, 2008 with Davitdhg; as of
March 2, 2009 with Kathleen A. Bayless; as of JABe2010 with Stanley A. Swearingen; as of Jand&r2011 with Kevin
D. Barber; as of September 28, 2011 with Richar8érgman; as of May 22, 2012 with Bret Sewell, arabf January 28,
2013 with Scott Deutsch (.

2010 Incentive Compensation Plan (

Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for 2010 Incentxempensation Plan (1
Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for 20@0dntive Compensation Plan (I
Form of Deferred Stock Award Agreement for 201Ceimive Compensation Plan (1
Amended and Restated 2010 Incentive Compensatam(Pb)

Form of Deferred Stock Award Agreement for Mark&ick Units for Amended and Restated 2010 Incer@igmpensation
Plan (21)

2010 Employee Stock Purchase Plan i

Separation Agreement and Release dated Octob2018,by and among the registrant and Thomas ndie16)
Employment Offer Letter dated September 28, 20Td/dxen the registrant and Richard Bergman

Change of Control Severance Agreement enterecin®ichard A. Bergman as of October 4, 2011

Amended and Restated Change of Control Severanmefgnt entered into by Richard Bergman as of Noreerh5, 2012
(21)

Severance Policy for Principal Executive Officet8)(

Agreement of Purchase and Sale and Escrow Insingctlated as of June 25, 2012 between McKay Hehy,and the
registrant (19

First Amendment to Agreement of Purchase and Saldeacrow Instructions dated as of July 2, 201%éeh McKay
Henry, LLC and the registrant (1

Release and Separation Agreement dated Septem®@t2l, by and among the registrant and David B gL ¢20)

Form of Change of Control Severance Agreement edtietto with the following executive officers asévember 15, 201
Kathy Bayless, Kevin Barber, Bret Sewell, Stan Sinegen, and Alex Wong, and as of January 28, 20it!3 Scott Deutsch
(21)



10.33 Agreement of Purchase and Sale and Escrow Inginsctlated as of October 19, 2012 between OrchatdepPs, LLC and
the registrant (21

10.33(a) First Amendment to Agreement of Purchase and Saleeacrow Instructions dated as of November 1922@tween
Orchard Partners, LLC and the registrant |
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10.33(b) Second Amendment to Agreement of Purchase anda8dl&scrow Instructions dated as of January 4, B@t8een Orchard

Partners, LLC and the registrant (.

21 List of Subsidiarie:

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking

311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a)/15+14(a)
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuawnt Rule 13-14(a)/15+-14(a)
32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive O#fit

32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial O#it

101.INS XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)

(9)

(10)
(11)
(12)

(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on February 21, 2C

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form A as filed with the SEC on August 16, 20!

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on August 2, 20:
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on December 7, 20
Incorporation by reference to the regist’s Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on October 22, 20
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-K as filed with the SEC on September 12, 2(

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on April 24, 20C
Incorporated by reference to the registrargtsistration statement on Form S-3 (Registration383-155582) as filed with the SEC on
November 21, 2008 and declared effective May 792

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on November 8, 20

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on February 6, 20

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-K as filed with the SEC on September 7, 2(

Incorporated by reference to the registramt{gstration statement on Form S-1 (Registration383-56026) as filed with the SEC on
August 17, 2001 and declared effective Januarp@82.

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on November 2, 20

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on October 22, 20
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on May 4, 20:

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on October 13, 20
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on October 4, 20
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on October 6, 20
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-K as filed with the SEC on August 27, 20.

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on November 2, 20

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on February 1, 20

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1-Q as filed with the SEC on May 3, 20:

Indicates a contract with management or compensatan or arrangemer

58



Table of Contents

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfding
Consolidated Balance She

Consolidated Statements of Inco

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Inc
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl¢

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme



Table of Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Synaptics Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Synaptics Incorporated and subsidiétie Company) as of June 29, 2013
and June 30, 2012, and the related consolidatezhstats of income, comprehensive income, stockigléguity, and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended June(®3. 2Ve also have audited the Company’s intern@irobover financial reporting as of

June 29, 2013, based on criteria establishédt@mnal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) issued in 1992 Company’s management is responsible for thassotidated financial statements,
for maintaining effective internal control overdimcial reporting, and for its assessment of thecéiffeness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying ManagenseRe€port on Internal Control Over Financial Repgrtappearing under Item 9A. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesgsotidated financial statements and an opiniorhenCompanyg internal control over financ
reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstials of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those standard:
require that we plan and perform the audits toinbtasonable assurance about whether the finastei@ments are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal cordvelr financial reporting was maintained in all exal respects. Our audits of the
consolidated financial statements included exarginim a test basis, evidence supporting the amaunatslisclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesars significant estimates made by managementeaadating the overall financial
statement presentation. Our audit of internal @dmver financial reporting included obtaining amderstanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a maltereakness exists, and testing and evaluatiegidsign and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Qditsaaiso included performing such other procedasewe considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablesmesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsafdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegreferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of Synaptics
Incorporated and subsidiaries as of June 29, 26d3ane 30, 2012, and the results of their oparatmd their cash flows for each of the year:
in the three-year period ended June 29, 2013, nfocmity with U.S. generally accepted accountinggiples. Also in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, ¢éffednternal control over financial reporting &sJane 29, 2013, based on criteria establit

in Internal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the COSO.

/sl KPMG LLP

Santa Clara, California
August 19, 2013
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except par value and share amounts)

June June
2013 2012
ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivale $ 355,30  $ 305,00!
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $883%B@i7, respectively at June 2013 and 2 148,45¢ 104,14(
Inventories 49,94¢ 31,66
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 6,71°f 5,36¢
Total current asse 560,42( 446,17
Property and equipment, r 58,03t 24,90:
Goodwill 20,69¢ 18,99:
Purchased intangible 13,11¢( 12,80(
Non-current investment 16,96¢ 15,32:
Other asset 22,031 23,30¢

$ 691,26t  $541,50!

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 83,71( $ 55,22
Accrued compensatic 23,72¢ 12,64:
Income taxes payab 10,75: 11,22:
Other accrued liabilitie 31,437 26,51!
Total current liabilities 149,62t 105,59¢

Notes payabli 2,30¢ 2,30t
Other liabilities 17,48( 36,81

Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder Equity:
Preferred stock
$0.001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorizedhares issued and outstand — —
Common stock
$0.001 par value; 120,000,000 shares authorize@73(¥58 and 48,680,348 shares issued, and

33,289,826 and 32,896,256 shares outstandingnet2l3 and 2012, respectivi 51 49

Additional paic-in capital 539,17( 471,56¢
Treasury stock: 17,383,932 and 15,784,092 commarestat June 2013 and 2012, respectively, al (460,16() (413,88
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 6,80z 1,99¢
Retained earning 435,99. 337,05¢
Total stockholder equity 521,85! 396,79(

$691,26¢ $541,50!

See accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents.
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Net revenue
Cost of revenu
Gross margir
Operating expense
Research and developmt
Selling, general, and administrati
Acquired intangibles amortizatic
Change in contingent considerati
Gain on sale of property and equipm
Total operating expens
Operating incom:
Interest incomt
Non-cash interest inconr
Interest expens
Impairment recovery on investments,
Income before provision for income tay
Provision for income taxe
Net income

Net income per shar
Basic

Diluted

Shares used in computing net income per sl

Basic
Diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

F-4

Fiscal

2013 2012 2011
$663,58(  $548,22! $598,53¢
337,78t 292,66 352,46¢
325,80 255,56 246,07(
144,69¢ 117,95: 105,00
79,62( 70,04 68,54¢

1,02t — —

1,341 — —

(1,576 - -
225,11 187,99¢ 173,55:
100,69: 67,56¢ 72,51¢
86¢E 92z 911

194 — —
a7 ()] ()]
— 77 59
101,73¢ 68,55( 73,47
2,80( 14,40¢ 9,67¢
$ 98,93: $ 54,14« $ 63,79¢
$ 3.0 $ 1.6/ $ 1.87
$ 28 $ 1.57 $ 1.8(C
32,65¢ 33,03( 34,04
34,23¢ 34,43t 35,45«
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

Fiscal
2013 2012 2011
Net income $ 98,93: $54,14:  $63,79¢
Other comprehensive incorr
Change in unrealized net gain/(loss) on investm 4,804 (522) 1,00¢
Comprehensive incon $103,73° $53,62:  $64,80:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanaédstents.
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands, except share amounts)

Accumulatec

Additional Other Total
Common Stocl Paic-in Treasury Comprehensiv Retainec  Stockholder
Shares Amoun Capital Stock Income/(Loss Earnings Equity
Balance at June 2010 44,891,83 $ 45 $347,76: $(281,93) $ 1,51F $219,11¢ $ 286,51:
Net income — — — — — 63,79¢ 63,79¢
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale
investment: — — — — 1,00t — 1,00¢
Issuance of common stock for share-based award
compensation plar 1,940,37. 2 26,42: — — — 26,42
Payroll taxes for deferred stock ur — — (3,147 — — — (3,147
Purchases of treasury stc — — — (70,210 — — (70,210
Tax benefit associated with sh-based award — — 1,69( — — — 1,69(
Sharebased compensatic — — 33,92¢ — — — 33,92¢
Balance at June 20: 46,832,20 47 406,650 (352,14) 2,52( 282,91 339,99:
Net income — — — — — 54,14+ 54,14+
Net unrealized loss on availa-for-sale investmen — — — — (522) — (522)
Issuance of common stock for share-based award
compensation plar 1,848,141 2 34,87+ — — — 34,87¢
Payroll taxes for deferred stock ur — — (3,94¢) — — — (3,94¢)
Purchases of treasury stc — — — (61,747 — — (61,749
Tax shortfall associated with sh-based award — — (179 — — — (79
Sharebased compensatic — — 34,16. — — — 34,16:
Balance at June 20: 48,680,34 49 471,56¢ (413,88 1,99¢ 337,05¢ 396,79(
Net income — — — — — 98,93: 98,93:
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale
investment: — — — — 4,807 — 4,80¢
Issuance of common stock for share-based award
compensation plar 1,993,411 2 37,43: — — — 37,43¢
Payroll taxes for deferred stock ur — — (4,692 — — — (4,697)
Purchases of treasury stc — — — (46,27%) — — (46,27Y)
Tax benefit associated with sh-based award — — 2,651 — — — 2,651
Sharebased compensatic — — 32,21( — — — 32,21(
Balance at June 20: 50,673,75 $ 51 $539,17( $(460,16() $ 6,80z $435,99. $ 521,85

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanaédstents.
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigemn by operating activitie:
Sharebased compensation co
Depreciation and amortizatic
Gain on sale of property and equipm
Net excess tax benefit (shortfall) realized frorars-based compensatic
Excess tax benefit from shi-based compensatic
Accretion and remeasurement of contingent consiideréability
Deferred taxe
Impairment of property and equipme
Non-cash interest incorr
Impairment recovery on investments,
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued compensatic
Income taxe:
Other accrued liabilitie
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sales of r-current investment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn
Acquisition of business, net of cash acqui
Purchases of property and equipir
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of contingent consideration liabi
Purchases of treasury stc
Proceeds from issuance of she
Excess tax benefit from shi-based compensatic
Payroll taxes for deferred stock ur
Net cash used in financing activiti
Net increase in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid for taxe

Property and equipment unp:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financéstents.
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Fiscal
2013 2012 2011
$ 98,93: $ 54,14« $ 63,79
32,21( 34,16 33,92¢
10,84¢ 10,40¢ 11,16¢
(1,579 — —
2,651 (79) 1,69(
(3,817) (2,157 (2,88¢)
1,341 — —
(890) (747) (3,666)
30C 1,26¢ —
(194) — —
— (77) (58)
(44,319 (10,329 7,701
(16,872 (2,817 (10,189
(109) (530) (14€)
921 1,89« 33z
23,26¢ 10,23t (20,68¢)
11,08¢ (634) 1,88(
(15,940 3,00( 2,97¢
4,31 3,73¢ 3,87:
102,15 101,39 89,71
3,35( 10,11( 3,20(
12,62¢ — —
(5,000  (14,63) -
(48,519 (10,359 (11,570
(37,547  (14,88) (8,370
(4,600) — —
(46,279 (61,749 (70,210
37,43¢ 34,87¢ 26,42:
3,817 2,15: 2,88¢
(4,697) (3,946 (3,147)
(14,316 _(28,66() (44,049
50,29¢ 57,85: 37,29¢
305,00¢ 247,15 209,85(
$355,30.  $305,00!  $247,15:
$ 18,71¢ $ 12,30¢ §$§ 9,57«
$ 5226 $ — 0§ —
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accountig Policies
Organization and Basis of Presentation

We are a leading worldwide developer and suppli@ustom-designed user interface solutions thablengeople to interact more easily
and intuitively with a wide variety of mobile comimg, communications, entertainment, and othertedac devices. We currently target the
markets for mobile product applications, includingbile smartphones and feature phones; tablet@etsnal computer, or PC, product
applications market, primarily notebook and ultrabcomputers; and other select electronic devickets, with our customized human
interface solutions. Every solution we deliver eithontains or consists of our touch-based semigtind solution, which includes our
capacitive sensing ASIC, customer-specific firmwared software. Our original equipment manufactweOEM, customers include many of
the world’s largest OEMs for mobile smartphones fsadure phones and most of the tier one PC OEMSs.

The consolidated financial statements are presentadcordance with U.S. generally accepted acaogiptrinciples, or U.S. GAAP, and
include our financial statements and those of duwlly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercoany balances and transactions have been
eliminated upon consolidation.

Our fiscal year is the 52- or 53-week period endinghe last Saturday in June. The fiscal yearsguted in this report were a 52-week
period ended June 29, 2013, a 53-week period ehdwsel 30, 2012 and a 52-week period ended Juné25, 2

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial stateméntonformity with U.S. GAAP requires us to mastimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilitiegenue, expenses, and related disclosure ofngrit assets and liabilities. On an ongoing
basis, we evaluate our estimates, including thelsged to revenue recognition, allowance for daulat€counts, cost of revenue, inventories,
loss on purchase commitments, product warrantyeshbased compensation costs, provision for incaxres, deferred income tax asset
valuation allowances, uncertain tax positions,dartingencies, goodwill, intangible assets, invesits, contingent consideration liability and
loss contingencies. We base our estimates on itist@xperience, applicable laws and regulationd,\arious other assumptions that we
believe to be reasonable under the circumstantesesults of which form the basis for making juégs about the carrying value of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent frother sources. Actual results may differ from thesémates under different assumptions or
conditions.

Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investisemith original maturities of three months or leSsir non-current investments are
reported at fair value, with unrealized gains aubés excluded from earnings and shown separatelycamponent of accumulated other
comprehensive income within stockholders’ equitye @arge other-than-temporary declines in thevidire of a debt security to earnings if
the decline is due to a credit loss or if we intémdr need to sell at a loss, resulting in thal@dighment of a new cost basis in the debt security
We charge other-than-temporary declines in theviaime of a debt security to other comprehensicerime if the decline is due to a noncredit
loss. We include interest earned on securitieaterést income. We determine realized gains arsgfen the sale of securities using the
specific identification method.
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Our cash equivalents and investments classifie/atable-for-sale securities as of the end ofdi&913 and 2012 were as follows (in
thousands):

2013
Gross Gross
Unrealizet Unrealize«
Amortized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Reported as cash equivaler
Money market fund $350,52: $ — $ — $350,52:
Reported as ne-current investment:
Auction rate securitie 10,167 6,98( 17¢ 16,96¢
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $360,68¢ $ 6,98( $ 17¢ $367,49(
2012
Gross Gross
Unrealizet Unrealize«
Amortized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Reported as cash equivaler
Money market fund $301,45! $ — $ — $301,45:
Reported as ne-current investment:
Auction rate securitie 13,32¢ 2,27¢ 27¢€ 15,32
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $314,77- $ 2,27¢ $ 27¢ $316,77:
Fair Value

We measure certain financial assets and liabilétdgair value. When we measure fair value on eithescurring or nonrecurring basis,
inputs used in valuation techniques are assigriedrarchical level as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are observable inputs that reflexttgd prices for identical assets or liabilitiesaagtive markets

. Level 2 inputs reflect quoted prices for identiaasets or liabilities in markets that are not a;tquoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets; inputs other tharotpd prices that are observable for the assetallities; or inputs that are derived
principally from or corroborated by observable neritata by correlation or other mea

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs reflectingassumptions, which are incorporated into vatuatechniques and models usec
to determine fair value. The assumptions are ctargisvith market participant assumptions that assonably availabl
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Financial assets and liabilities measured at faluer on a recurring basis, by level within the failue hierarchy, as of the end of fiscal
2013 and 2012 were as follows (in thousands):

2013 2012
Level 1 Level 3 Level 1 Level 3

Assets

Money marke $350,52: $ — $301,45: $ —

Auction rate securitie — 16,96¢ — 15,32:

Total $350,52: $16,96¢ $301,45: $15,32:

Liabilities

Contingent consideration liability recorded for mess acquisitiol $ — $ 8,24 $ — $11,90(

In connection with the acquisition of Pacinian imd 2012, we entered into a contingent consideratiicangement, and subsequently
$5.0 million of additional consideration to therfugr Pacinian stockholders upon customer acceptareed hinTouch product. As of June 30,
2013, we owe up to $10.0 million of additional colesation to the former Pacinian stockholders basesdales of products utilizing ThinTou
technology through June 2016.

We have classified the contingent consideratidoilltg recorded for a business acquisition as adl@/liability, of which $8.1 million
and $11.9 million is included in the non-currenttmm of other liabilities as of the end of fis@)13 and 2012, respectively, and $196,000 ha:
been included in other current liabilities as af #nd of fiscal 2013. The contingent considerdiaility is estimated applying a probability-
weighted discounted cash flow model with an assudigzbunt rate of approximately 13% as of the eniisoal 2013. There were no Level 2
financial assets or liabilities as of the end stél 2013 or 2012.

Changes in fair value of our Level 3 financial asder fiscal 2013 and 2012 were as follows (inuends):

2013 2012
Beginning balance $15,32: $ 25,87¢
Net unrealized gain/(los: 4,99¢ (522
Impairment recovery of redeemed investme — 77
Redemption: 3,35( (10,110
Ending balanci $16,96¢ $ 15,321

Changes in fair value of contingent considerati@asured using significant unobservable inputs (L8yéor fiscal 2013 and 2012 were
as follows (in thousands):

2013 2012
Beginning balance $11,90( $ —
Contingent consideration liability incurre — 11,90(
Settlement of contingent consideration liabi (5,000 —
Accretion and remeasureme 1,34 —
Ending balanci $ 8,24 $11,90(

There were no transfers in or out of our Level,1gr23 assets or liabilities during fiscal 2013264.2.

The fair values of our accounts receivable and amiopayable approximate their carrying values beeaf the short-term nature of
those instruments. The fair value of our notes pkyapproximates carrying value in all materiapexgs. Intangible assets, property and
equipment, and goodwill are measured at fair valua non-recurring basis if impairment is indicated
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subjectaisancentrations of credit risk consist primarifycash equivalents, investments, and
accounts receivable. Our investment policy, whicpriedicated on capital preservation and liquidityits investments to U.S. government
treasuries and agency issues, taxable securitidananicipal issued securities with a minimum raiiri A1 (Moody'’s) or P1 (Standard and
Poor’s) or equivalent. Included within our investthportfolio are investments in ARS investmentsjolihmet our investment guidelines at the
time of our investment. Our ARS investments areantty not liquid as a result of continued auctiaitures.

We sell our products to contract manufacturers phatide manufacturing services for OEMs and to s@&Ms directly. We extend
credit based on an evaluation of a customer’s firgrrondition, and we generally do not requirdatekal.

The following customers accounted for more than %ur accounts receivable balance as of the éfidoal 2013 and 2012;

201z 2017
Customer A 27% *
Customer E * 14%
Customer C * 12%

* Less than 109

Other Concentrations

Our products include certain components that anently single sourced. We believe other vendoraldibe able to provide similar
components; however, the qualification of such wesdnay require start-up time. In order to mitigay adverse impacts from a disruption of
supply, we strive to maintain an adequate supplyitital single-sourced components.

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue from product sales when ikBgrersuasive evidence that an arrangement edidisery has occurred and title has
transferred, the price is fixed or determinable] eallection is reasonably assured, which is gdiyanpon shipment of the product. We accrue
for estimated sales returns, incentives and off@wances at the time we recognize revenue. Oulymts contain embedded firmware and
software that allows for further differentiationdacustomer integration, which together with, orsisting of, our ASIC chip delivers the
essential functionality of our products and, ashssoftware revenue recognition guidance is noticgipe.

Advertising Cost
Advertising costs, if any, are expensed when irezlirr

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts fdinested losses resulting from the inability of @mers to meet their financial
obligations. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate diectability of accounts receivable based on alwoation of factors. In circumstances in
which we are aware of a specific customer’s po#imiability to meet its financial obligation, weaord a specific reserve of the bad debt
against amounts due. In addition, we make judgmamdsestimates on the collectability of accounteirable based on our historical bad debt
experience, customers’ creditworthiness, curreahemic trends, recent changes in customers’ paytremds, and deterioration in customers’
operating results or financial position. If circuarsces change adversely, additional bad debt atioesamay be required. For all periods
presented, credit losses on our accounts receivavie been insignificant, and we believe that agadte allowance for doubtful accounts has
been provided.

Cost of Revenue

Our cost of revenue includes the cost of produuitspgd to our customers, which primarily includies tost of products built to our
specifications by our contract manufacturers, thet of silicon wafers supplied by independent semiluictor wafer manufacturers, and the
related assembly, package, and test costs of ewarl packaged ASICs. Also included in our coseeénue are personnel and related costs,
including share-based compensation, for qualityrasse and manufacturing support; logistics caltpreciation of equipment supporting
manufacturing; license amortization; inventory esitowns and losses on purchase obligations; andmtgrcosts.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (finsfirst-out method) or market (estimated netizeddle value) as of the end of fiscal 2013
and 2012 and consisted of the following (in thoasan

2013 2012
Raw materials $38,18: $26,957
Finished good 11,761 4,71(

$49,94¢ $31,66:

Periodically, we purchase inventory from our cocttraanufacturers when a customer delays its dgliseiedule or cancels its order. In
those circumstances in which our customer has daddes order and we purchase inventory from auntcact manufacturers, we record a
write-down, if necessary, to reduce the carryinigeaf the inventory purchased to its net realieatallue. The effect of these write-downs is tc
establish a new cost basis in the related inventeinich we do not subsequently write up. We alsomne a liability and charge to cost of
revenue for estimated losses on inventory we aligaibd to purchase from our contract manufactundrsn such losses become probable 1
customer delays or order cancellations.

Property and Equipmel

We state property and equipment at cost less adetmoudepreciation and amortization. We computea@ation using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the as¥ée amortize leasehold improvements over theteshof the lease term or the useful life of
the asset.

Foreign Currency

The U.S. dollar is our functional and reportingreaicy. We remeasure our monetary assets and fiebifiot denominated in the
functional currency into U.S. dollar equivalentdta rate of exchange in effect on the balancetstae. We measure and record mooretary
balance sheet accounts at the historical rateféttedit the date of transaction. All of our reveiame approximately 92% of our consolidated
costs are denominated in U.S. dollars. We remedste@gn currency expenses at the weighted avezageange rate in the month that the
transaction occurred. Remeasurement of monetaeysaand liabilities that are not denominated inftimetional currency are included currel
in operating results. Foreign currency losses ohetlin operating results for fiscal 2013, 2012, a6di1 were not material. To date, we have
undertaken hedging transactions related to foreigrency exposure.

Goodwill

We review the carrying value of goodwill at leashaally for impairment during the last quarter af fiscal year. The frequency of our
review is dictated by events or changes in circams indicating that the carrying value may besinggl.

Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets

We evaluate long-lived assets, such as propertyeguibment and intangible assets subject to anatidiz, for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate tleatdhrying value of an asset may not be recoversidereview the carrying value of
indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairmentemast annually during the last quarter of outdls/ear, or more frequently if we believe
indicators of impairment exist. We measure recdviitp of assets to be held and used by a compargdhe carrying amount of an asset to
estimated undiscounted future cash flows expectée tgenerated by the asset. If the carrying amafuthie asset exceeds its estimated
undiscounted future cash flows, we recognize araimgent charge in an amount by which the carryimgant of the asset exceeds the fair
value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of wmeikkparately presented in the consolidated batdremts and reported at the lower of the
carrying amount or fair value less costs to seldi @ould no longer be depreciated. The assetsialnititles of a disposed group classified as
held for sale would be presented separately imppeopriate asset and liability sections of thesotidated balance sheets. There were no
events during the fiscal year that triggered anaimpent of our long-lived assets.
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Other Accrued Liabilities
As of the end of fiscal 2013 and 2012, other aattigbilities consisted of the following (in thousis):

2013 2012
Customer obligations $16,29: $13,07¢
Inventory obligation: 6,33: 5,68(
Warranty 1,69¢ 2,17¢
Other 7,117 5,58¢

$31,43; $26,51¢

Segment Information

We operate in one segment: the development, magketind sale of intuitive human interface solutiforselectronic devices and
products.

Share-Based Compensation Costs

We utilize the Black-Scholes option pricing modekstimate the grant date fair value of stock aystigranted to employees, which
requires the input of highly subjective assumptjdnsluding expected volatility and expected lifistorical and implied volatilities were used
in estimating the fair value of our stock optionaads. The expected life for our options was presfipestimated based on historical trends
since our initial public offering. In fiscal 201We began to grant options with a contractual lffeeven years rather than 10 years and we |
using the simplified method of establishing theeotpd life as we did not have any history of ogiwith seven-year lives. In fiscal 2013, we
began to grant options which vest over a three-gedod rather than a four-year period and we ootil to use the simplified method of
establishing the expected life as we do not hayehétory of options which vest over a three yeanigd. Changes in these inputs and
assumptions can materially affect the measuretohated fair value of our share-based compensakiorther, we estimate forfeitures for
share-based awards that are not expected to vesth#fge estimated fair value less estimated farés to earnings on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period of the underlying awardsiciv is generally three to four years for our stopkion and deferred stock unit, or DSU,
awards, three years for our market stock unit, 8Uylawards, and up to two years for our employeekgpurchase plan.

Product Warrantie:

We generally warrant our products for a period fionths from the date of sale and estimate prelaoiduct warranty costs at the ti
we recognize revenue. Factors that affect our wgyrigability include historical and anticipatedea of warranty claims, materials usage,
rework, and delivery costs. However, we assesadleguacy of our warranty obligations periodicahy adjust the accrued warranty liability
on the basis of our estimates.

Changes in our warranty liability (included in atleecrued liabilities) for fiscal 2013 and 2012 waxs follows (in thousands):

2013 2012
Beginning accrued warranty $2,17¢ $ 2,98¢
Provision for product warrantie 87¢ 1,75¢
Cost of warranty claims and settleme (1,359 (2,56¢)
Ending accrued warran $ 1,69¢ $2,17¢
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Income Taxe

We account for income taxes under the asset abititifamethod. We recognize deferred tax assetsliabdities for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betwe=firthncial statement carrying amounts of existingets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases and operating loss and tax credit cawgfals. We measure deferred tax assets and liabilising enacted tax rates expected to :
to taxable income in the years in which those tenauyodifferences are expected to be recoveredtdedeWe recognize the effect on deferred
tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax ratéscome in the period that includes the enactrdate. We establish valuation allowances
when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets &thents that are more likely than not to be redlizVe consider the operating earnings of
our foreign subsidiaries to be indefinitely investautside the United States. Accordingly, no priovidias been made for the U.S. federal, s
or foreign taxes that may result from future reanmittes of undistributed earnings of our foreign slises.

We use a two-step approach to recognizing and miegsuncertain tax positions. The first step isledermine whether it is more-likely-
than-not that a tax position will be sustained upgamination, including resolution of any relatggeals or litigation processes. The second
step is to measure the tax benefit as the largestiat that is more than 50% likely of being realizgpon ultimate settlement with a taxing
authority. The calculation of tax liabilities inw@s significant judgment in estimating the impdatincertainties in the application of highly
complex tax laws. Resolution of these uncertairities manner inconsistent with our expectationdctbave a material impact on our
consolidated financial position, results of operasi, and cash flows. We believe we have adequptelyided for reasonably foreseeable
outcomes in connection with the resolution of inediaix uncertainties. However, our results havéénpast, and could in the future, include
favorable and unfavorable adjustments to our estichax liabilities in the period a determinatidrsach estimated tax liability is made or
resolved, upon the filing of an amended return,jupechange in facts, circumstances, or interpmtatir upon the expiration of a statute of
limitation. Accordingly, our effective tax rate dduluctuate materially from period to period.

Research and Developme
Research and development costs are expensed a®ihcu

2. Net Income Per Share

The computation of basic and diluted net incomespare for fiscal 2013, 2012, and 2011 was asvi@lifin thousands, except per share
amounts):

2013 2012 2011
Numerator:
Net income $98,93: $54,14¢ $63,79¢
Denominator
Shares, basi 32,65¢ 33,03( 34,04:
Effect of dilutive shar-based award 1,581 1,40¢ 1,41z
Shares, dilute 34,23¢ 34,43t 35,45¢
Net income per shar
Basic $ 3.0¢ $ 1.6 $ 1.87
Diluted $ 2.8¢ $ 157 $ 1.8C

Diluted net income per share does not include tieeteof potential common shares related to ceraisre-based awards for fiscal 2013,
2012, and 2011 as follows (in thousands):

2013 2012 2011
Share-based awards 1,74: 3,841 3,58¢
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These sharbased awards were not included in the computafialiiited net income per share because the proaeeds/ed, if any, frol
such share-based awards combined with the averegrartized compensation costs adjusted for thethggioal tax benefit or deficiency
creditable or chargeable, respectively, to addiigraid-in capital, were greater than the averageket price of our common stock, and
therefore, their effect would have been antidiletiv

Our basic net income per share amounts for eadbdopresented have been computed using the weightdge number of shares of
common stock outstanding. Our diluted net inconreshare amounts for each period presented incheleveighted average effect of
potentially dilutive shares. We used the “treasstock” method to determine the dilutive effect af stock options, DSUs, MSUs, and
convertible notes. Under the treasury stock methbdres associated with our convertible notesnataded in the calculation of diluted net
income per share only if the weighted average pfaar common stock exceeds $33.69 during thertigoperiod.

3. Auction Rate Securities

Our ARS investments, which are included in non-entrinvestments, have failed to settle in auctloeginning in 2007. These
investments are not liquid, and in the event walrieeaccess these funds, we will not be able tecdaithout a loss of principal, unless
redeemed by the issuers or a future auction oretimegstments is successful. During fiscal 201322@nd 2011, $3.4 million, $10.1 million,
and $3.2 million, respectively, of our ARS investiteewere redeemed.

As there are currently no active markets for outous failed ARS investments, we have estimatedahesalue of these investments as
of the end of fiscal 2013 using a trinomial disctmahcash flow analysis. The analysis consideredngnothers, the following factors:

. the collateral underlying the security investme

. the creditworthiness of the counterpa

. the timing of expected future cash flov

. the probability of a successful auction in a futpegiod;

. the underlying structure of each investm

. the present value of future principal and intepegtments discounted at rates considered to refleotnt market condition:

. a consideration of the probabilities of defaultsgiag a future auction, or redemption at par fahgzeriod; anc

. estimates of the recovery rates in the event cfudefor each investmer

When possible, our failed ARS investments were amegbto other observable market data or secunifihssimilar characteristics. Our
estimate of the fair value of our ARS investmemsld fluctuate materially from period to period éeding on future market conditions.

We have ARS investments with a fair value of $Iiion that mature from fiscal 2016 to 2018, $8&klion that mature from 2044 to
2046, and $2.0 million that have no maturity. OF 8RS investments, $5.5 million par value are irirent grade and the remaining $18.5
million par value are below investment grade.
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The various types of ARS investments we held @begnd of fiscal 2013, including the original cbasis, other-than-temporary
impairment included in retained earnings, new basis, unrealized gain/(loss), and fair value ciadiof the following (in thousands):

Other-than-
Original Cos temporary
Impairment in New Cos Unrealizec Fair
Basis Retained Earning Basis Gain/(Loss Value
Student loans $ 3,50( $ av9) $3321 $ (168 % 3,158
Credit linked note: 13,50( (8,57)) 4,92¢ 4,98( 9,90¢
Preferred stoc 5,00( (5,000 — 2,00( 2,00(
Municipals 2,00( (83 1,915 (10 1,90
Total ARS $ 24,00( $ (13,839  $10,16: $ 6,802 $16,96¢

All of the ARS investments in the above table witirealized losses have been in a continuous uregdldss position for more than 12
months.

The various types of ARS investments we held abeEnd of fiscal 2012, including the original cbasis, other-than-temporary
impairment included in retained earnings, new basis, unrealized gain/(loss), and fair value ciadiof the following (in thousands):

Other-than-
Original Cos temporary
Impairment in New Cos Unrealizec Fair
Basis Retained Earning Basis Gain/(Loss Value
Student loans $ 685 $ 179 $6671 $ (231)) $ 6,44(
Credit linked note: 13,50( (8,76%) 4,73¢ 2,27¢ 7,011
Preferred stoc 5,00( (5,000 — — —
Municipals 2,00( (83) 1,915 (47) 1,87(
Total ARS $ 27,35( $ (14,027  $13,32¢ $ 1,99¢ $15,32:

All of the ARS investments in the above table witirealized losses have been in a continuous upegdlibss position for more than 12
months.

We have accounted for all of our ARS investmentsascurrent as we are not able to reasonably méterwhen the ARS markets will
recover or be restructured. Based on our abiligamess our cash and cash equivalents, our expaueedting cash flows, and our other sou
of cash, we do not intend to sell our ARS investimamd it is not more likely than not that we vl required to sell our ARS investments
before the recovery of the amortized cost basiswilleeontinue to monitor our ARS investments amvdleate our accounting for these
investments quarterly.
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4. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment as of the end of fiscal 20482012 consisted of the following (in thousands)

Life 2013 2012

Land — $ 7,90( $ 2,50(
Building and building improvemen 35 years 27,00( 11,172
Computer equipmet 3 years 10,53¢ 6,98:
Manufacturing equipmer 1 year to 5 yeal 22,50¢ 18,51¢
Furniture, fixtures, and leasehold improveme 3yearsto 5 yea 11,157 7,09¢
Capitalized softwar 3yearsto 7 yea 14,21¢ 11,76
93,32( 58,03:

Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (35,289 (33,129
Property and equipment, r $ 58,03t $ 24,90:

For fiscal 2013 and 2012, we retired fully deprémiicequipment and furniture with an original cds$4.3 million and $5.1 million,
respectively.

In fiscal year 2013, we acquired a new headquactargpus in San Jose, California, consisting ofetloféice buildings of approximately
151,000 square feet of space and approximatelyatgs of land for $11.8 million, exclusive of agtiuents and closing costs. Upon
completion of renovations and improvements, inalgdadding approximately 10,000 square feet to dileeobuildings, in June 2013, we
consolidated our Santa Clara workforce into the fomation.

In fiscal 2013, we sold our Santa Clara headquaprsperty for $12.6 million and recorded a nehgai sale of property and equipment
of $1.6 million.

5. Acquisitions
Pacinian

On June 13, 2012, or the acquisition date, we aeduiO0% of the outstanding common shares andgtterest of Pacinian. This
acquisition has been accounted for as a businesbkination. The results of Pacinian’s operationsehiaeen included in the consolidated
financial statements since the acquisition dateirikn was a development stage company, which dpedlan innovative thin keyboard des
using its ThinTouch technology. ThinTouch is a dagechnology employing an innovative ramp capghiliat delivers a full keyboard
solution that is 40% thinner than traditional kegibsolutions. By combining our TouchPad technolaih the ThinTouch technology, we
expect to deliver a complete keyboard solutiondted for the next generation of thin and light botek PC form factors, such as ultrabooks.

The acquisition date fair value of the consideratransferred totaled $26.9 million, which congisté the following (in thousands):

Cash $15,01¢
Contingent consideration liabilit 11,90(
$26,91¢
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The contingent consideration arrangement requiseih ppay $5.0 million of additional considerati@nRacinian’s former stockholders,
due upon customer acceptance of a ThinTouch prpdodtup to $10.0 million of additional considevatio Pacinian’s former stockholders, at
a rate of $0.60 for each unit shipped utilizing@fouch technology through June 2016. The estimfaiedalue of the contingent considerat
arrangement as of the acquisition date was $11l@miWe estimated the fair value of the contingeonsideration for both customer
acceptance and for unit shipments using a prolpatikighted discounted cash flow model. Thesevalue measurements were based on
significant inputs not observable in the market ing represent a Level 3 measurement. The keymgugns in applying the probability-
weighted discounted cash flow model for the $5.0ioni additional consideration due upon customereatance was a 5.1% discount rate
under five equally weighted cash flow scenarios K@y assumptions in applying the probability-wégghdiscounted cash flow model for the
$10.0 million additional consideration based ort shipments was a 12.4% discount rate under fivalggweighted cash flow scenarios. The
contingent consideration liability is remeasuredaatvalue each reporting period with adjustmeetated to accretion and changes in amount
and timing of expected cash flows recorded in dgga@xpenses. The $5.0 million of additional cdesation due upon customer acceptance
was paid in fiscal 2013. In our consolidated statets of cash flows for the fiscal year ended Juhe2813, $4.6 million of the payment of
contingent consideration was classified as cashsfivom financing activities and $400,000 was dfass$ as cash flows from operating
activities.

We operate in one segment; therefore, the goodws allocated to a compamyjide reporting unit. None of the goodwill is dedbt for
income tax purposes.

Video Display Operation of Integrated Device Tedhgy

On August 1, 2012, we acquired inventory, fixedeéssand intangible assets of the Video Displayr@mn, or VDO, of Integrated
Device Technology, Inc., or IDT, including a worlai® non-exclusive, irrevocable, non-transferalgalty-free paid up license, for $5.0
million. This acquisition was effected to enhance @chnology portfolio with a primary focus on tamerging large touchscreen market for
notebooks, ultrabooks, and tablets. This acquisitias been accounted for as a business combinatierresults of VDO’s operations have
been included in our consolidated financial statesisince the acquisition date.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of the assets acquired as of the acquisiitm (in thousands):

Inventory $1,40¢
Test equipmer 55€
Intangible asset 1,33¢
Goodwill 1,70(

Net assets acquire $5,00(

We operate in one segment; therefore, the goodpilies to a company-wide reporting unit. All oéthoodwill and intangible assets are
expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

We recognized approximately $100,000 of acquisitelated costs that were expensed in fiscal 20h8s& costs were included in our
consolidated statements of income as selling, gérend administrative expenses.

The amounts of revenue and earnings of VDO includexlir consolidated statements of income fromaitguisition date to the period
ended September 30, 2012, were immaterial. Prodawnsolidated statements of income as if VDO hehbncluded for the three months
ended September 30, 2012 and the entire year ehuhed30, 2012, are not materially different thaséhreported.

Prior to the acquisition, we did not have a pregsrelationship with IDT.
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6. Purchased Intangibles

The following table summarizes the life, the groagying value of our purchased intangible assetd,the related accumulated
amortization as of the end of fiscal 2013 and 2( 2housands):

Life 2013 2012
In-process research and development To be determine  $ 8,90( $ 8,90(
Customer relationshiy 5 years 3,80( 3,80(

Licensed technology and ott 5 years 1,33t —
Patent: 5 years 10C 10C
14,13t 12,80(

Accumulated amortizatio (1,025 —
Purchased intangibles, r $13,11( $12,80(

Amortization expense is calculated using the shitalige method over the estimated useful liveshef purchased intangibles. The total
amortization expense for the purchased intangitdeta was $1.0 million in fiscal year 2013 and zeffiscal year 2012. This amortization
expense was included in our consolidated statenoéimsome as acquired intangibles amortization.

The following table presents expected annual agdesgmortization expense in future fiscal yearsHousands):

2014 $ 1,043
2015 1,047
2016 1,045
2017 1,047
2018 22
To be determine 8,90(

Future amortizatiol $13,11(

The in-process research and development intanggset was recognized in connection with the adepnisof Pacinian. At the end of
fiscal 2013, we determined the underlying projedtill under development as a significant amotrititure research and development cost
expected to be incurred and additional developrisar@iquired to overcome the remaining technologisii. We expect to complete this
project and begin to amortize the related in-precesearch and development intangible asset sométifiscal 2014.

7. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

We maintain office facilities in various locationader operating leases with expiration dates frisoaf 2014 to fiscal 2022, some of
which have renewal options of one to five years: IPased office facilities are located in Chinagl&nd, Hong Kong, Japan, Korea,
Switzerland, Taiwan, and the United States. Wegeized rent expense on a straight-line basis & #dllion, $4.3 million, and $4.0 million
for fiscal 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively.

F-19



Table of Contents

The aggregate future minimum rental commitmentsiiare fiscal years for noncancelable operatingdsawith initial or remaining tern
in excess of one year were as follows (in thousands

Operatin

Lease

Fiscal Yeal Payment
2014 $3,13¢
2015 1,96¢
2016 997
2017 62(
2018 44%
Thereaftel 1,40¢
Total minimum operating lease payme $8,561

Contingencies

We have in the past and may in the future recedtie@s from third parties that claim our produciinge their intellectual property
rights. We cannot be certain that our technologies products do not and will not infringe issuetepts or other proprietary rights of third
parties.

Any infringement claims, with or without merit, dduesult in significant litigation costs and digam of management and financial
resources, including the payment of damages, wtociid have a material adverse effect on our busjrigmncial condition, and results of
operations.

Indemnifications

In connection with certain third-party agreemenéshave executed in the past, we are obligateddenimify the third party in connection
with any technology infringement by us. We have astered into indemnification agreements withafficers and directors. Maximum
potential future payments cannot be estimated Isectnese agreements do not have a maximum stakélityti However, historical costs
related to these indemnification provisions havebeen significant. We have not recorded any lighih our consolidated financial statements
for such indemnification obligations.

Line of Credit

We have an unsecured $50.0 million working cafliital of credit with Wells Fargo Bank. The Wells §arBank revolving line of credit,
which expires on September 1, 2013, has an inteatsequal to the prime lending rate or 250 haaists above LIBORdepending on wheth
we choose a variable or fixed rate, respectivelg.did not borrow any amounts under the line of itréating fiscal 2013. We are currently
negotiating the renewal of this line of credit farother year.

8. Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes

In December 2004, we issued an aggregate of $1@#ion of convertible notes in a private offeripgrsuant to Rule 144A under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and in fis6@B2and 2010, we repurchased and retired $122libmdf our outstanding notes. As of the
end of fiscal 2013, $2.3 million par value of owtes remained outstanding and have been classsidzhg-term as the next date noteholders
can require us to repurchase all or a portion eif thotes is in December 2014. However, if cersgtk price conditions are met a conversion
right could trigger providing noteholders with thght to convert all or a portion of their notesgorto December 2014.
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9. Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Stocl

We are authorized, subject to limitations imposgddklaware law, to issue up to a total of 10,000,80ares of preferred stock in one or
more series without stockholder approval. Our badidirectors has the power to establish from tim#éme the number of shares to be
included in each series and to fix the rights, gnexices, and privileges of the shares of each whalssued series and any of its qualifications
limitations, or restrictions. Our board of dire@an also increase or decrease the number ofkssbfaaeseries, but not below the number of
shares of that series then outstanding, withoutfartler vote or action by the stockholders.

Our board of directors may authorize the issuargeeferred stock with voting or conversion rigtiiat could harm the voting power or
other rights of the holders of our common stocke Tsuance of preferred stock, while providingifiéity in connection with possible
acquisitions and other corporate purposes, counlong other things, have the effect of delayinged#ig, or preventing a change in control of
our company and might harm the market price ofommnmon stock and the voting power and other rightee holders of common stock. As
of the end of fiscal 2013, there were no shargseferred stock outstanding and we have no cuplant to issue any shares of preferred si

Shares Reserved for Future Issuance
Shares of common stock reserved for future issuasa# the end of fiscal 2013 were as follows:

Stock options outstandir 6,030,28
Deferred stock units outstandi 1,005,43!
Market stock units outstandit 67,40(
Awards available for grant under all st-based compensation pla 1,674,60.

Reserved for future issuan 8,777,72.

Treasury Stock

In July 2013, our board of directors authorizedadditional $100 million for our common stock pursbgrogram bringing the
cumulative authorization to $620.0 million, expgim October 2015. The program authorizes us tardyase our common stock in the open
market or in privately negotiated transactions dejggg upon market conditions and other factors. tmaber of shares repurchased and the
timing of repurchases is based on the level ofoaish balances, general business and market corglitiad other factors, including alternative
investment opportunities. Common stock repurchasekr this program is held as treasury stock. Ab@date of the additional authorization
we had $159.8 million remaining under our commaristrepurchase program.

10. Share-Based Compensation

The purpose of our various share-based compengatos is to attract, motivate, retain, and rewagh-quality employees, directors,
and consultants by enabling such persons to acquirerease their proprietary interest in our canmstock in order to strengthen the
mutuality of interests between such persons andtogkholders and to provide such persons with alnemd long-term performance incentives
to focus their best efforts in the creation of ktuider value. Consequently, we determine shareebasmpensatory awards issued subseque
to the initial award to our employees and conststanimarily on individual performance. Our shda@sed compensation plans with outstan
awards consist of our 2001 Incentive Compensatian,s amended, or our 2001 Plan, our AmendedRasthted 2010 Incentive
Compensation Plan, or our 2010 Plan, and our 20idpl&ee Stock Purchase Plan, or our 2010 ESPP.
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Share-based compensation awards available for grassuance for each plan as of the beginningefiscal year, including changes in

the balance of awards available for grant for i@ 3, were as follows:

Balance at June 2012
Additional shares authorize
Stock options grante
Deferred stock units grant
Market stock units grante

Purchases under employee stock purchase

Forfeited
Plan shares expire

Balance at June 20:

Awards 2001 2010 2010
Available Incentive Incentive Employee
Under All Compensatic Compensatic Stock

Share-Based Purchase
Award Plans Plan Plan Plan
2,372,34i — 2,041,03: 331,31t

328,96:. — 328,96.
(513,449 (513,449 —
(572,22) (572,22Y —

(74,000 (74,000
(327,46)) — (327,46
596,48t 136,05¢ 460,42¢ —
(136,05¢) (136,05 — —
1,674,60. — 1,341,78: 332,81

Our 2001 Plan, which expired in March 2011, wadaegd by our 2010 Plan. Option awards and DSUsatteaturrently outstanding
under our 2001 Plan will remain outstanding untéreised, delivered, forfeited, or cancelled unttierterms of the grant agreements.

Share-based compensation and the related tax besedgnized in our consolidated statements ofrirefor fiscal 2013, 2012, and 2011

were as follows (in thousands):

Cost of revenue
Research and developmt

Selling, general, and administrati

Total

Income tax benefit on shebased compensatic

2013 2012 2011
$ 911 $ 1,12¢ $ 1,29/
15,77¢ 15,50¢ 13,82
15,52¢ 17,52; 18,80¢
$32,21( $34,16: $33,92¢
$ 9,20z $ 9,58¢ $ 9,74t

We recognize tax benefit upon expensing certaineshased awards associated with our share-basegec@ation plans, including
nonqualified stock options, and DSU and MSU awalbds we cannot recognize tax benefit concurrerth Wit recognition of share-based
compensation expenses associated with incentick sfations and employee stock purchase plan sliquedified stock options). For qualified
stock options we recognize tax benefit only inpleeiod when disqualifying dispositions of the urgieg stock occur, which historically has
been up to several years after vesting and iniagpahen our stock price substantially increases.

We determine excess tax benefit using the long-mathod in which we compare the actual tax bemasfbciated with the tax deduction
from share-based award activity to the hypothetaalbenefit based on the grant date fair valugb@torresponding share-based awards. Ta
benefit associated with excess tax deduction abiditto additional paid-in capital is not recogdizmtil the deduction reduces taxes payable.

Historically, we have issued new shares in conoaatiith our share-based compensation plans; howteasury shares were also
available for issuance as of the end of fiscal 2@t% additional shares repurchased under our camstack repurchase program would be

available for issuance under our share-based cosafien plans.
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Stock Options

Our share-based compensation plans with outstarstirady option awards include our 2001 Plan and26d©0 Plan. Under our 2010 Plan,
we may grant incentive stock options or nonqualiiéock options to purchase shares of our comnuwk stt not less than 100% of the fair
market value, or FMV, on the date of grant. Stoplians granted to our employees generally are inoestock options, or qualified options,
under the Internal Revenue Code, subject to cateyeda vesting limitations with any balance beimpqualified stock options, while
consultants and directors receive nonqualifiedkstgations.

Options granted under our 2010 Plan generally st three to four years from the vesting commergdrdate and expire seven years
after the date of grant if not exercised.

Certain stock option activity for fiscal 2013 analdnces as of the end of fiscal 2013 were as fallow

Weightec
Stock
Option Average Intrinsic
Awards Exercise Value
Qutstanding Price (In thousand:
Balance at June 2012 7,339,02. $25.3¢
Grantec 513,44 31.9¢
Exercisec (1,350,37) 22.7¢
Forfeited (471,819 29.52
Balance at June 20: 6,030,28 26.1°¢ $ 75,33
Exercisable at June 20: 4,553,79: 25.17 $ 61,09¢

The aggregate intrinsic value was determined uieglosing price of our common stock on the lesdihg day of fiscal 2013, or
June 28, 2013, of $38.56 and excludes the impagpiidns that were not in-the-money. Approximatého of the stock option awards
outstanding were vested and in-the-money as ofldeof fiscal 2013.

At the end of fiscal 2013, we estimated fully velstgptions and options expected to vest to be Sl#omivith an aggregate intrinsic value
of $74.3 million, having a weighted average exergigce of $26.09 and a weighted average remaiongractual term of 4.9 years. The
weighted average remaining contractual term fomoght@ons exercisable is approximately 4.7 years.

Cash received and the aggregate intrinsic valistoak options exercised for fiscal 2013, 2012, 201 were as follows (in thousands):

2013 2012 2011
Cash received $30,76¢ $28,93¢ $19,44*
Aggregate intrinsic valu $23,55¢ $16,87¢ $17,68¢

The fair value of each award granted from our pfangiscal 2013, 2012, and 2011 was estimateti@tiate of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, assuming no expediteédends and the following range of assumptions:

2013 2012 2011

Expected volatility 41.8%- 48.9% 44.6%-47.6% 42.7%- 47.0%
Expected life in year 3.5-4.6 4.6 4.6-5.1
Risk-free interest rat 0.62%-0.72%  0.7%- 1.3% 1.2%-2.1%
Fair value per awar $7.26- $14.95 $8.86- $14.13 $10.00- $12.58
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The unrecognized share-based compensation costtofide options granted under our various plans wppoximately $18.9 million as
of the end of fiscal 2013 to be recognized overghted average period of approximately 2.0 years.

During fiscal 2011, we modified the vesting prowits of our former Chief Executive Officer’'s shamsbd awards and recorded an
additional $1.4 million of share-based compensagigpense in connection with the modification of dheards.

Deferred Stock Unit

Our 2001 Plan, which expired in March 2011, prodifier the grant of DSU awards to our employeessutiants, and directors.
Currently, our 2010 Plan provides for the granD&U awards to our employees, consultants, andtdiecA DSU is a promise to deliver
shares of our common stock at a future date inrdeoee with the terms of the DSU grant agreemegtb@gan granting DSUs in January
2006.

DSUs granted under our 2010 Plan generally veabiabver three to four years from the vesting ce@noement date. Delivery of shares
under the plan takes place on the quarterly vestaigs. At the delivery date, we withhold sharesoier statutory minimum tax withholding
by delivering a net quantity of shares. Until dehiy of shares, the grantee has no rights as altittg.

An election to defer delivery of the underlying sfsafor unvested DSUs can be made by the grante@dpd the deferral election is me
at least one year before vesting and the defeeréd is at least five years from the scheduled/égt date.

DSU activity, including DSUs granted, deliveredddarfeited in fiscal 2013, and the balance and-egate intrinsic value of DSUs as of
the end of fiscal 2013 were as follows:

Aggregate Weighted

Intrinsic Average

DSU Awards Value Grant Dat

Outstanding (in thousand: Fair Value

Balance at June 30, 2012 1,009,33 $ 29.1-
Grantec 572,22! 28.61
Delivered (458,05 32.1Z
Forfeited (118,079 29.2¢
Balance at June 30, 20 1,005,43! $ 38,77( 29.2¢

Of the shares delivered, 142,479 shares valued.@trfiillion were withheld to meet statutory minimaax withholding requirements.
The aggregate intrinsic value was determined usieglosing price of our common stock on the lesling day of fiscal 2013, or June 28,
2013, of $38.56.

The unrecognized share-based compensation cddSids granted under our 2001 Plan and our 2010Wéanapproximately $29.8
million as of the end of fiscal 2013, which will becognized over a weighted average period of amiately 2.2 years. The aggregate market
value of DSUs delivered in fiscal 2013, 2012, afdPwas $14.7 million, $13.3 million, and $11.1lfoi, respectively.

Market Stock Unit:

Our 2010 Plan provides for the grant of MSU awavdsich are a type of DSU award, to our employeessaltants, and directors. An
MSU is a promise to deliver shares of our commonlsat a future date based on the achievement ddatdbased performance requirement
accordance with the terms of the MSU grant agreénvéa began granting MSUs in November 2012.
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In November 2012, we granted MSUs to our execudffieers, which were designed to vest in threedhas with the target quantity for
each tranche equal to one-third of the total MSahgrThe first tranche vests based on a one-yeforpence period; the second tranche vest:
based on a two-year performance period; and the titsinche vests based on a three-year perfornparaed. Performance is measured on the
achievement of a specified level of total stockleolgturn, or TSR, relative to the TSR of the Rielahia Semiconductor Index, or SOX Ind
The potential payout ranges from 0% to 200% ofgiteant target quantity and is adjusted on a tworte+@tio based on our TSR performance
relative to the SOX Index TSR performance usingftfiewing formula:

(100% + ([Synaptics TSR - SOX Index TSR] x 2))

Delivery of shares earned, if any, will take placethe dates provided in the MSU grant agreemesstjraing the grantee is still an
employee, consultant, or director of our companghatend of the applicable performance period. l@ndelivery date, we withhold shares to
cover statutory minimum tax withholding by delivegia net quantity of shares. Until delivery of @satthe grantee has no rights as a
stockholder.

MSU activity, including MSUs granted, deliveredddiorfeited in fiscal 2013, and the balance andegate intrinsic value of MSUs as
the end of fiscal 2013 were as follows:

Aggregate
Intrinsic
MSU Award: Value
Qutstanding (in thousand:
Balance at June 30, 2012 —
Grantec 74,00(
Delivered —
Forfeited (6,600
Balance at June 30, 20 67,40( $ 2,59¢

We valued the MSUs using the Monte Carlo simulatimdel and amortize the compensation expense bgeghtee-year performance
and service period. The weighted average grantfdatealue for the MSUs granted was $25.82. Theecognized share-based compensation
cost for MSUs granted was approximately $1.5 millas of June 30, 2013, which will be recognized evereighted average period of
approximately 1.25 years. As of June 30, 2013atigregate intrinsic value of the MSUs calculateshiagng a 100% payout factor, was
determined using the closing price of our commaoglsbn June 28, 2013 of $38.56.

Employee Stock Purchase PI

Our 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or our BEERP, became effective on January 29, 2002, thetefé date of the registration
statement for our initial public offering. Our 20EGPP became effective on January 1, 2011 andcegplzur 2001 ESPP, which expired in
December 2010. The 2010 ESPP allows employeessigrage up to 15% of their base compensation, sutgdegal restrictions and
limitations, to purchase shares of common sto@&8&b of the lesser of the FMV at the beginning &f ¢ffifering period or the exercise date.
offering period extends for up to two years andudes four exercise dates occurring at six-montérirls. Under the terms of our 2010 ESPP
if the FMV at an exercise date is less than the Fflthe beginning of the offering period, the catreffering period will terminate and a new
two-year offering period will commence.

Shares purchased, weighted average purchase gagtereceived, and the aggregate intrinsic valuerfiployee stock purchase plan
purchases in fiscal 2013, 2012, and 2011 werellsv® (in thousands, except shares purchased aiyhted average purchase price):

2013 2012 2011

Shares purchased 327,46! 242,22! 397,20
Weighted average purchase pi $ 20.3¢ $ 24.51] $ 17.5%
Cash receive $ 6,66¢ $ 5,937 $ 6,97¢
Aggregate intrinsic valu $ 4,84t $ 1,53¢ $ 4,323
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In accordance with accounting standards relatéde@ccounting for employee stock purchase platisaviook-back option, the early
termination of an offering period followed by thenemencement of a new offering period representsdifination to the terms of the related
awards. Under the terms of our 2010 ESPP, theioffgreriod that commenced on May 16, 2012 was teatad on November 15, 2012 and a
new offering period commenced on November 16, 20h2. November 16, 2012 modification affected appnately 474 employees and
resulted in incremental compensation costs that wet material and that will be recognized on aight-line basis over the two-year period
ending November 15, 2014.

Under the terms of our 2010 ESPP, the offeringggetiiat commenced on May 16, 2011 was terminatddayn15, 2012 and a new
offering period commenced on May 16, 2012. The May2012 modification affected approximately 491péayees and resulted in
incremental compensation costs that were not nadtnd that will be recognized on a straight-liasib over the two-year period ending
May 15, 2014.

Under the terms of our 2010 ESPP, the offeringggketiiat commenced on January 3, 2011 was terminatéday 13, 2011 and a new
offering period commenced on May 16, 2011. The May2011 modification affected approximately 437éyees and resulted in
incremental compensation costs that were not nadtand that were recognized on a straight-linesbagér the twarear period ending May 1
2013.

The fair value of each award granted under our ZBBRP and 2010 ESPP for fiscal 2013, 2012, and 2@%lestimated using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, assuming no expediteédends and the following range of assumptions:

2013 2012 2011

Expected volatility 38.6%- 40.2% 34.0%- 37.3% 32.5%- 48.6%
Expected life in year 0.5-2.0 0.5-2.0 0.5-2.0

Risk-free interest rat 0.12%- 0.24% 0.1%- 0.3% 0.1%- 0.6%
Fair value per awar $6.26- $14.7  $6.72- $9.32  $6.77- $11.5¢

The expected volatility is based on either imphethtility for the expected lives of 0.5 years oweighting of implied and historical
volatility for expected lives greater than 0.5 y&dhe expected life is based on each period #ginb with the enroliment date until each
purchase date remaining in the offering periodhatdate of enrollment in the plan; and the risk fregerest rate is based on U.S. Treasury y
or yield curve in effect for each expected life.

Unrecognized share-based compensation costs fodaweanted under our 2010 ESPP at the end of 26d88 were approximately $5.7
million that will be amortized over the next 16 ntias

11. Employee Benefit Plans
401(k) Plan

We have a 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan for faletemployees. Under the plan, eligible employeag aontribute a portion of their
net compensation up to the annual limit of $17,50@ annual limit for employees who are 50 yearslder is $23,000. In fiscal 2013, we
provided matching funds of 25% of the employeesitabutions, excluding catch-up contributions. rmeployer matching funds vest 25%
over four years and are fully vested at the enth@ffourth year. We made matching contribution$X# million, $1.2 million, and $1.0
million, in fiscal 2013, 2012, and 2011, respedtive

12. Income Taxes
Income (loss) before provision for income taxesfigeal 2013, 2012, and 2011 consisted of the falhg (in thousands):

2013 2012 2011

United States $ 44,00¢ $ 3,60: $ (919

Foreign 57,72¢ 64,94¢ 74,38¢
Income before provision for income tay $101,73. $68,55( $73,47:
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The provision for income taxes for fiscal 2013, 204nd 2011 consisted of the following (in thousgnd

2013 2012 2011
Current tax expense (bene!
Federa $(9,237) $ 5,52¢ $ 2,57
State 4 36 152
Foreign 10,52 9,58 10,61¢
1,29¢ 15,14; 13,34:
Deferred tax expense (bene
Federa 1,87¢ (8149 (3,579
State — — —
Foreign (369) 73 (87)
1,507 (747 (3,66¢€)
Provision for income taxe $ 2,80( $14,40¢ $ 9,67¢

The provision for income taxes differs from thedeal statutory rate for fiscal 2013, 2012, and 284 follows (in thousands):

2013 2012 2011
Provision at U.S. federal statutory rate $ 35,60¢ $ 23,99: $ 25,71¢
State income taxe 3 13¢ 39C
Qualified stock option 2,071 2,28( 2,12¢
Business credit (3,729 (1,279 (2,910
Foreign tax differentia (16,589 (10,939 (15,819
Remeasurement of unrecognized tax ben (15,569 — —
Change in valuation allowan: (159 (27) (22)
Nondeductible amortizatic 57¢ — —
Other difference 57€ 238 19C
Provision for income taxe $ 2,80( $ 14,40¢ $ 9,67¢

Net deferred tax assets as of the end of fiscad 20 2012 consisted of the following (in thousands

2013 2012

Current deferred tax assets $ 2,831 $ 1,59¢
Non-current deferred tax asst 13,37¢ 13,72¢
Net deferred tax asse $16,21: $15,32:

Current deferred tax assets and non-current def¢aseassets are included in prepaid expensesthrd @urrent assets, and other assets,
respectively, in the accompanying consolidatedrimdasheets.
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Significant components of our deferred tax asdetiilities) as of the end of fiscal 2013 and 2@basisted of the following (in
thousands):

2013 2012
Deferred tax asset
Investment writedown $ 6,76¢ $ 6,871
Capital loss carryforwar 1,352 1,98¢
Inventory writedown: 26¢€ 25¢
Property and equipme 86 605
Accrued compensatic 2,027 1,44:
Shar+-based compensatic 15,43¢ 15,91
Business credit carryforwa 13,33 14,37:
Net operating loss carryforwa 1,16¢€ 1,40z
Other accrual 437 612
40,87: 43,46:
Valuation allowanct (15,55¢) (14,719
25,31; 28,74
Deferred tax liabilities
Acquisition intangible: (839 (4,587
Interest deductio (8,272) (8,847)
(9,106 (13,426
Net deferred tax asse $ 16,21 $ 15,32]

Realization of deferred tax assets depends onengrgting sufficient U.S. and certain foreign tdgabcome in future years to obtain
benefit from the utilization of those deferred tssets on our tax returns. Accordingly, the amotideferred tax assets considered realizable
may increase or decrease when we reevaluate tleglying basis for our estimates of future U.S. &oréign taxable income. As of the end of
fiscal 2013, a valuation allowance of $15.6 millived been established to reduce deferred tax dedeteels that we believe are more likely
than not to be realized through future taxable imeoThe net change in the valuation allowance duigtal 2013 was $841,000.

Undistributed operating earnings of our foreignssdiaries were approximately $384.6 million ash#f &nd of fiscal 2013 and are
considered to be indefinitely reinvested oversaad,no U.S. income taxes have been provided foh@se earnings. The potential deferred ta
liability associated with undistributed operatiragr@ngs of our foreign subsidiaries was approximye#65.1 million.

As of the end of fiscal 2013, we had California opérating loss carryforwards of approximately $28illion. The California net
operating loss carryforwards were attributablehare-based award deductions. The benefit of theseperating losses will be recorded
directly to additional paid-in capital when realizdhe California net operating loss will begiretgire in fiscal 2021, if not utilized. The
federal and state capital losses will begin to exi fiscal 2014, if not utilized. In addition, viead $4.0 million of federal and Idaho operating
losses in connection with the acquisition of Pagsiniunder current tax law, net operating loss ancttedit carryforwards available to offset
future income or income taxes may be limited byuséaor upon the occurrence of certain eventsudiob significant changes in ownership.

We had $5.7 million and $10.8 million of federabastate research tax credit carryforwards, respagtias of the end of fiscal 2013. The
federal research tax credit carryforward will betmirexpire in 2027 and the state research taxtccadibe carried forward indefinitely. We also
had $1.3 million of federal alternative minimum tedit carryforward available to offset future éedl tax liabilities with no expiration.
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The total liability for gross unrecognized tax bfiseincluded in other liabilities in our consaditbd balance sheets, decreased $14.9
million to $8.2 million in fiscal 2013 from $23.lillion in fiscal 2012. All of this amount would &t the effective tax rate on income from
continuing operations, if recognized. A reconcitiatof the beginning and ending balance of grossaognized tax benefits for fiscal 2013,
2012, and 2011 consisted of the following (in roitis):

2013 2012 2011

Beginning balance $23.1 $20.2 $19.C
Increase in unrecognized tax benefits related treatiyear tax positior 1.€ 2.6 2.8
Increase in unrecognized tax benefits relateditrr gpear tax position — 0.3 —
Remeasurement for results of income tax examini (15.0 — —
Decrease due to statute expirat (1.7) — (1.6)

Ending Balanct $ 8.2 $23.1 $20.2

Accrued interest and penalties decreased by $1lidmirepresenting income tax benefit, in fiscll3, and increased $749,000 and
$438,000, representing income tax expense, inlf&¥E and 2011, respectively. Our policy is tcssléy interest and penalties, if any, as
components of income tax expense.

In May 2011, we were notified by the Internal Rewverservice (Service) that our fiscal 2003 throug@&and fiscal 2008 through 2010
would be subject to examination. The early periwdse being audited in connection with a mandatewew of tax refunds in excess of $2.0
million when we carried back our fiscal 2008 neei@iing loss. In March 2013, we received the Regehgent’'s Report resolving our
examination with the Service and paid an assesstnanhad no material impact to our condensed dmiagded financial statements. Our cas
under review by the Joint Committee of Taxationjohitwe anticipate will be complete in fiscal 20y prospective adjustments to our
unrecognized tax benefits will be recorded as aresse or decrease to income tax expense anda@aosesponding change to our effective
tax rate. Accordingly, our effective tax rate cofllcctuate materially from period to period.

On January 2, 2013, President Barack Obama sigiedaiw The American Taxpayer Relief Act of 20131€TAct). The Act extends the
federal research credit for two years retroactifedyn January 1, 2012 through December 31, 201%ukl, we recognized approximately a
$3.5 million tax benefit in fiscal year 2013, therjpd that includes the enactment date.

It is reasonably possible that the amount of thkility for unrecognized tax benefits may changginithe next 12 months and an
estimate of the range of possible changes is arase of up to $2.0 million.

Our major tax jurisdictions are the United Statealifornia, and Hong Kong SAR, and fiscal 2003 ordva@main subject to examination
by one or more of these jurisdictions.

13. Segment, Customers, and Geographic Information

We operate in one segment: the development, magketnd sale of interactive human interface sahgtir electronic devices and
products. We generate our revenue from two broadyut categories: the mobile product applicatioask@ts and the PC product applications
market. The mobile product applications market aoted for 64%, 49%, and 52% of our net revenudioal 2013, 2012, and 2011,
respectively.

Net revenue within geographic areas based on aomiers’ locations for fiscal 2013, 2012, and 26adsisted of the following (in
thousands):

2013 2012 2011
China $390,04: $353,52: $399,79¢
South Koree 102,84( 35,04¢ 24,52
Taiwan 84,38( 60,98( 76,63
Japar 61,33( 65,12¢ 65,54¢
United State! 22,57¢ 5,17¢ 6,31¢
Other 2,41¢ 28,37: 25,72«

$663,58 $548,22¢ $598,53t
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Net revenue from external customers for each godgimilar products for fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2@bhsisted of the following (in
thousands):

2013 2012 2011
Mobile product applications $424,07t $270,10t $309, 16t
PC product applicatior 239,51. 278,12. 289,37.

$663,58! $548,22¢ $598,53

Long-lived assets within geographic areas as oétttbof fiscal 2013 and 2012 consisted of the ¥alhgy (in thousands):

2013 2012
United States $83,53¢ $32,67:
Asia/Pacific 8,30~ 5,03(

$91,84( $37,70¢

Our goodwill of $20.7 million has been allocatedaitoompany-wide reporting unit.

Major customers’ revenue as a percentage of tetalavenue for fiscal 2013, 2012, and 2011 weffelisvs:

201< 201 2011
Customer A 14% * *
Customer E * 12% *

* Less than 109
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List of Subsidiaries

NAME
Pacinian Corporation

Synaptics International, In
Synaptics Hong Kong Limite
Synaptics Europe S¢
Synaptics Holding Gmbl
Synaptics LLC
Synaptics Technology (Shanghai) Company Lim
Synaptics Japan (K.K.) Limite

Synaptics Canada Limite

STATE OR JURISDICTION
OF ORGANIZATION

Delaware
California
Hong Kong
Switzerlanc
Switzerlanc
Delaware
China
Japar

Canade
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Synaptics Incorporated:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrégéstration statements (Nos. 333-81820, 333-82282-82286, 333-82288, 333-99529,
333-99531, 333-146145, 333-146146, 333-170400388e170401) on Form S-8 and (No. 333-115274) omFe# of Synaptics Incorporat:
of our report dated August 19, 2013, with respec¢he consolidated balance sheets of Synapticspocated and subsidiaries as of June 29,
2013 and June 30, 2012, and the related consdlidééements of income, comprehensive income, Btbddkrs’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period endeé 29, 2013, and the effectiveness of internalrobowver financial reporting as of June 29,
2013, which report appears in the June 29, 2018amaport on Form 10-K of Synaptics Incorporated.

/sl KPMG LLP

Santa Clara, California
August 19, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

I, Richard A. Bergman, certify that:

1.
2.

5.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Synaptics Incorporate:

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, nisadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepared

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registraisslosure controls and procedures and presentdsineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reportirttgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the riegig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadwaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 19, 2013

/sl Richard A. Bergman
Richard A. Bergma
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.Z

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

I, Kathleen A. Bayless, certify that:

1.
2.

5.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Synaptics Incorporate:

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, nisadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepared

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registraisslosure controls and procedures and presentdsineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reportirttgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the riegig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadwaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 19, 2013

/sl Kathleen A. Bayless
Kathleen A. Bayles
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1
Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Offier

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10{fkKSgnaptics Incorporated (the “Company”) for theyended June 29, 2013 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report”), |, Richard A. Bergm&nesident and Chief Executive Officer

of the Company, certify, to the best of my knowledad belief, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, astadguursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(
or 780(d)); anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/ Richard A. Bergman
Richard A. Bergma
Chief Executive Office
August 19, 201.




Exhibit 32.2
Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Offier

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10{fkSgnaptics Incorporated (the “Company”) for theyended June 29, 2013 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, Kathleen A. BayleSenior Vice President, Chief Financial

Officer, Secretary, and Treasurer of the Compaestifg, to the best of my knowledge and belief,quant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted
pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20@:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(
or 780(d)); anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of
the Company

/sl Kathleen A. Bayless
Kathleen A. Bayless
Chief Financial Office
August 19, 201.




